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CRUISING INTO THE
NEW FRONTIER
SuriaGroup is poised to embark on a new and 
adventurous phase of our voyage towards 
our vision of excellence. As we boldly set 
sail for the unchartered waters of premier 
waterfront upgrades and regenerations, we 
are confident that we will fulfil and exceed the 
needs of our target clientele, thus benefiting 
all our shareholders and stakeholders.



CORE VALUES

S ervice Excellence     Providing excellent services to our customers

U nity of Purpose     Working together as one cohesive team to achieve our missions

R espect     Value and care for our employees, community and the environment

I  ntegrity     Upholding the highest ethical conduct and good corporate governance

A chievement     Strong commitment to act and accomplish through innovation and creativity



VISION
To be a leading investment entity in ports and port-related 
services in Malaysia.

MISSION
To enhance the long-term value of the Group by:

z  Creating sustainable returns to our shareholders;

z  Achieving excellence in all our business undertakings;

z  Embracing best practices in our business processes;

z  Enriching the lives of our employees;

whilst always caring for the environment and community within 
which we operate.
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Corporate Profile

The Company is mainly involved in the provision of port services and facilities through its 
subsidiary, Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. (Sabah Ports) which manages and operates eight major 
ports of Sabah. The ports comprise Kota Kinabalu Port, Sapangar Bay Container Port, 
Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal and Kudat Port which are located on the West Coast of Sabah 
while Sandakan Port, Tawau Port, Lahad Datu Port and Kunak Port on the East Coast. 
Through the operations of these ports, the Company has a commitment in ensuring efficient 
port infrastructure to facilitate and support trade and investment activities in the State of 
Sabah.

Apart from the port services, Suria Capital, through its other subsidiaries, has also ventured 
into other growth areas related to its core business. Suria Capital together with the 
subsidiaries, referred to as SuriaGroup, has widened its business sphere into the logistics 
and bunkering services, maintenance of port equipment, the construction and engineering 
services as well as the operation of ferry terminal services, which also includes International 
Cruise Terminal.  These arrays of activities have been undertaken by S.P. Satria Logistics Sdn. 
Bhd.. (S. P. Satria Logistics), S.P. Satria Sdn. Bhd. (S.P. Satria), SCHB Engineering Services 
Sdn. Bhd. (SCHB Engineering) and Suria Bumira Sdn. Bhd. (Suria Bumiria). The Group will 
soon be venturing into property development with the launching of the waterfront mixed 
development project, the Jesselton Quay Project.   

Along with these subsidiaries, Suria Capital has been very active in recent years in the 
investment activities of the State of Sabah particularly, in the key growth sectors by leveraging 
on the accelerating growth of the State’s economy and the State’s strategic geographical 
location within the vibrant East Asian and BIMP-EAGA regions.

Besides contributing actively towards the economic growth of Sabah, SuriaGroup is also 
committed to fulfil its obligation towards achieving better shareholdsers’ values through its 
concerted efforts towards greater efficiency and continuous growth.

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS 

BERHAD (Suria Capital) is a 

public-listed company on the 

Main Board of Bursa Malaysia 

Securities Berhad since 1996 

(Stock Code: 6521).
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A FORTIFIED 
PLATFORM

FOR GROWTH
Our business growth is solidly anchored on the firm footings of our 
existing business, proactive direction from the Board of Directors, capable 
management team and a comprehensive business plan. As we move 
forward, we prepare ourselves for the challenges that may come our way.



RM 69.28 to RM 82.31
GROUP’S PRE-TAX PROFIT (million)

18.8%
RM 50.31 to RM 61.27
GROUP'S PROFIT AFTER TAX (million)

21.8%

On behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Suria Capital Holdings Berhad and its 
group of companies (SuriaGroup), it 
gives me great pleasure to present the 
Annual Report and Audited Financial 
Statements for the financial year ended 
31 December 2013.

Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders
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6.2 to 7.0
NET DIVIDEND (Sen)

0.8sen

Chairman’s Statement cont’d

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

SuriaGroup ended the year 2013 on a positive note despite the economic 
uncertainties especially in the external markets. The Group managed 
to sustain its performance during the year both in terms of revenue 
and profitability. This was primarily attributed to the Group’s ability to 
enhance operational efficiency, which in turn improve shareholders’ value 
proposition.

I am pleased to announce that for the financial year under review, the 
Group recorded higher revenue of RM263.33 million as against RM262.93 
million in 2012.  The Group’s pre-tax profit registered at RM82.31 million in 
2013, a double digit growth of 18.8% as against RM69.28 million in 2012. 
The profit after tax of the Group stood at RM61.27 million or 21.8% higher 
compared to RM50.31 million in 2012.  The higher profit was mainly due to 
lower operating expenditures and finance costs.

Port services, which is our principal business, continued to lead the 
Group’s performance during the year. Port operations generated 85.2% 
of the Group’s revenue while logistics and bunkering services contributed 
10.6%, ferry terminal operations 2.0% while contract and engineering 
1.3%.  

The Group’s shareholders’ fund has strengthened to RM838.35 million 
from RM794.62 million in 2012 while the net tangible assets per share 
improved to RM2.68 per share (2012: RM2.51) and basic earnings per 
share stood higher at 21.56 sen (2012: 17.73 sen).    

SOUND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

As the Group’s performance was underpinned by the port activities, 
aggressive measures in improving port operations had resulted in higher 
operational efficiency and lower cost. The overall cargo throughput 
(excluding containerized cargo) handled by Sabah Ports was recorded at 
22.50 million metric tonnes (MT) compared to 22.52 million MT in 2012. 
The total volume of containers moderated to 373,042 TEUS during the year 
as against 374,624 TEUs in 2012. However, it is encouraging to note that 
Sapangar Bay Container Port recorded a 4% improvement in its container 
volume, increasing to 260,664 TEUs from 251,359 TEUs in 2012.

The Group is making its debut in property development in Sabah as part 
of its strategic diversification while capitalizing on the growing tourism 
sector in the State. On 21 May 2013, the Company successfully signed a 
joint venture agreement with public-listed SBC Corporation Bhd to launch 
property development project, namely Jesselton Quay. The RM1.8 billion 
mixed-development project, formerly referred to as Jesselton Waterfront, 
is on a piece of prime land located next to the Kota Kinabalu Port and is 
expected to kick-off by 2014.  

The Group, through Suria Bumiria, is also embarking on the development 
of an international cruise terminal (ICT) at Kota Kinabalu Port. The ICT has 
been earmarked by the Federal Government as an entry point project (EPP) 
under the Economic Transformation Programme to create a Straits Riviera 
Cruise Playground in Malaysia. This will complement Jesselton Quay 
and other developments in the vicinity such as the Sabah International 
Convention Centre and Kota Kinabalu Convention City.  

On 6 November 2013, Suria Bumiria opened for operations the newly 
completed CIQS terminal at Kota Kinabalu Port and welcomed the arrival 
of the 1,500-capacity Star Cruises' SuperStar Aquarius. This is another 
major milestone for the Group as this was the first cruise liner to make 
Kota Kinabalu Port a home port, albeit on a seasonal deployment of five 
months.  

Our bunkering arm, S.P. Satria Logistics had re-structured its bunkering 
business by collaborating with an international bunkering company for the 
supply of marine bunker fuel to ships calling and passing all Sabah ports. 
In 2013, our engineering subsidiary, SCHB Engineering in collaboration 
with a consortium, completed the Kimanis Power Plant project. For S. P. 
Satria, apart from providing equipment maintenance and supply services, 
it continued to emphasize on staff training to improve its technical services.

HIGHER DIVIDEND QUANTUM

I am pleased to announce that the Board of Directors had approved the 
payment of interim dividend of 3.0% per ordinary share in respect of the 
financial year ended 31 December 2013.  This amounts to a net dividend of 
RM8.5 million which had been paid-out in December 2013.
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Chairman’s Statement cont’d

The Board will also be recommending a final tax-exempt dividend of 4.0% 
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company which is 
subject to approval by shareholders. If approved, this will bring the total 
dividend payout in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2013 
to RM19.83 million which is equivalent to 7.0 sen net per ordinary share 
and represents a payout ratio of 32.4%. In the previous financial year 
ended 31 December 2012, the Company paid a net dividend of RM17.43 
million which was an equivalent of 6.15 sen net per ordinary share.

BULLISH OUTLOOK FOR THE GROUP

With the expected recovery in the global economy and the anticipation 
of 4.5-5.5% growth in the Malaysian economy in 2014 (Bank Negara 
Malaysia, 2014), I am optimistic that the Group will be able to forge ahead 
on a steady growth path. We are also positive that we are able to benefit 
more from the spill-over effects of government expenditures particularly 
through the Sabah Development Corridor investment programmes in the 
State.  

It is our earnest goal to support the economic growth of the State by 
providing efficient port infrastructure to help promote Sabah as an 
emerging investment destination in the country as well as in the region. The 
implementation of the Sabah Ports’ on-going 20-year Port Development 
Master Plan (2013-2033) will further enhance the Group’s capacity and 
efficiency in the provision and maintenance of the port services and 
facilities to meet the anticipated rapid economic expansion in Sabah.

The Jesselton Quay is poised to be a new landmark for the city of Kota 
Kinabalu. It will bring in a unique experience and new opportunities to 
property investors. The international cruise terminal activities would 
provide new growth drivers. The success of the first home-porting by 
Star Cruises had met with interests from other cruise operators to make 
Kota Kinabalu their home port and regular port of call.  The bunkering, 
engineering and maintenance activities are expected to contribute 
positively to the Group’s earnings from 2014 onwards.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I would like to record our deepest appreciation 
to our ex-Board member YB Datuk Hj. Ramlee Bin Marahaban for his 
services throughout his tenure and his contributions in providing continuity 
to the Board functions. It had been a privilege to have had him as a Board 
member.  We also would like to congratulate him for his appointment as 
the State’s Assistant Minister of Finance and we wish him all the best in 
his new position.

On the same note, we are pleased to welcome YB Datuk Hj. Syed Abas 
Syed Ali as our new Board member. We are confident that he would be 
able to contribute to the Board with his vast experience and knowledge in 
corporate matters.

My sincere appreciation goes out to all our shareholders and stakeholders 
including the state authorities, especially Sabah Ports Authority, the State 
Economic Planning Unit as well as the Lands and Surveys Department for 
their assistance during the year and we look forward to the same support 
in the coming years. To all our business associates, we would like to thank 
them for their continued confidence in us.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to thank the 
management and staff of the Group for their dedication and commitment 
in contributing to the success in 2013. Finally, I wish to put on record 
my special thanks and appreciation to my fellow directors as well as the 
directors of the subsidiary companies for their contributions to the success 
of the Group.

Thank you.

DATUK HJ. FAISYAL BIN DATUK YUSOF HAMDAIN DIEGO, 
PJN, DMSM, ASDK, BSK
Chairman
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Group Managing Director's Review of Operations

The global market recovered at a slow pace 
in 2013 as uncertainties in the advanced and 
emerging markets continued to dominate. The 
world saw declines in international demand 
as well as weakened currencies in emerging 
markets. The nation’s economic growth which 
was forecasted at 5.0-6.0% was revised to 
4.5-5.0% by the second quarter of 2013 to 
reflect this tepid momentum (Bank Negara 
Malaysia, 2013). Nevertheless, the Malaysian 
economy fared relatively well and performed 
better than expected. Supported by the 
government's Economic Transformation 
Program (ETP), a slow but steady growth path 
emerged, principally anchored by resilience in 
domestic demands. Deficit curbing measures 
introduced by the government also added to 
Malaysia’s stability.

Confident in the nation’s economic outlook, 
SuriaGroup traversed 2013 cautiously but 
assuredly. In retrospect, the ports' strong 
performance combined with the onset of the 
Jesselton Quay development provided the 
Group with another remarkable year.
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Group Managing Director's Review of Operations cont’d

REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Port Operations
Sabah Ports had performed favorably throughout the years. For 2013, it 
recorded total revenue of RM220.5 million compared to RM218.6 million 
in 2012. The increase in revenue was spurred mainly by higher volumes in 
liquid cargo from the East Coast ports and higher container throughput at 
Sapangar Bay Container Port. A higher gross profit of RM104.2 million was 
registered for the year against RM98.9 million in 2012. Net profit before 
tax too stood favorably at RM83.6 million against RM73.6 million in 2012. 
The lower operating costs played a key role in achieving this result.

Among the eight ports, Sapangar Bay Container Port continued to be 
the largest revenue contributor. It generated revenue of RM64.3 million 
or 29.2% of total revenue. This was followed by Sandakan Port (RM53.3 
million), Tawau Port (RM31.1 million), Lahad Datu and Kunak Ports 
(RM37.2 million), Kota Kinabalu Port (RM21.4 million), Sapangar Bay Oil 
Terminal (RM12.8 million) and Kudat Port (RM0.4 million).

In 2013, the overall cargo throughput (excluding containerized cargo) 
experienced a minor contraction registering at 22.50 million MT against 
22.52 million MT in 2012. The decline in sufferance wharf operations was 
the main factor to the moderation. Of this total tonnage, Sandakan Port 
registered 7.26 million MT or 32% of overall cargo. This was followed by 
Lahad Datu Port with 4.57 million MT. Contributions from the other ports 
comprised Tawau Port, 4.05 million MT; Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal, 2.63 
million MT; Kota Kinabalu Port, 2.22 million MT; Kunak Port, 1.48 million 
MT; and Kudat Port, 0.22 million MT.

The cargoes handled during the year were mostly liquid cargo (palm oil and 
petroleum), at 49.3%; containers, 29.0%; dry bulk (PKE and fertilizers), 
8.0%; and other general cargo, 14.0%.

Container volume moderated slightly in year 2013 with a total of 373,042 
TEUs recorded during the year in comparison to 374,624 TEUs in 2012. 
However, Sapangar Bay Container Port handled more containers in 2013, 
improving by 4% at 260,664 TEUs from 251,359 TEUs the previous year. 
As the main port for containerized cargo, it handled 70% of the overall 
container throughput.

In terms of passenger vessels, a total of 945 passenger vessels carrying 
139,531 passengers called at the ports in 2013. Of this total, Kota Kinabalu 
Port handled 881 passenger vessels (cruise and supply boats) with 107,901 
passengers (77%) while Sandakan Port handled 64 passenger vessels 
(cruise and ferry) with 31,630 passengers (23%). Correspondingly, there 
were 48 cruise vessels carrying 77,295 passengers that called at Kota 
Kinabalu Port while Sandakan Port handled six cruise vessels with a total 
of 1,581 passengers. The promising figures are reflective of the growing 
tourism sector in the State.

Tapping the Growing Tourism Sector and Developing Waterfront 
Projects
In 2013, Suria Bumiria achieved a 30% increase in revenue which stood at 
RM5.17 million compared to RM3.99 million the year before. The increase 
in revenue was principally due to improved performance of the ferry 
terminal operations, boosted by the tourist influx brought about by the 
seasonal deployment of Star Cruises' Superstar Aquarius at Kota Kinabalu 
Port. An increase in retail income at the terminal was also noted.

In 2013, SuriaGroup successfully entered into a RM1.8 billion joint-venture 
agreement with SBC Corporation Bhd to develop the Jesselton Quay 
project. Expected to be launched in 2014, Jesselton Quay will transform 
the city landscape by developing a world-class waterfront precinct, a first 
of its kind in the region. Suria Bumiria, the Group's property management 
arm and operator of Jesselton Point Ferry Terminal will assist in overseeing 
this joint development project.

The project formerly referred to as Jesselton Waterfront, will be developed 
over the next 8 years (2014 – 2021).  It will consist of commercial suites, 
retail malls, hotels and office towers. Suria Capital will receive a minimum 
guaranteed amount of RM324 million or a minimum return of 18% of the 
total gross development value. Meanwhile, the remaining seven acres of 
land which includes the existing ferry terminal at Jesselton Point will be 
re-developed to incorporate the Group's corporate office, amongst other 
commercial and retail buildings. Upon kick-off, the project is expected to 
provide a steady income stream for the Group.

Another exciting project which will be undertaken by SuriaGroup through 
Suria Bumiria, is the development of an International Cruise Terminal (ICT) 
at Kota Kinabalu Port, which will complement the Jesselton Quay project 
and other upcoming projects in the vicinity such as the Sabah International 
Convention Centre and Kota Kinabalu Convention City. The ICT is an entry 
point project (EPP) that has been earmarked by the Federal Government 
under its Economic Transformation Programme to create a Straits Riviera 
Cruise Playground in Malaysia.  
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Group Managing Director's Review of Operations cont’d

Recognizing the new potentials, on 6 November 2013, Suria Bumiria 
completed and operated the new CIQS terminal at Kota Kinabalu Port 
to welcome the arrival of the 1,500-capacity Star Cruises' Superstar 
Aquarius, the first cruise liner to make Kota Kinabalu Port a home port on a 
seasonal deployment of five months. The highly successful home-porting 
by Star Cruises had marked another milestone for SuriaGroup and paved 
the way for the development of the international cruise terminal in the near 
future. This is to cater for more regular and larger cruise vessels coming 
to the port.

Continuous Support from Other Segments
In 2013, S.P. Satria Logistics reported revenue of RM33.05 million 
generated largely from the sales of fuel, lubricant and water. The company 
will continue to expand its bunkering services by leasing the storage 
tanks at Sapangar Bay and Lahad Datu. Among its future projects, S.P. 
Satria Logistics is expected to develop the scheduled waste management 
business and to stockpile marine lubricants at the ports.

S.P Satria, responsible for the maintenance of cargo handling equipment  
recorded revenue of RM15.00 million in 2013. During the year, the company 
had continued to assist port operations in the purchase of port equipment 
and invested in overseas training to improve their technical services. The 
company had also managed to secure income outside the Group and will 
continue to look beyond for more business opportunities. For 2014, the 
company has line-up a few projects including equipment commissioning 
for other ports.

SCHB Engineering, in collaboration with a consortium, completed the 
EPCC contract to build a power plant in Kimanis, Sabah in 2013.  The 
project was secured in 2011.  The subsidiary intends to secure further 
business not only within the Group, especially the Jesselton Quay project, 
but also with external parties.

PROSPECTS FOR 2014 AND THE WAY FORWARD

The Malaysian market has shown strong resilience despite obstacles and 
we, at SuriaGroup, expect this to continue into 2014. We are positive the 
current year to be a better year as a steady pace of recovery overtakes 
the main markets. At the micro level, we expect a moderate yet optimistic 
growth. Our core port operation business and the Jesselton Quay 
development will ultimately be the main driver for growth for the Group.
 
Strategies for the Ports and Towards Developing the Waterfront 
Potentials
Sabah Ports will embark on a continuous improvement programme in 
line with its commitment towards providing efficient port services and 
at the same time to ensure that its financial performance remain strong 
and stable. A substantial budget had been allocated in 2014 for port 
development and improvement including major repairs and acquisition of 
new container and cargo handling equipment.

Port improvement works will be carried out mainly to accommodate growth 
in cargo throughput and vessel calls at ports, as well as to accommodate 
the anticipated increase in container throughput.

The Jesselton Quay development which is expected to be launched in 2014 
will be a major project for the Group. This premier development will support 
the establishment of the Kota Kinabalu ICT. The creation of this world class 
cruise terminal is endorsed in the National Cruise and Ferry Infrastructure 
and Tourism Blueprint developed jointly by the Federal Government’s 
Economic Planning Unit, Ministry of Tourism and Culture as well as the 
Ministry of Transport. In this respect, the Group intends to aggressively 
pursue opportunities presented by this waterfront development.

APPRECIATION

My sincere appreciation goes to members of the Board, our business 
associates and the regulatory authorities. Their continued support has 
allowed SuriaGroup to grow and achieve greater heights. My special 
thanks also to the management and staff of SuriaGroup who have been 
pivotal to the performance of the Group. Last but not least, I extend my 
utmost appreciation to our shareholders who have stood with us through 
the years. I assure you it is our goal to do the best for our shareholders. 
 

DATUK DR. MOHD. FOWZI BIN HJ. RAZI
Group Managing Director
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5-Year Financial Highlights

 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
  (Restated) (Restated)  

Results (RM'000)     

Revenue  263,330   262,928   276,006   254,966   244,797 
Gross Profit  113,708   106,895   110,277   108,530   99,466 
Profit before tax  82,312   69,279   74,352   75,562   59,904 
Profit net of tax  61,268   50,306   53,615   56,328   56,718 
     
Selected Balance Sheet Items (RM'000)     

Cash and bank balances  121,961   82,463   45,528   73,772   68,720 
Property, plant and equipment  664,104   659,868   688,218   724,219   673,139 
Total assets  1,180,706   1,180,292   1,221,950   1,223,412   1,089,967 
Shareholders' funds  838,352   794,621   761,445   730,034   679,421 
     
Financial Ratios     

Current ratio (x)  2.2   3.7   2.4   1.9   2.0 
Long term debt to equity (%)  23.7   38.4   44.9   49.6   45.0 
Pre-tax return on average equity (%)  10.1   8.9   9.9   10.7   9.1 
Return on average equity (%)  7.5   6.4   7.2   7.9   8.5 
     
Share Information     

Earnings per share (sen)  21.6   17.7   18.9   19.8   19.8 
Net dividend per share (sen)  7.0   6.2   6.0   4.8   4.3 
Net assets per share (sen)  296.6   281.2   269.7   258.6   243.6 
Market price per share (sen)  265.0   151.0   158.0   190.0   143.0 
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Group Corporate Structure

Contract & 
Engineering

Property 
Development & Ferry 
Terminal Operations

Port Operations

Logistics & 
Bunkering Services

100%
S.P. Satria Logistics

Sdn. Bhd.
(722286-V)

100%
SCHB Engineering Services 

Sdn. Bhd.
(645642-W)

100%
Suria Bumiria 

Sdn. Bhd.
(633477-V)

100%
Sabah Ports 
Sdn. Bhd.
(583073-H)

70%
S.P. Satria Sdn. Bhd.

(622494-V)
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Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. Johari, J.P.
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

SECRETARY
Suryani Binti Mohd. Saidi
(LS. 0005574)
Group Company Secretary

AUDIT COMMITTEE

CHAIRMAN
Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ 
Lai Kheng Ming, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

MEMBERS
Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

SECRETARY
Mary Sii Lee Mieng 
(MIA 25038)
Senior Manager, Group Internal Audit

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

CHAIRMAN
Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive 

MEMBERS
Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi
Group Managing Director,
Non-Independent & Executive

Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

Muluk Bin Samad
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

SECRETARY
Suryani Binti Mohd. Saidi
(LS. 0005574)
Group Company Secretary

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

CHAIRMAN
Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego
Independent & Non-Executive

MEMBERS
Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi
Group Managing Director, 
Non-Independent & Executive

Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

SECRETARY
Suryani Binti Mohd. Saidi
(LS. 0005574)
Group Company Secretary

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

CHAIRMAN
Muluk Bin Samad
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

MEMBERS
Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi
Group Managing Director, 
Non-Independent & Executive

Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ 
Lai Kheng Ming, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

SECRETARY
Asmah Binti Mohd Nor
Senior Manager, Risk Management
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Board of Directors’ Profile

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego
Chairman, Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego, 51, was appointed as an 
Independent and Non-Executive Chairman of Suria Capital on 1 January 
2013. He chairs the Investment Committee of the Board. He is also the 
Chairman of Suria Bumiria Sdn. Bhd., a wholly owned subsidiary of Suria 
Capital. He is currently the Executive Chairman of Arus Sutera Sdn. Bhd. 
since 1997 and a Board of Director in Perkasa Trading Sdn. Bhd. since 
1996.  He is currently on the Board of KUB Malaysia Berhad since 1995 
as well as an Audit Committee member. He is also the Chairman in one of 
its subsidiaries, KUB Telekomunikasi Sdn. Bhd. since 2006. He also sits in 
the Board of its subsidiaries, KUB Singgahsana (PJ) Sdn. Bhd., Restoran 
Kualiti Sdn. Bhd., KUB Agrotech Sdn. Bhd., Utama Steel Works Sdn. Bhd. 
and KUB Sepadu Sdn. Bhd. until 2012. He also held the post as the Deputy 
Chairman of KUB Malaysia Berhad from 2005 to 2012.

Datuk Hj. Faisyal, a Malaysian, holds a Bachelor of Art (Hons) in Economics 
from York University, Toronto, Ontario, Canada and a Diploma in 
Accountancy from Toronto School of Business, Toronto, Ontario, Canada.

Datuk Hj. Faisyal was also the former Chairman of Yayasan Bumiputra 
Sabah a wholly owned company of the State Government of Sabah from 
2010 to 2012. From June 2004 until June 2010, he was in the Board of 
Directors of Bursa Malaysia Berhad. During his tenure in Bursa, he was the 
Chaiman in the Market Participation, Listing and Compensation Committee 
and he sits as a member in the Risk Management, Investment & Advisory 
and Compensation Committee of the Board. He was the Chairman and 
Director of Associated Concrete Products (Sabah) S/B Joint Venture 
between SEDCO & ACPI (M) from 1996 to 2006. 

Datuk Hj. Faisyal has no securities holdings in Suria Capital and no family 
relationship with any Director and/ or major shareholders nor has any 
conflict of interest with Suria Capital.

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi
Group Managing Director, Non-Independent & Executive

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi, 60, was appointed as the Group Managing 
Director of Suria Capital on 29 April 2009. He sits in the Remuneration 
Committee and Risk Management Committee of the Board. He also holds 
directorships in Sabah Development Bank, UMS Link Holdings and Desa 
Group of Companies. 

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi, a Malaysian, graduated with a BEc from the 
University of Adelaide (Australia). He obtained his MBA and MSc (Finance) 
from the University of Strathclyde (United Kingdom) and also holds a Ph.D 
(Economics) from the University of Exeter (United Kingdom). He also 
holds the following professional qualifications: CA (Malaysia) and FCPA 
(Australia); and is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Management 
and a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management (United Kingdom).

He joined the Sabah State Civil Service as an accountant in 1979 and was 
appointed the State Treasurer in 1994. In 1996, he was then appointed 
the Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Finance (Sabah). He had also 
served in several other key appointments such as the Chief Executive 
Officer/Executive Director of Sabah Bank Berhad and Sabah Development 
Bank, Group Chief Executive of Innoprise Corporation Sdn. Bhd. and 
General Manager of Ko-Nelayan. His last appointment before he took up 
his present position was the Director of the State Economic Planning Unit 
(Sabah).

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi holds 20,000 shares in Suria Capital and has no 
family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder nor has any 
conflict of interest with Suria Capital.
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Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, 69, was appointed as Director of Suria 
Capital on 6 June 1996 and as the Chairman from 1 July 2001 until  
20 May 2002. He was made the Managing Director of Suria Capital from 
14 September 2001 until 1 February 2004. He chairs the Remuneration 
Committee and is a member of the Audit Committee of the Board. He also 
sits on the Board of the Company’s subsidiary, Suria Bumiria Sdn. Bhd.. 
Datuk Ismail, a Malaysian, is the Chairman of the Sabah Public Services 
Commission. 

Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar holds a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) majoring in 
International Studies from the University of Staffordshire, United Kingdom. 
He also has a postgraduate Diploma in Development Administration from 
the University of Birmingham.

Once a senior member of staff in the Sabah State’s Civil Service under 
various appointments,he joined Sabah Development Bank Berhad in 1985 
as a Training Manager and moved his way up to Executive Director until 
he left in 1998. He was the Chairman of Saham Sabah Berhad, a state-
sponsored unit trust management company until 2001. 

Datuk Ismail has no securities holding in Suria Capital and its subsidiaries 
and no family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder nor 
has any conflict of interest with Suria Capital.

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. Johari, J.P.
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. Johari, 58, joined the Board of Suria Capital 
on 24 August 1996 as a Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director. 
He also sits as a member of the Nomination/ Appointment Committee of 
the Board. Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub, a Malaysian, is the President/Chief 
Executive of Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority 
(SEDIA). He also sits on the Boards of Warisan Harta Sabah Sdn. Bhd., 
Institute for Development Studies (IDS) Sabah, Creative Business Services 
Sdn. Bhd., IDS Infotech Sdn. Bhd., Borneo Natural Products Sdn. Bhd., 
Konsortium Pasifik Sama Sdn. Bhd., Faradale Development (Sabah) Sdn. 
Bhd., Sabah Techno-Park Corporation Sdn. Bhd., Borneo Essential Oils 
Sdn. Bhd. and Kimanis Power Sdn. Bhd.. He is also the Chairman/Acting 
Managing Director of the Sabah Institute for Small and Medium Enterprise. 

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub holds a Bachelor of Science (Hons.) from the 
University of Sussex and a Master of Science (Liberal Studies) from 
the University of Manchester, England. In 1982, he obtained his PhD in 
Sociology from the University of Salford, England.

In 1983, he joined the Sabah State Civil Service as an Assistant Director 
(Research and Consultancy) in the Sabah Chief Minister’s Department. 
A year later he was made the Principal Assistant Director (Management 
Development). In 1985 he joined the Institute for Development Studies  
(IDS) Sabah as an Associate Director (Social Affairs) and later moved up 
to Deputy Chief Executive/Senior Research Fellow in 1991. In 1994, he 
became as the Executive Director/Chief Executive of the Institute until 
February 2009. 

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub has no securities holding in Suria Capital and 
its subsidiaries and no family relationship with any Director and/or major 
shareholder nor has any conflict of interest with Suria Capital.

Board of Directors’ Profile cont’d
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Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming, 71, was appointed to 
the Board of Suria Capital on 1 July 2001 as an Independent and Non-
Executive Director. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board 
and member of the Risk Management Committee. 

Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming is a member of Malaysian 
Institute of Accountants, member of The Malaysian Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants, Fellow of Certified Practising Accountants, Australia, 
Fellow of The Malaysian Institute of Chartered Secretaries & Administrators 
and Fellow of Malaysian Institute of Taxation. He has been practising as 
a Chartered Accountant since 1974 with V.M. Lai & Co. Datuk Anthony 
Lai is a Director of V.M. Lai Tax Service Sdn. Bhd., S.P. Satria Sdn. Bhd. 
and Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. He served as a Senior Accountant from 1968 
until 1971 with TH Liew & Co. and as a Management Consultant cum 
Accountant in 1972 up to 1974 with Sri Kedua Sdn. Bhd. 

He holds 20,000 securities holdings in Suria Capital and has no family 
relationship with any Director and/ or major shareholder nor has any 
conflict of interest with Suria Capital.

Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming has served the Board as an 
Independent Director for more than nine (9) years. The shareholders during 
the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting on 27 June 2013 had approved his 
re-appointment under Section 129 of the Companies Act, 1965. In view of 
the implementation of the 9-year tenure policy as recommended by the 
Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012, he will retain office until 
the conclusion of the Thirty First Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Board of Directors’ Profile cont’d

Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub, 49, joined the Board of Suria Capital on 
1 July 2001 as an Independent and Non-Executive Director. He sits as 
a member of the Investment Committee of the company. He is currently 
the Chief Executive/Executive Director of Institute for Development 
Studies (IDS) Sabah and also as the Executive Chairman of Kerjaya Borneo 
Sdn. Bhd.. He is also the Managing Director of Jahsia Construction Sdn. 
Bhd. and Jahsia Sdn. Bhd.; and Director of Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd., S.P. 
Satria Sdn. Bhd., Rumah Anak Yatim Tambunan, Employees Provident 
Fund (KWSP), Serudong Power Sdn. Bhd. and also President of Sabah 
Bumiputera Chamber of Commerce since 2009. He was the former 
Chairman of Abad Mesra Sdn. Bhd. and was a Director of City Finance Bhd 
from 1994 to 2000.

Datuk Hasnol, a Malaysian, holds a postgraduate Diploma in Business 
Administration and a Masters Degree in Business Administration both from 
the University of Wales, United Kingdom.

He has become a Non-Independent & Non-Executive Director by virtue 
of his appointment as Chief Executive/ Executive Director of Institute for 
Development Studies (IDS) Sabah on 2 April 2009. He holds 2,500 shares 
in Suria Capital and has no family relationship with any Director and/or 
major shareholder nor has any conflict of interest with Suria Capital.
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Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive 

Tuan Hj. Salimi Bin Maralim, 64, was appointed to the Board of Suria 
Capital on 3 May 2010 as an Independent & Non-Executive Director. He 
sits as a member on the Appointment/ Nomination, Remuneration, Audit 
and Risk Management Committees of the Board. He began his career 
with the Sabah State Civil Service in 1970 working in several of the State 
Government’s Departments such as the Chief Minister’s Department, 
Secretary to the Public Service Commission and the Deputy Director in the 
State Economic Planning Unit. He then retired from the civil service on 7 
May 2006 and his last position was as the Deputy Director with the State 
Public Service Department. Prior to his last appointment as the Deputy 
Director in 2003, he was seconded to Ko-Nelayan as the General Manager. 

Tuan Hj. Salimi, a Malaysian, holds a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in Public 
Administration and Management from University of Kent at Canterbury, 
England, United Kingdom. Prior to that he obtained his Diploma in 
Management Sciences from INTAN and holds a Diploma in Training 
Management from Institute of Training and Development (ITD), United 
Kingdom. 

He has no securities holding in Suria Capital and its subsidiaries and no 
family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder nor has any 
conflict of interest with Suria Capital. 

Tuan Hj. Salimi, will retire at the Thirty First Annual General Meeting and 
will not seek re-election. Hence, he will retain office until the close of the 
said meeting.

Board of Directors’ Profile cont’d

Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas, 56, was appointed as the 
Director of Suria Capital on 18 May 2011. He sits as member of the 
Investment Committee of the Board. He is currently the Chief Executive 
Officer of Warisan Harta Sabah Sdn. Bhd. since 1 March 2011. Prior to this, 
he was the Executive Director of Suria Capital from 10 December 1996 
until he was appointed as the Group Managing Director of the Company 
on 1 February 2004. He held the position until 28 April 2009. He is also 
a Board Member of Warisan Harta Sabah’s subsidiary companies namely, 
WHSB Trading Sdn. Bhd., WHSB Nominee (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd., WHSB 
Property Development Sdn. Bhd. and WHSB Plantation Sdn. Bhd. He also 
sits as a Board Member in Celcom Timur (Sabah) Sdn. Bhd..

Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar, a Malaysian, graduated with a Bachelor of Economics 
(Hons) from Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia (UKM). He had obtained his 
postgraduate Diploma in Economic Development from the University of 
Swansea, United Kingdom.

He began his career in 1980 with the Sabah State Civil Service serving the 
State’s Economic Planning Unit, the State’s Ministry of Communication and 
Works and the State’s Ministry of Finance in various positions. He was the 
Secretary General of the Sabah Bumiputra Chamber of Commerce (SBCC) 
from 1983 until 1988. A year later, he was attached to the Financial Review 
Section of the State’s Ministry of Finance until 1994. In 1995, he was 
appointed as Senior Confidential Secretary to the Chief Minister of Sabah 
under the Chief Minister’s Department.

He holds 57,503 shares in Suria Capital and has no family relationship with 
any Director and/or major shareholder nor has any conflict of interest with 
Suria Capital.
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Muluk Bin Samad
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Encik Muluk Bin Samad, 57, was appointed as a Director of Suria Capital on 
26 June 2011. He chairs the Risk Management Committee and a member 
of the Remuneration Committee of the Board. He also sits on the Board of 
Sabah Credit Corporation. He is currently the Deputy Permanent Secretary 
(Management) of the State’s Ministry of Finance. In August 2003, he was 
the Deputy Director (Macro) of Economic Planning Unit, Chief Minister’s 
Department until February 2010. He gained his corporate experience when 
he was seconded to Sabah Electricity Sdn. Bhd. (SESB) as the General 
Manager (Corporate Affairs) from 1 August 1999 to July 2003. 

He began his career in 1980 as an Executive Officer at the Training and 
Career Department in Chief Minister’s Department. He was seconded to 
MUIS on 1 January 1986 where he served in various capacities such as 
Investment Assistant Officer, Finance Officer, Deputy Treasurer and Acting 
Treasurer of the Council.

Encik Muluk, a Malaysian, graduated with a Bachelor of Science in 
Business Administration from Indiana State University, Indiana, United 
States. He obtained his Master of Business Administration (International 
Business) from University of New Haven, Connecticut, United States. He 
also holds a Diploma in Business Studies from Institut Teknologi MARA, 
Shah Alam, Selangor. 

He holds no shares in Suria Capital and has no family relationship with any 
Director and/or major shareholders nor has any conflict of interest with 
Suria Capital.

Board of Directors’ Profile cont’d

Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P. 
Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, 56, was appointed to the Board of Suria 
Capital on 22 June 2012 as an Independent and Non-Executive Director. 
He chairs the Nomination / Appointment Committee and is a member of 
Audit Committee of the Board. Datuk Madius is currently the Chairman of 
Malaysia Timber Industrial Board since June 2010. He is also the Chairman 
of Forest Plantation Development Sdn. Bhd. since August 2009. Prior to 
this, he was the Chairman of the Sabah Cultural Board from May 2003 to 
August 2009.

Datuk Madius began his career in Forestry as a Research Officer 
(Silviculturist) in Sabah Forestry Development Authority (SAFODA) in 
1983. He then joined Institute for Development Studies Sabah (IDS) as a 
Research Associate in 1985. In 1994, Datuk Madius was appointed as the 
Executive Director for Institute for Indigenous Economic Progress (INDEP) 
Sabah until 1999.
 
Datuk Madius, a Malaysian, holds a Masters Degree in Development 
Management from Asian Institute of Management (AIM), Makati, 
Philippines. He obtained his Bachelor of Science (Forestry) from Universiti 
Pertanian Malaysia (UPM), Selangor and his Certificate in Forest 
Plantation Management and Forestry Research under Japan International 
Cooperation Agency (JICA) in 1985.

He has no securities holding in Suria Capital and its subsidiaries and no 
family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder nor has any 
conflict of interest with Suria Capital.
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Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali, 66, was appointed to the Board of Suria 
Capital on 29 August 2013 as a Non-Independent and Non-Executive 
Director. He also sits as a Director in the Company’s subsidiary namely 
Suria Bumiria Sdn. Bhd.. He is currently the Chairman of Warisan Harta 
Sabah Sdn. Bhd.. He began his career with the Sabah State Civil Service 
in 1976 as the Development Officer (Division 1) under the Ministry of 
Industrial Development where he served until 1978. From 1979 until 1981, 
he served as the State Assemblyman for Balung constituency (N.47) 
of Tawau and between 1981 to 1985, he was appointed as a Political 
Secretary. In 1985, he was appointed as the Deputy Chairman of Sabah 
Ports Authority and in the following year (1986) he became the Chairman 
of Ko-Nelayan Sabah. Between 1986 to 1990 he sat on the Board of Sabah 
Finance Berhad. In 1990, he served as the Chairman of SAMA (Sabah 
Marketing) group of companies until 1992. In 2004, he was again elected 
as the State Assemblyman for Balung (N.55) Tawau and was appointed 
as the Chairman of Majlis Ugama Islam Sabah (MUIS) until 2010. In May 
2013, he was re-elected as the Assemblyman for Balung, Tawau.

Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali, a Malaysian, holds a Bachelor of Science 
Degree in Applied Economics from University of East London, United 
Kingdom.

He has no securities holdings in Suria Capital and its subsidiaries and no 
family relationship with any Director and/ or major shareholders nor has 
any conflict of interest with Suria Capital.

Board of Directors’ Profile cont’d

Mohamad Nor Bin Tahir
(Alternate to Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas)

Encik Mohamad Nor Bin Tahir, 51, was appointed as the Alternate Director 
to Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas on 15 June 2011. He was 
appointed as the Group Executive Director of Angkatan Hebat Sdn. Bhd. 
(subsidiary of Warisan Harta Sabah Sdn. Bhd.) since February 2014. Prior 
to his appointment, he held the post of General Manager of Warisan Harta 
Sabah Sdn. Bhd. from 1 February 2011 and State Manager of Permodalan 
Nasional Berhad/ Amanah Saham Nasional Bhd from January 2003.

He began his career in 1985 as an Executive for Mayban Finance Berhad 
(now known as Maybank Group) and he was appointed as the Branch 
Manager of Mayban Finance Berhad in 1990. He then joined Southern 
Finance Berhad (now known as CIMB Group) as Regional Marketing 
Manager in 1995 before he joined Permodalan Nasional Berhad.

Encik Mohamad Nor Bin Tahir, a Malaysian, graduated with a Bachelor in 
Business Administration (Hons) from Universiti Teknologi MARA (UiTM) 
and holds a Diploma in Business Studies from Universiti Teknologi MARA 
(UiTM). He also holds professional license of Certified Financial Planner 
(CFP) from Financial Planning Association of Malaysia (FPAM).

He has no securities holdings in Suria Capital and its subsidiaries and no 
family relationship with any Director and/ or major shareholders nor has 
any conflict of interest with Suria Capital.
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1. Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi
 Group Managing Director

2.  Ng Kiat Min
 Chief Financial Officer

3.  Mohd. Sahid Bin Hj. Nawab Khan
 Chief Operating Officer 

 (Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd.)

4.  Loh Boon Hon
 Executive Director 

 (S.P. Satria Sdn. Bhd.)

5.  Erwin Chua
 Chief Executive Officer 

 (S.P. Satria Logistics Sdn. Bhd.)

Executive & Management Committee Members

6.  Kwong Chou Thien
 General Manager 

 (SCHB Engineering Services Sdn. Bhd.)

7.  Azman Amarashikin
 General Manager 

 (Suria Bumiria Sdn. Bhd.)

8.  Siti Noraishah Binti Azizan
 General Manager 

 (Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd.)

9.  Suryani Binti Mohd. Saidi
 Group Company Secretary/Legal Advisor 

10.  Junita Binti Tajul Ariffin
 Group Human Resource and 

 Administration Manager 

11.  Datin Mariam Binti Mahmun
 Senior Manager, Group Corporate Affairs & 

 Communications

12.  Mary Sii Lee Mieng
 Senior Manager, Group Internal Audit

13.  Asmah Binti Mohd Nor
 Senior Manager, Group Risk Management

14.  Hikmah Rahmaniyah Binti Ahmad Khatib
 Manager, Group Finance 

15.  Imelda Marie Milus
 Assistant Manager, Group Information Technology
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Corporate Social Responsibility

SuriaGroup strives to 
create an environment 
where all employees  
can excel. 

SuriaGroup continued with its commitment to the society through its 
corporate social responsibility (CSR) programmes in 2013. Focusing on 
the key areas: community, environment, market relations and manpower; 
the company extends full support in advancing these strategic pillars.

While we place the importance of business healthy growth as the way 
forward, integrating CSR into the Group’s business perspectives is 
likewise considered essential. By embedding these values in our business 
operations, we are able to gain further trust and confidence of our 
stakeholders. 

In recent years, more and more charities and non-governmental 
organisations play an intrinsic role in building the community. Through 
donations and contributions, SuriaGroup has supported the work of these 
organizations. The list of homes and charities benefiting under the Group’s 
charity adoption programmes grows each year; not withstanding the one 
on one visits carried out by the Group. During the year, we remained close 
to recurring aid recipients whilst welcoming new establishment to our care-
giving list. Emmanuel Homes, a children shelter located in Kudat interior and 
San Damiano Girls’ Hostel in Kiulu both received our assistance to upgrade 
their facilities. During a Christmas visit, the Group’s engineering arm, 
SCHB Engineering Services, had the opportunity to inspect San Damiano 
for structural assistance; apart from sharing the festive cheers, and has 
since maintained a close rapport with the hostel. Volunteerism among 
employees was alive and well when dozens of employees had turned up 
with family members to support a fund raising Walkathon by special needs 
school, Seri Mengasih Centre. SuriaGroup had sent the largest contingent 
for this event joined by more than 50 employees including family members.

The Group is also keen to see environmental stewardship taking 
precedence in the lives of its employees and the community. In 2013, the 
Group embarked on collaboration with Universiti Malaysia Sabah’s Borneo 
Marine Research Centre to fund two marine ecology studies. The grants 
will study the feasibility of coral restoration at Sapangar Bay Container 
Port while the second research is based on the ecological connectivity 
of coral reef with sea grass and mangrove. SuriaGroup feels obligated to 
gravitate towards green ideologies in its business plan and has taken a 
major step towards responsibly managing its ocean based trade. Suria 
Capital has supported a few more conservation program in 2013 where it 
had provided funds for the Borneon Sun Bear Conservation Center (BSBCC) 

in Sandakan. BSBCC is dedicated towards the conservation of this South 
East Asian native which is threatened with a declining population. 

SuriaGroup has also involved itself in taking care of the environment of 
our local islands by joining forces with various establishments for Kota 
Kinabalu City Hall’s “Love Gaya Island” cleanliness campaign.

In 2013, Suria Capital’s series of organized luncheon talks had brought to 
the forefront topics encouraging corporations to adopt good governance. 
Talks were presented by the Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission 
(MACC) on the “Whistleblower Protection Act 2010 and Corporate 
Governance” and later in the year, Ernst & Youngs’ Partner and ASEAN 
Risk Leader had talked on “Enterprise Risk Management: The Art of War”. 
Suria Capital has made a CSR commitment to organize these bi-annual 
events in support of better standards and business practice.

SuriaGroup strives to create an environment where all employees can 
excel. By advocating courses on competency and leadership development, 
employees are provided with paths for advancement while acquiring 
desired skill sets. In this respect, Sabah Ports, the subsidiary has signed a 
memorandum of understanding with UniKL to conduct the internationally 
recognized ‘PQE Logistics’ program which awards graduates with a 
certification from the Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport, United 
Kingdom. Ensuring employees achieve an overall balance, the subsidiary 
has initiated a port-level launch of the 5S methodology. The launching 
was successful in rallying employees to adopt a healthier, cleaner and 
systematic way of working. The Group furthermore had launched the 
“Anugerah Pelajar Cemerlang” as a means to award excellence in 
education among the children of SuriaGroup employees. 

By establishing a high performance culture and a cohesive workforce, the 
company endeavors to attract and retain talents whilst making SuriaGroup 
a preferred place of employment.

For the coming years, we will continue to reach out further into a wider 
segment of those communities in need of assistance with improved 
quality of CSR programmes. As we see it, the evolvement of corporate 
citizenry has transformed CSR from mere philanthropic value to being a 
tool for business growth. Progressing with these changes, the Group’s 
CSR investments will be strategically managed to produce impactful and 
sustainable results.
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Corporate Social Responsibility cont’d

Blood Donation Drive at Sandakan Port in 
collaboration with the Duchess of Kent Hospital, 
Sandakan.

The Group’s Breaking of Fast Ceremony and Tarawih Prayers with childrens from Rumah Kebajikan 
Kanak-Kanak Kota Kinabalu.

Donation from Tawau Port to students of 
Madrasah Darul Hidayah and Madrasah Ad-
Diniah Ar-Rahmaniah of Sungai Imam, and 
Maahad Tahfiz Ashabusyahid, Bombalai, Tawau.

20 May 2013

SuriaGroup Blood Donation Drive 2013 jointly 
organised with Universiti Teknologi MARA 
(UiTM) Sabah.

12 June 2013

Sabah Ports adopts and donates to Emmanuel 
Homes, Kudat.

29 June 2013

GMD handing over Hari Raya goodies for 
members of the security forces to the Chief 
Minister of Sabah.

25 July 2013 26 July 2013

Suria Capital made Ramadan’s contribution to 
the underprivileged during a ceremony with the 
Chief Minister of Sabah Y.B. Datuk SP Musa Hj. 
Aman held at Masjid Al-Faj’r in Taman Fajar, 
Sandakan.

28 July 2013

2 August 2013

24 |   SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD



Corporate Social Responsibility cont’d

Luncheon Talk series for CEOs of State’s GLCs 
on Enterprise Risk Management - The Art of 
War.

Supporting the Love Gaya Island Program. SuriaGroup staff, led by CFO, participating in the charity walk for Seri Mengasih Centre, home for 
special needs children.

SCHB Engineering Services Sdn. Bhd. and S.P. 
Satria Sdn. Bhd. brought Christmas cheers at 
San Damiano Girls Hostel, Kiulu.

Giving hope to strokees through donation by 
Suria Bumiria Sdn. Bhd. to National Stroke 
Association of Malaysia (NASAM Sabah), Kota 
Kinabalu.

Chairman and CFO wih Senior Management 
distributing ‘ang-pow’ and gifts to children from 
Rumah Kebajikan Kanak-Kanak Kota Kinabalu 
(RKKK) during Chinese New Year.

Blood Donation co-organised by Kota Kinabalu 
Port in Aid of Sabah Thalassemia Society.

19 September 2013

10 November 2013 7 December 2013

12 December 2013

19 December 2013 8 February 2014 27 February 2014
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Highlights of Events

12 January 2013
GMD bids farewell to Tuan Haji Abdul 
Kadir Bin Hj Mohd. Kassim, one of 
the longest serving Directors of Suria 
Capital Holdings Berhad.

19 April 2013
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) 
signing ceremony between Sabah 
Ports Sdn. Bhd. and Joint Consultative 
Committee (JCC).

19 April 2013
GMD launched the Sabah Ports’ 5S 
Practice Program.

17 May 2013
Sabah Ports’ Appreciation Dinner with 
port users held at Lahad Datu Port.

20 May - 24 August  
2013
SuriaGroup Sports Carnival 2013.

22 May 2013
The signing ceremony for the Jesselton 
Quay Joint Venture between Suria Capital 
Holdings Berhad & SBC Corporation 
Berhad in the presence of Suria’s 
Chairman and its Board of Directors.

23 May 2013
SuriaGroup celebrates Kaamatan 
Festival 2013.

31 May - 3 June 2013
SuriaGroup’s Fourth Expedition to 
Maliau Basin.

1

1

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

2

2

3

3
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Highlights of Events cont’d

27 June 2013
Suria Capital Holdings Berhad’s 30th 
Annual General Meeting.

22 August 2013
Sabah Ports Toastmasters Club 4th 
Installation Dinner.

10-12 September 
2013
SuriaGroup Team Building Programme 
for the Management.

21 October 2013
S.P. Satria Logistics Sdn. Bhd. signs 
pact with Petro Summit for Marine 
Bunker Fuel Supply.

24 October 2013
Suria Capital Holdings Berhad held its 
Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM).

26 October 2013
Suria Capital participated in iCapital’s 
Investor Day 2013, held at Kuala 
Lumpur Convention Centre (KLCC).

1 November 2013
1001 Arabian Nights was the theme for 
Suria Capital’s Staff Dinner.

9

10
13

13

14

1411

15

15

11

12

12

10

9
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7 November 2013
Memorandum of Agreement (MoA) 
signed between Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. 
and Universiti Kuala Lumpur (UniKL).

16 November 2013
Sabah Ports Toastmasters Club 
receiving its 3rd consecutive President’s 
Distinguished Club Award at Medan 
2013 Convention.

6 November 2013
Customs, Immigration, Quarantine and 
Security (CIQS) Centre launched its 
operations.

6 November 2013
Star Cruise’s first berthing at Kota 
Kinabalu Port was welcomed with 
cultural performance.

16

16

19

20

20 November 2013
SuriaGroup’s Outstanding Achievement 
Award for children of staff who excelled 
in UPSR, PMR and SPM exams.

8 February 2014
Chinese New Year 2014 - Year of the 
Horse-celebration with the public at 
Jesselton Point, organised by Suria 
Bumiria Sdn. Bhd..

20

21

21

17

17

18

18

Highlights of Events cont’d

19
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Suria in the News
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Suria in the News cont’d

30 |   SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD



WHEN PEOPLE 
ARE INSPIRED

We provide our employees a conducive environment in which they are 
encouraged to nurture their own potentials and achieve excellence. We care 
for their welfare and long-term career development that makes SuriaGroup    
     a preferred place of employment and centre for creativity and innovation.



Share Price & Volume Traded 2013

Year 2013 - Monthly Volume Traded and Highest-Lowest Share Prices

 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

High   1.64   1.60   1.53   1.59   1.77   1.86   1.86   1.80   1.77   1.89   2.35   2.66 

Low   1.61   1.56   1.50   1.56   1.71   1.83   1.83   1.76   1.73   1.86   2.26   2.60 

Daily Average
  Volume Traded   190,110   61,200   76,453   119,836   465,257   163,365   84,026   117,665   39,840   243,482   719,160   333,267

Total Volume ('000)  3,802.2  979.2   1,452.6   2,636.4   9,770.4   3,267.3   1,932.6   2,353.3   796.8   5,356.6   14,383.2   6,998.6 

Year 2013 – Daily Volume Traded and Highest-Lowest Share Prices
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Statement of Corporate Governance

INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors of Suria Capital adopts and practices a high standard of corporate governance in conducting the affairs and business of 
the Group. The Board views this as a fundamental part of its responsibilities to protect and enhance long term shareholder value and the financial 
performance of the Group, while taking into account the interests of other stakeholders. In tandem with this, the Board is fully committed to the 
maintenance of a high standard of corporate governance by supporting and implementing the best practices and principles as laid out in the 
Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012 (MCCG 2012) and Chapter 15 of the listing requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
(BMSB). Apart from the above, the Board had also on 14 May 2007 approved SuriaGroup Board Charter to be used in providing guidelines to the 
Board and the management (including subsidiaries) in improving their effectiveness, effective day to day operations and to fulfil their fundamental 
roles and responsibilities at best practice level. The Charter had been drafted based on the “GLC Transformation Manual”.

THE DIRECTORS

Composition and Balance of The Board

The Board comprises experienced Directors with a wide and varied range of expertise. The Board currently has twelve (12) Directors consisting 
of one (1) Independent Non-Executive Chairman, one (1) Non-Independent Executive Group Managing Director, five (5) Non-Independent Non-
Executive Directors, four (4) Independent Non-Executive Directors and one (1) Alternate Director. The current composition complies with BMSB's 
requirements in terms of the number of independent non-executive directors in the composition of the Board. The individual Directors bring a 
diverse range of skills and backgrounds. In view of the composition of the Board, and having regard to the calibre of the Directors and their range of 
experience, the Board believes that the interests of investors including the Group's minority shareholders and the public are adequately protected 
and advanced.

There is also a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman (who had never been the CEO of the Company) and Group Managing Director to 
ensure that there is a balance of power and authority in managing the Group. The Group Managing Director reports to the Board and seeks approval 
from the Board on major matters as and when necessary. The Chairman, having the necessary skills and experience to manage the Board, encourages 
healthy debate and ensures that resolutions are put to a vote. Hence, Board decisions reflect the collective will of the Board and not the views of an 
individual or group.

Other Information on Directors

None of the Directors has any family relationship with any Directors of the Company, its subsidiaries and/ or the major Shareholders of the 
Company. None of the Directors have been convicted within the past ten (10) years and all Directors have no conflict of interest with the Company.

Principal Responsibility of the Board

The Board maintains effective control of the Group. This includes responsibility for reviewing and adopting the Management's proposals on Group's 
operational policies, strategic business and action plans, including setting the annual budget for the Group. The Board's other primary functions 
include regular overseeing of the Group's business operations and performance; and ensuring the existence of appropriate processes and internal 
controls to measure and manage business risks in general and specifically, operational, credit, market and liquidity risk.

At each regularly scheduled meeting, the Board will review the financial and operational performance of the Group against the annual budget 
previously approved by the Board for that year. Specific responsibilities have been delegated to the Board's Committees, all of which have their 
clearly defined terms of reference. These Committees have the authority to examine the issues tabled before them and thereafter report back to 
the Board with recommendations and comments.
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The Committees established are as follows:

•  Nomination/Appointment Committee
•  Remuneration Committee
•  Audit Committee
•  Risk Management Committee
• Investment Committee

For further information on the roles of the Committees, kindly refer to Board Committees on Page 38 to 39 of the Annual Report.

Supply of Information

All scheduled meetings held during the year were preceded by a formal notice issued by the Company Secretary in consultation with the Chairman. 
The Chairman ensures that all Directors have full and timely access to information, with board papers distributed in advance of meetings. The 
notice of each meeting is accompanied by the minutes of preceding board meetings, together with relevant information and documents for matters 
on the agenda. Senior management of the Group may be invited to attend board meetings to provide detailed explanations and clarifications on 
issues that are considered during the meetings. The Directors have access to all information within the Group in furtherance of their duty. They also 
have access to the advice and services of the senior management of the Group and the Group Company Secretary, and independent professionals 
as and when required. From time to time, the Directors are also provided with the latest updates on the industry developments in which the Group 
is engaged and on the rules and regulations relating to the day to day running of the Group that are imposed by the relevant regulatory authorities.

Meetings and Attendence

The Director’s commitment in carrying out their duties and responsibilities is affirmed by their full attendance at the board meetings and held during 
the financial year ended 31 December 2013, as reflected below:

 Name of Director Attended Meetings Percentage

 Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego 9/9 100%

 Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi 9/9 100%

 Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P. 8/9 89%

 Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. Johari, J.P. 8/9 89%

 Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming, J.P. 9/9 100%

 Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub 9/9 100%

 Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim, J.P. 9/9 100%

 Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas 9/9 100%

 Muluk Bin Samad 7/9 78%

 Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P. 6/9 67%

 Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali¹ 2/2 100%

 Datuk Hj. Ramlee Bin Marahaban² 3/6 50%

Notes:
1. Appointed on 29 August 2013
2. Resigned on 11 July 2013
 

Statement of Corporate Governance cont’d
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Directors' Training

All Board members have completed the Mandatory Accreditation Programme in accordance with the Listing Requirements.

The Board members continued to attend various programmes as well as retreats organised by the Company to keep themselves abreast of 
developments in the economy and industry. In addition, the Directors are also briefed from time to time during Board Meetings by Group staff on 
any changes in laws and regulations that are relevant to the Group’s operations.

The Group Company Secretary will also facilitate in organizing seminars, workshops and training sessions for Directors.

The details for the training programmes attended by the Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2013 are summarized below:

  No. Directors & Training Date

1. Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego
 • Director Duties, Regulatory Updates & Governance Seminar for Directors of PLC 2013 29 January 2013
 • Directors’ Remuneration Seminar 2013 “The Best Practice” 28 February 2013
 • Audit Committee Conference 2013 12 March 2013
 • Corporate Fraud Control Conference 2013 3 & 4 July 2013
 • Enterprise Risk Management “The Art of War” 19 September 2013

2. Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi
 • World of Risk Based Auditing 17 & 18 January 2013
 • Enterprise of Risk Management “The Art of War” 19 September 2013
 • MIA Conference 2013 26 & 27 November 2013

3. Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P.
 • World of Risk Based Auditing 17 & 18 January 2013
 • Directors’ Remuneration Seminar 2013 “The Best Practice” 28 February 2013
 • Enterprise Risk Management “The Art Of War” 19 September 2013
 • Inaugural ASEAN Corporate Governance Summit 2013 6 & 7 November 2013

4. Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. Johari, J.P.
 • Enterprise Risk Management “The Art of War” 19 September 2013

5. Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming, J.P.
 • World of Risk Based Auditing 17 & 18 January 2013 

• Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards 8 & 9 May 2013
 • National Tax Conference 2013 24 & 25 June 2013
 • Enterprise Risk Management “The Art of War” 19 September 2013
 • MIA Conference 2013 26 & 27 November 2013

6. Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub
 • Enterprise Risk Management “The Art of War” 19 September 2013
 • Inaugural ASEAN Corporate Governance Summit 2013 6 & 7 November 2013

7. Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim, J.P.
 • World of Risk Based Auditing 17 & 18 January 2013
 • Directors’ Remuneration Seminar 2013 “The Best Practice” 28 February 2013
 •  Enterprise Risk Management "The Art of War” 19 September 2013
 •  Evaluating Capital Investments & Projects for Company Directors 30 September 2013
 •  Inaugural ASEAN Corporate Governance Summit 2013 6 & 7 November 2013

Statement of Corporate Governance cont’d
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  No. Directors & Training Date

8. Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas
 • Enterprise of Risk Management “The Art of War” 19 September 2013

9. Muluk Bin Samad
 •  World of Risk Based Auditing 17 & 18 January 2013
 •  Directors’ Remuneration Seminar 2013 “The Best Practice” 28 February 2013
 •  Enterprise Risk Management “The Art of War” 19 September 2013
 •  Evaluating Capital Investments & Projects for Company Directors 30 September 2013
 •  Inaugural ASEAN Corporate Governance Summit 2013 6 & 7 November 2013

10. Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P.
 • World of Risk Based Auditing 17 & 18 January 2013
 •  Enterprise Risk Management “The Art of War” 19 September 2013

11. Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali
 •  Enterprise Risk Management “The Art of War” 19 September 2013
 •  Mandatory Accreditation Programme (MAP) for Directors of Public Listed Companies 6 & 7 November 2013

Appointments To The Board

The Nomination/Appointment Committee is responsible for making recommendations for any appointment to the Board including those of its 
subsidiaries. In making these recommendations, the Nomination/Appointment Committee considers the required mix of skills and experience that 
the Directors should bring to the Board.

During the year, there were several changes in Suria Capital Board’s composition as follow:

  Name Designation Remark

Datuk Hj. Ramlee Bin Marahaban Non Independent Non Executive Resigned on 11 July 2013

Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali Non Independent Non Executive Appointed on 29 August 2013 

Re-Election of Directors

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, at least one third of the Directors (except for the Managing Director) for the time being 
or, if their number is not a multiple of three then the number nearest to but not exceeding one third, shall retire and be eligible for re-election at 
each Annual General Meeting. 

The Nomination/Appointment Committee is responsible to recommend to the Board candidates for all directorships to be approved by the 
shareholders or the Board. At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the Directors listed in the Notice of Annual General Meeting on Page 142 
are due to retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors' Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee proposes the Directors' remuneration before tabling to the Board prior to endorsement by the Members during the 
Company’s Annual General Meeting. The Remuneration Committee and the Board also make necessary reference to industry practice involving 
comparable organisations in making the recommendation.

The Remuneration Committee ensures that the executive directors do not participate in making decisions on their own remuneration packages.

Statement of Corporate Governance cont’d
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The details of remuneration receivable by directors of the Company during the year are as follows :

   Group        Company
   2013  2012   2013  2012 
  RM'000  RM'000  RM'000  RM'000

Executive:
Salaries and allowances 366  366  366  366 
Bonus   135  135  135  135 
Defined contribution plan  105  105  105  105 
Estimated money value of benefits-in-kind   23  15  23  15

  629  621  629  621 

Non-Executive:
Fees   356  346  296  346
Other emoluments  303  153  291  127
Estimated money value of benefits-in-kind   -  34  -  34

  659      533     587       507

  1,288    1,154    1,216      1,128

The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the financial year fell within the following bands is analysed below:

    Number of Directors
    2013 2012 

Executive Directors:  
RM600,001 – RM650,000    1  1 

Non-Executive Directors:
Below RM50,000     7   7
RM50,001 - RM100,000     3  3 
RM100,001 – RM150,000     -   1
RM200,001 – RM250,000    1   -
  
For the year 2014, the Board is proposing to revise the Directors’ fee and had appointed a consultant to study the current package and to make 
recommendations based on market practice. The existing directors’ fee has not been revised for more than ten (10) years. The consultant when 
making the recommendation is guided by the MCCG 2012, Chapter 15 of the corporate governance of the Main Market Listing Requirements and 
the Green Book issued by the Putrajaya Committee (2006). 

The Directors’ compensation is an important variable in order to attract and retain capable directors. It is also recognised that the responsibilities 
of the Directors are getting heavier and more diverse. The current fee is inadequate and not based on market practice. Hence, for the year 2014 
onwards it is recommended that the Directors’ fee for the non-Executive Directors be revised from RM30,000.00 to RM60,000.00 per annum.

    

Statement of Corporate Governance cont’d
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Statement of Corporate Governance cont’d

THE BOARD COMMITTEES

In line with the recommendations made under the MCCG 2012 and the requirement for public listed companies to comply with corporate governance 
under the BMSB Listing Requirements, Suria Capital had formed the following committees to assist the Management in its operation towards 
achieving the optimal governance framework:

•  Nomination/Appointment Committee
•  Remuneration Committee
• Audit Committee
•  Risk Management Committee
• Investment Committee

The Group Managing Director also has the service of the Executive Management Committee (EXCOM) to refer to in performing his day-to-day work.

With the establishment of these committees, the Board is well informed of the running of the Group's business and the various areas of risk 
management.

NOMINATION/APPOINTMENT COMMITTEE

The Nomination/Appointment Committee is responsible to recommend to the Board candidates for all directorships to be filled for their approval 
and for submission to the Annual General Meeting for re-appointments or re-elections. The Committee also recommends the appointment of the 
Chief Executive Officer and Senior Management of the Group. The duties and responsibilities of the Committee include:

•  Recommend to the Board, candidates for all directorships to be filled by the Board;
•  Consider, in making its recommendations, candidates for directorships proposed by the Group Managing Director and, within the bounds 

of practicability, by any other Senior Officer or any Director or Shareholder;
•  Recommend to the Board, Directors to fill the seats on Board Committees;
•  Examine the size of the Board with a view to determine the number of directors on the Board in relation to its effectiveness;
•  Ensure that at every Annual General Meeting, one-third (1/3) of the Directors for the time being shall retire from the office in accordance 

with the Company’s Articles of Association;
•  Review annually its required mix of skills and experience and other qualities, including core competencies which Non-Executive Directors 

should bring to the Board and disclose the same in the annual report; 
•  Assess annually the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the committees of the Board and the contribution of each individual Director 

based on the process implemented by the Board; and
• The Nomination/ Appointment Committee held one (1) meeting for the financial year ended 31 December 2013.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible to review and recommend to the Board the Group’s remuneration policy including that of the Group’s 
Executive Directors to ensure that their remuneration reflects the industry practice and their contributions to the Group’s growth and profitability. 
The remuneration policy also supports the Group’s objectives and Shareholders’ interests. The determination of the remuneration of the Non-
Executive Directors which are paid in the form of monthly fees and attendance allowance is decided by the General Meeting of members based on 
the recommendation of the Board after making prior reference to industry practice involving comparable organisation.

The Committee has held four (4) meetings for the financial year ended 31 December 2013.
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Statement of Corporate Governance cont’d

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was previously known as the Audit & Risk Management Committee and on 29 January 2010, the Board decided to separate 
the Committee into the Audit Committee and Risk Management Committee respectively to enable the Audit Committee focus on compliance with 
auditing and accounting standards.

The Committee meets with the External and the Internal Auditors at least twice annually to discuss the financial statements and their audit findings. 
It also meets with the External Auditors whenever it deems necessary.

The minutes of the Committee meetings are formally tabled to the Board for noting and for action when necessary. 

In addition to the duties and responsibilities set out under its terms of reference, the Committee acts as a forum for discussion of internal 
control issues and contributes to the Board’s review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management systems. The Audit 
Committee also conducts a review of the internal audit function to ensure the adequacy of the scope, functions and resources of Finance Division 
and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work impartially.

The activities of the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out under the Audit Committee Report on page 50.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on 29 January 2010 after the Board decided to separate the Audit & Risk Management into two 
(2) separate Committees, namely the Audit Committee and the Risk Management Committee.

For further information on the roles of the Committee kindly refer to page 44 of the Annual Report.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee is a new committee established by the Board of Suria Capital on the 31 January 2013 with a purpose of reviewing 
and assessing the viability of projects and investment proposed by the management of SuriaGroup. The Investment Committee is responsible 
in assessing the proposal in respect of restructuring of company within the Group, joint venture and collaboration arrangements and any other 
proposal that need to be referred to the Board. 

The Investment Committee has held two (2) meetings for the financial year ended 31 December 2013.

SHAREHOLDERS

Dialogue With Shareholders and Investors 

The Group acknowledges the importance of communicating to its shareholders, investors and analysts. The Board also recognises the importance 
of transparency and accountability to its shareholders and investors. This is done through the Annual General Meeting or the Extraordinary General 
Meeting that serves as the main communication channel and principal forum for dialogue with shareholders, also through the distribution of Annual 
Report to the shareholders and investors.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Suria Capital on 1 March 2007 announced its dividend policy of distributing up to 26% payout ratio on the Company’s net profit to its shareholders 
with effect from the financial year 2006. The Board of Directors on 16 March 2012 had revised the dividend policy upwards and that Suria Capital 
endeavors to distribute up to 35% payout ratio based on the Group’s net profit commencing from the financial year ended 31 December 2011.
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Statement of Corporate Governance cont’d

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

Upon the introduction of the Whistleblower Protection Act 2010, the Management has tasked the Risk Management Department to spearhead the 
formulation of the SuriaGroup Whistleblowing Policy. The Board of Directors had approved the SuriaGroup Whistleblowing Policy on the 28 August 
2012.

By implementing the Whistleblowing Policy in SuriaGroup, it enables the Group to do the following:

•  To monitor any disclosure in a responsible manner by way of internal procedure
• To address and manage a disclosure in an appropriate manner according to gravity or nature of the wrongdoing
• To protect the whistleblower from reprisal as a direct consequences of making a disclosure and to safeguard such person’s confidentiality; 

and
• To treat both the whistleblower and the alleged wrongdoer fairly

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

The Company has applied most of the Principles and Recommendations of the MCCG 2012 during the financial year under review save for 
recommendation in respect of having gender diversity in the Board. The Board recognises the value of having gender diversity in the Board. As an 
initial step, the Board will endeavor to ensure that gender diversity is taken into account in nominating and selecting new directors of the Company 
and will actively seek to identify suitable female candidates to sit in the Board.

During the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company on 27 June 2013, the shareholders had approved the appointment of Datuk Anthony 
Lai @ Lai Kheng Ming as Independent Director under Section 129 of the Companies Act, 1965. Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming 
was appointed as the Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 July 2001 and had served the Board as Independent Director for more than  
nine (9) years. In view of the implementation of the 9-year policy as recommended in the MCCG 2012, he will retain office until the close of the 
Thirty First Annual General Meeting on 24 June 2014.

The Board will continue to make considerable efforts in working towards aligning the Company’s governance framework as far as practicable to 
the principles and Recommendations of the MCCG 2012.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the financial statements of the Group as reported in the quarterly announcements to BMSB and the 
Annual Report to Shareholders, are drawn up in accordance with Companies Act, 1965 and applicable Approved Accounting Standards in Malaysia, 
and so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the end of the reporting period.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in ensuring completeness, accuracy and adequacy of information by reviewing and recommending for 
adoption of information for disclosure. The committee also reviews Group's accounting policies and the changes to these policies as well as 
ensures these financial statements comply with the accounting and regulatory requirements.

The Statement by Directors for preparing the Annual Audited Financial Statements pursuant to Section 169 (15) of the Companies Act, 1965 is set 
out on Page 60 of this Annual Report.

Internal Control

The Board is fully aware and acknowledges their responsibilities to maintain a sound system of internal control that covers not only the financial 
aspects but also the operations, risk management and compliance control to safeguard Shareholders' investment and the Group's assets. The 
key management personnel are tasked with the responsibility to monitor, manage and provide reports to the Board on compliance of procedures, 
financial strength and the business activities of the Group.

An Internal Audit Function has been established that is independent of the activities it audits, to regularly review and appraise the effectiveness 
of the Group's system of internal controls. The Internal Audit Function reports directly to the Audit Committee. Audits are conducted based on 
operational, financial and administrative controls and compliance to the Group's authority limits, policies and procedures; Securities Commission 
and BMSB's Listing Requirements; and other applicable laws and regulations. In addition, Internal Audit Department monitors and checks for 
compliance and standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures across the Group.

The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control is set out on Page 44 of this Annual Report.

Relationship With Auditors

The Board has appropriately established a formal and transparent relationship with the Group's Auditors. The External Auditors have continued 
to report to members of the Group, of their findings that are included as part of the Group's financial reports with respect to this year's audit on 
statutory financial statements.

The Group has established a good working relationship with its auditors through the Audit Committee and the Internal Audit Department. The 
Audit Committee has always maintained a professional relationship with the External Auditors by ensuring the Group takes the necessary action to 
address the key issues highlighted to the Group. Where necessary, meetings with the External Auditors are held. Under its terms of reference, the 
Audit Committee has expressed authority to communicate directly with External and Internal Auditors.

Meetings with External Auditors are held at least twice a year as appropriate to discuss the audit plans, findings and financial statements. External 
Auditors and Internal Auditors may, conversely, call for a meeting with the Audit Committee to discuss issues relating to the financial statements 
and other related matters. Other Directors and Senior Management of the Group attend the Audit Committee Meetings upon invitation. In addition, 
the External Auditors are invited to attend the annual general meeting and are available to answer shareholders' questions on the conduct of the 
statutory audit and the preparation and content of their audit report.

The Audit Committee also reviews the appointment of the Group's External Auditors and the fees payable to them on an annual basis. Whilst the 
External Auditors may be appointed by the Company or Group to provide services in relation to non-audit matters, the relationship with the External 
Auditors is monitored to ensure that their impartiality and independence remains unquestionable. The Audit Committee approves all adhoc non-
audit services and ensures that the objectivity and independence of the External Auditors not compromised.

Responsibility Statement by Directors
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The detailed Audit Committee Report is set out in Pages 50 to 52 of this Annual Report.

MATERIAL CONTRACT

There was no material contract entered into by the Group involving the Directors' and major shareholders' interest subsisting at the end of the year.

IMPOSITION OF SANCTION/PENALTY ON THE GROUP FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

There was no sanction or penalty imposed on the Group, Board Members and Management for the financial year ended 31 December 2013.

Responsibility Statement by Directors cont’d
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AMERICAN DIPOSITORY RECEIPT (ADR) OR GLOBAL DEPOSITORY RECEIPT (GDR) PROGRAMME

During the financial year, the Company did not sponsor any ADR or GDR programme.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None of the Directors have any family relationship with other Directors or major shareholders of the Company. However, Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin 
Hj. Razi, Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming, Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub and Datuk Hj Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas each holds 
20,000; 20,000; 2,500 and 57,503 shares respectively directly in the share capital of the Company.

CONTRACTS RELATING TO LOAN

There is no contract relating to loans by the Company involving Directors and major shareholders.

CONVICTIONS FOR OFFENCES

None of the Directors have been convicted for offences within the past 10 years other than traffic offences, if any.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There were no material contracts between the Company and its subsidiaries involving Directors' and major shareholders' interests.

OPTIONS, WARRANTS OF CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

No options, warrants or convertible securities were issued by the Company during the financial year.

PROFIT GUANRANTEE

During the year, there was no profit guarantee given by the Company.

RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (RRPT)

There were no RRPT entered into during the financial year.

REVALUATIONS OF LANDED PROPERTY

The Company does not have a revaluation policy on landed properties.

SHARE BUYBACKS

During the financial year, there was no share buybacks by the Company.

UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS 

No proceeds were raised by the Company from any corporate proposal.

NON-AUDIT FEES

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013 the amount of non-audit fees paid by the Group is RM37,400.

Additional Compliance Information
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Statement on Risk Management and
Internal Control
INTRODUCTION

In the fast and ever changing environment in which the Group operates, it is well recognised by the Board of Directors (Board) that both the internal 
and external environment has become more complex and demands strong corporate governance. Risk management and internal control play an 
important role in this governance framework, particularly given the broad range of stakeholders impacted by the Group. As such, reporting by 
the Board on risk management and the internal control system within the Group has become an integral part of corporate governance disclosure 
requirements.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES AND ACCOUNTABILITIES

The Board is fully committed to maintain a sound system of risk management and internal control and to review its adequacy, effectiveness and 
integrity. The Board has established an on-going process for identifying, evaluating, managing and monitoring key risks that may impede the 
achievement of the Group’s business objectives. The process is embedded in the Group’s risk management framework and internal control system. 
The process is reviewed on a periodic basis, taking into account changes in the regulatory and business environment, to ensure its continued 
effectiveness, adequacy and integrity.

The Board acknowledges that management of risk is an integral part of business management. The risk management policy and framework and 
internal control system are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure and to achieve business objectives. As such, it can only 
provide a reasonable and not an absolute assurance against material misstatement, fraud or loss.

The Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) and Audit Committee (AC) are established by the Board to work with the management in 
implementing the risk management policy and framework and the internal control system.

The Group Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer are responsible to provide assurance to the Board that the risk management framework 
and internal control system are operating adequately and effectively, in all material aspect, within the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Having regard to managing risk as an inherent part of the Group’s activities, risk management and the on-going improvement in corresponding 
control structures in all significant risk areas including among others, financial, health, safety and environment, and operations remain a key 
focus of the Board in building a successful and sustainable business. Summarised below is a description of the key elements of the Group’s risk 
management practices:

1. Group Risk Management (GRM)

The Group has established the department to assist the BRMC and Group Risk Management Committee (GRMC) in implementing the Group 
risk management policy and framework.  GRM serves as a central platform to assist the subsidiary companies in identifying their principal 
risks and providing assurance on effective implementation of risk management on a Group-wide basis. GRM is responsible for the overall 
coordination of the risk management policy and framework for the Group. 

2. Risk Management System (RMS) 

The system was developed to capture and register all key risks, their causes and consequences; and the current controls that are in place. 
It also captures the action plans to achieve the range of risk tolerance acceptable by the Group. Risk owners provide assurance every 
quarterly that the risks have been reviewed and updated, and action plans are implemented within the agreed timeline to mitigate risks to 
an acceptable range. Risk registers are developed at all levels of the Group and appropriate responses are put in place to mitigate risks. 
The risk registers are monitored by the GRMC on quarterly basis.

At the Group level, a corporate risk profile is established which outlines the significant risks faced by the Group covering the strategic, 
financial, operational, compliance and reputational risks. 
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control cont’d

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

3. Risk Management Policy and Framework 

The main objective of the risk management policy and framework and internal control system is to provide sound risk management to 
safeguard shareholders’ investments, the Group’s assets and other stakeholder interests. The Board is responsible for ensuring that this 
policy and framework is constantly in place, reviewed and monitored and is adequate to effectively manage the risks within the Group. 

4. Risk Management Roles and Responsibilities

Board of Directors An oversight responsibility over all key risks. 

Board Risk 
Management 
Committee (BRMC)

Reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management activities by assessing and continuously 
improving internal controls and systems, particularly those related to key risks.

Group Risk 
Management 
Committee(GRMC)

Review management’s periodic risk management reports and oversight responsibilities over strategic risks in 
the Group and key risks in all subsidiary companies.

Group Risk 
Management (GRM)

GRM is responsible for the overall coordination and implementation of the Group’s Risk Management Policy and 
Framework.

Risk Management 
Working Committee 
– Subsidiaries

Responsible for the management of key risks in all business units and ensuring that necessary control 
mechanisms and improvement initiatives are delivered effectively. 

All Employees Responsible to identify, assess and manage risk within the scope of their assigned roles and responsibilities. 

The Group identifies risks specific to the Group together with their corresponding controls as follows:

Risk Category Definition Risk Management Process

Strategic Risk Risks which affect the overall direction of 
the business that arising from inappropriate 
business goals; failure in formulation, 
evaluation and selection or improper 
implementation of business strategies; 
lack of response to market demands and 
compatibility to external changes.

Manage through an integrated process whereby the risk 
appetite, strategic business direction, budget and business 
plans are aligned, with appropriate oversight by the Board.  

Financial Risk Risks that affect the ability of the Group to 
meet its financial obligations which could 
lead to adverse consequences; and risks of 
negative impact that arise from an investment 
that could result in unfavourable returns and 
cash flow.

a)  

b)

Stringent financial control regulated by efficient 
procedures such as the authority limits and 
procurement procedures.
The establishment of an investment committee 
comprising three members from the Board of 
Directors, Group Managing Director (GMD) and 
Chief Financial Office (CFO).

Operational Risk Risks that impact the delivery of the Group’s 
services and products resulting from 
inadequate or failed internal processes, people 
and systems; or from external events.

a) 

 
b) 

Day-to-day management of operational risk 
through comprehensive system of internal 
controls.
Utilisation of various tools, methods and 
techniques to manage operational risks. 
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control cont’d

Risk Category Definition Risk Management Process

Compliance Risk Risks arising from changes in legislation, 
regulatory landscapes and policies. 
Legislative or regulatory developments or 
changes in the policies of regulators and 
governments could have an unfavourable 
effect on the Group’s operations, financial 
condition and prospects.

Close monitoring, tracking and complying with any 
changes in the legislation, regulatory landscapes, policies 
and financial reporting.

Reputational Risk Risks associated with negative stakeholders’ 
perceptions that can adversely impact the 
Group’s ability to maintain existing business 
relationship or establish new relationship and 
continued access to sources of funding.

a)

b)

Ensuring good corporate governance; ethical 
conduct of businesses.
Maintaining efficient customer services and 
delivery channels.

5. Risk Management Approach

The Group has adopted a formal and structured approach to risk management as outlined below:

Context Frequency Descriptions

Strategies, goals & 
objectives

Annual Review a)
b)

Risk are identified, assessed and documented.
Annual review is conducted at group level taking 
into accounts any changes in market conditions and 
significant business risks.

Operating subsidiaries Quarterly review a)

b)

Quarterly risk reports are prepared which includes 
assessment of risk, actions undertaken and 
progress made.
Risk profiling exercise and follow-up by BRMC and 
GRMC.

Investment proposal, 
Projects, Tenders, 
etc.

As required a)

b)

Tender Committee with cross functional 
representation to provide oversight on the tendering 
matters prior to approval by the approving 
authorities.
Proposals are deliberated and evaluated at the 
Investment Committee prior to tabling to the Board.

 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board recognises that the internal audit function is an integral component of the governance process. One of the key functions of the Group 
Internal Audit (GIA) is to assist the Group in accomplishing it goals by bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of risk management, internal control, processes and governance within the Group. 

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

4. Risk Management Roles and Responsibilities (cont’d)
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control cont’d

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM (CONT’D)

The principal activities of the internal audit department functions are as follows:

a) Provide assurance to the AC and the Board that the internal audit activities are performed impartiality, proficiency and due professional 
care as outlined in its Internal Audit Charter, by having its plans and reports directly under the purview of the AC;

b) Review the systems of internal control in order to provide reasonable assurance that operation of such controls, including systems for 
compliance with applicable laws, regulations and guidelines are adequate, efficient and effective; and

c) Review critical key areas for improvement and thereafter assess the extent to which its recommendations have been implemented. In 
addition, GIA also conducts investigations and special reviews at the request of the Management;

Monitoring the effectiveness of internal controls is embedded in the normal course of the business. The GIA has carried out on-going reviews 
of the internal control system of the Group. The audits conducted were in the areas of finance/accounts, operations, management, projects and 
information system in accordance with the annual audit plan which is presented to the AC. All audit findings, recommendations and management 
actions are deliberated at the AC meetings. The AC meets at least four times a year to deliberate the audit reports.

OTHER ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The other elements of the Group’s internal control system are as follows:

1. Organisation Structure

The current organisational structure for the Group incorporates the Company’s vision and mission, in ensuring that the business direction 
can be delivered. The responsibility, accountability and delegation of authority of each Head of Companies and Head of Department 
are clearly defined. The Board has put in place suitably qualified and experienced management personnel to head the Group’s diverse 
operating subsidiary companies into delivering results and their performance are measured against approved key performance indicators.

2. Code of Ethics

The Group’s Employee Code of Conduct & Discipline Handbook which defines the ethical standards and conduct of work required from 
every employee at Group has been established; and awareness programmes have been conducted throughout the Group.

3. Corporate Culture and Core Values
 

Having the right corporate culture for our organisation is essential towards achieving our vision as a leading investment entity in ports and 
port-related services in Malaysia. Our corporate culture is founded on the core values of the Group. The Group’s core values are ‘Service 
Excellence’, ‘Unity of Purpose’, ‘Respect’, ‘Integrity’ and ‘Achievement’. Our corporate culture is also based on the concept of connecting 
our business to the stakeholders, community and environment in a balanced approach; being firm and friendly, business driven and 
responsible, progressive and practical.

4. Authority Limits and Procurement Procedures 

The authority limits and procurement procedures outline the principles and specific requirements related to the procurement processes. 
The Group has clearly defined authorisation procedures and authority limits set for awarding tenders and all procurement transactions 
covering both capital and revenue expenditure items. A tender committee is established with cross functional representation to provide 
oversight functions on the tendering process prior to approval by the approving authorities.
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control cont’d

OTHER ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM (CONT’D) 

5. Internal Audit and Independent Assurance Mechanism

GIA complements the role of the GRM by independently review the effectiveness of the risk management process. The Group’s GIA carries 
out regular reviews of the internal control system of the Group throughout the year. The reviews include areas of finance/accounts, 
operations, management, projects and information system in accordance with the annual audit plan which is approved by the AC. All 
audit findings are discussed at management level and remedial actions are agreed in response to the GIA recommendations. Thereafter, 
audit findings together with management’s responses and proposed action plans are presented to the AC. Respective functional line 
management are assigned to ensure management action plans are carried out effectively. Follow-up audits are performed to monitor 
implementation of agreed remedial actions. In addition, management letters from the external auditors are deliberated at the AC.

6. Annual Budget and Strategic Business Plan  

The budgetary process requires all companies in the Group to prepare comprehensive budget for approval by the Board annually. Variances 
against the budgets are analysed and reported to the Board on a quarterly basis. The strategic business plans are reviewed periodically 
taking into accounts any changes in market conditions and significant business risks.

7. Employees Competency 

Performance Management System is implemented to assess and reward all staff of the Group. Competency-based human resource process 
covers annual performance appraisals, career development, succession planning and structured training programmes, are implemented 
within the Group to ensure staff are competent and adequately trained in carrying out their duties.

8. Communication

There is a coordinated communication in the Group to ensure that information is cascaded down to all staff across the Group on timely 
manner. The Group is committed to open and effective communication to motivate the staff to deliver high quality services and exceptional 
value to customers and stakeholders. An annual survey is conducted to gauge employees’ satisfaction and to provide staff with an avenue 
to forward their opinion and suggestion to the management. Dialogue sessions were also conducted between management and staff 
to obtain feedback from staff. Risk management awareness programmes were conducted during the year to all staff in the Group. The 
objectives of the awareness program were to instil a risk management culture amongst the staff; to provide basic understanding of the 
concepts and principles of enterprise risk management; as well as to inform the staff of their roles and responsibility in managing risks in 
their daily tasks and functions. 

9. Insurance

Sufficient insurance coverage is in place to ensure the Group’s assets are adequately covered against any mishap that could result in 
material loss. Annual policy renewal exercise is undertaken to review the coverage based on the current fixed asset inventory and the 
respective net book values and ‘replacement value’.

10. Whistleblowing 

The Group has in place a whistleblower policy with the objective of providing an avenue for employees to report any breach or suspected 
breach of any rules or regulations, including business principles, policies and procedures. Any concerns raised will be investigated and 
managed accordingly. The policy provides for confidentiality of the identity of the whistleblower and accords protection against any form 
of reprisal.
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REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL EFFECTIVENESS

The Board takes full responsibility for the effectiveness of risk management and internal controls.

a)  The Board plays an active role in strategic planning. It discusses and reviews the plans, strategies, performances and risks faced by the 
Group. Mandates are then given to management to carry out the agreed strategies and action plans;

b)  Comprehensive management reports are made available monthly and quarterly to the Board covering financial performance and key 
business indicators, which allow for effective monitoring of significant variances between actual performance against budgets and plans;

c) The Board through the AC receives audit report from the GIA which includes their independent and objective opinion on the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the organisation’s systems of enterprise risk management and internal control together with recommendations for 
improvement; 

d) The BRMC receives risk management reports on the business risks of the Group and the subsidiary companies operation through risk 
analysis conducted by the GRM;

e) The Board also reviews the comments made by the external auditors in their Management Letter and other reports; and

f) Regular senior management meetings such as the Executive Management Meeting (EXCOM) and Management Committee Meeting (MCM) 
are held on quarterly basis to review, identify, discuss and resolve strategic, operational, financial, environmental, compliance and other 
key management issues. The minutes of the management meetings are extended to the Board for review and information. 

CONCLUSION

The Board has received assurance from the GMD and CFO that the Group’s risk management and internal control system is operating adequately 
and effectively, in all material aspects, based on the risk management and internal control system of the Group.

The Board is of the view that the system of internal control instituted throughout the Group is sound and provides a level of confidence on which 
the Board relies for assurance. In the year under review, there was no significant control failure or weaknesses that would have resulted in material 
losses, contingencies or uncertainties requiring separate disclosure in the Annual Report.

The Board provides for a continuous review of the Group’s risk management and internal control system to ensure ongoing adequacy and 
effectiveness of the system of internal control and risk management practices to meet the changing and challenging operating environment. 

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board dated 21 April 2014.

REVIEW OF THE STATEMENT BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The external auditors have reviewed this Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control for the inclusion in the Annual Report of the Group 
for the year ended 31st December 2013 and reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the 
statement is inconsistent with their understanding of the process adopted by the Board in reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the system of 
internal control within the Group.

Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control cont’d
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Audit Committee Report

1. MEMBERS

 The Audit Committee (“AC”) members and their respective designations are as follows:

 • Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming, J.P., C.A. (M)
  Chairman / Independent & Non-Executive Director
  (Member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants)
 
 • Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P.
  Member / Independent & Non-Executive Director
 
 • Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim, J.P.
  Member / Independent & Non-Executive Director

 • Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P.
  Member / Independent & Non-Executive Director

2.  COMPOSITION 

 The Board shall appoint the AC members from amongst themselves, comprising not less than three (3) in accordance with the requirement of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (BMSB) Listing Requirements on Corporate Governance, Part C of Chapter 15. 

 The AC comprises of four (4) members and all of whom are Non-Executive Directors. The Board adopts the definition of “independent director” 
as defined under the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“BMSB”). One (1) member of the AC is a member 
of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA) who is also the Chairman of the AC and an Independent Director. 

 If any member of the AC resigns, dies, or for any reason ceases to be a member resulting in non-compliance to the composition criteria as stated 
above in Clause 2, the vacancy shall be filled within three (3) months and the Nomination/Appointment Commitee shall review and recommend 
for the Board’s approval another appropriate Director to fill the vacancy. 

 The Board has to ensure that there are adequate experienced directors in the AC. Members of the AC may relinquish their membership with prior 
written notice to the Chairman and may continue to serve as Directors of the Company. 

3. RIGHTS AND AUTHORITY

The AC is authorised by the Board to:

(a) Investigate any matter within its terms of reference;
(b) Have the resources which are required to perform its duties;
(c) Have full and unrestricted access to any information, records, property and personnel of the Company and any other companies within 

the Group;
(d) Have direct communication channels with the External and Internal Auditors and Risk Manager;
(e) Be able to convene meetings with the External and Internal Auditors and Risk Manager, excluding the attendance of the other directors 

and employees of the Company, where deemed necessary;
(f) Invite other Directors and/or employees of the Company to attend any particular AC meeting to discuss specific issues; and
(g) Be able to obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice, and invite external parties with relevant experience and expertise 

to attend the AC meetings for advice.
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4.  DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

 The main objective of the AC is to assist the Directors in the effective discharge of its fiduciary responsibilities for corporate governance, timely 
and accurate financial reporting and development of sound internal controls. In compliance with BMSB Listing Requirements and Best Practices 
of the Code on Corporate Governance, it is the objective of the AC to assure the shareholders of the Company that the Directors have complied 
with specific financial standards and disclosure policies developed and administered by BMSB and other approved accounting standard bodies. 

 The AC shall ensure consistency with BMSB commitments to encourage high standards of corporate disclosure and transparency. In addition, the 
AC shall evaluate the quality of audits performed by the internal and external auditors.

 The principal duties and responsibilities of the AC shall include the following:

 4.1 Financial Reporting

(a) To review the quarterly interim results and annual financial statements of the Company, and thereafter submit them to the Board 
for approval, focusing particularly on:

   •  Any changes in or implementation of new accounting policies and practices;
   •  Significant adjustments arising from the external audits and unusual events;
   •  True and fair view of the Company’s financial position and performance; and
   •  The going concern assumption and compliance with accounting standards as well as other legal requirements.
  (b) To review any related party transactions and conflict of interest situation that may arise within the Company or its business units.
  (c) To ensure prompt publication of annual audited financial statements.

 4.2  External Audit

(a) To review the competency, independence and suitability of the External Auditors for recommendation to the Board for re-
appointment and the audit fee thereof;

(b) To review and discuss the audit plan, audit strategy, the nature and scope of the audit with the External Auditors (before the audit 
commences) and ensure coordination (where more than one audit firm is involved);

(c) To review with the External Auditors, their evaluation of the system of internal controls and audit findings;
(d) To discuss issues and concerns arising from the interim and final audits, and any other matters the External Auditors wish to 

discuss, in the absence of management, if necessary;
(e) To review the External Auditors’ management letter, management’s response, and co-operation given by the Company, its 

business units and its officers to the auditors;
(f) To make appropriate recommendations to the Board on matters of resignation or dismissal of External Auditors; and
(g) To meet with the External Auditors twice yearly without any Executive Board members and Management Staffs present.  

 4.3 Internal Audit

(a) To approve the Internal Audit Charter of internal audit function of the Group;
(b) To review and report the adequacy of internal audit plans and scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit 

function, and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work;
(c) To review the internal audit process and where necessary ensure that appropriate action is taken by the management on the 

recommendations of the internal audit function;
(d) To review any appraisal or assessment of the performance of members of the internal audit function to ensure that they have the 

standing to exercise independence and professionalism in discharging their duties; 
(e) To contribute to the improvement of risk management, internal control and governance system as spelled out in the Professional 

Practice of Internal Auditing contained in The International Professional Practices Framework;
(f) To review the major findings of internal audits and investigations, management’s response, remedial actions taken and follow-

ups; and
(g) To direct any special investigation to be carried out by internal audit.

Audit Committee Report cont’d
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5.  MEETINGS

5.1 Attendance of Meetings

 During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the AC held a total of seven (7) meetings.  Details of attendance of members who 
were in office during the financial year under review as follows:

  
     

   Number of
   Name of AC Members Meetings Attended 

 Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming, J.P., C.A. (M)  7/7 
Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P. 6/7 

 Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim, J.P. 7/7
 Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P. 4/7

5.2 Frequency of Meetings

 The AC will meet at least four (4) times annually and may call such additional meetings as the Chairman of the AC decides necessary to 
fulfill its duties.

Dates of the AC meetings held during the year are as follows:

1. 22 February 2013
2. 12 March 2013
3. 30 April 2013
4. 18 June 2013
5. 19 August 2013
6. 21 October 2013
7. 01 November 2013

 At least twice a year, the External Auditors were also invited to attend and participate in the deliberations on relevant items at the 
Committee meetings conducted during the period under review. Members of Senior Management including the Group Managing Director 
were also present by invitation. During the financial year 2013, the Committee carried out its duties as set out in the “duties and 
responsibilities”. The total expenditure incurred by the Internal Audit Department for the financial year 2013 is RM 512,152.

6.  TRAINING

For the year under review, the AC has attended the following conferences, seminars and training programmes:

• World of Risk Based Auditing
• Directors’ Remuneration Seminar 2013 “The Best Practice”
• Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards
• National Tax Conference 2013
• Enterprise Risk Management “The Art of War”
• Inaugural ASEAN Corporate Governance Summit 2013
• MIA Conference 2013

Audit Committee Report cont’d
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MOVING TOWARDS 
DIVERSIFICATION
In pursuit of success and sustainable future for the Group, we are moving towards diversification 
of new ventures by forming an alliance with experienced and established players.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and property development.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities during the financial year.

RESULTS

  Group Company
  RM’000 RM’000

Profit net of tax 61,268 25,179

Profit attributable to:  
Owners of the Company 61,097 25,179
Non-controlling interests 171 -

  61,268 25,179

   
There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than as disclosed in the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not substantially 
affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

DIVIDENDS

The amounts of dividends paid by the Company since 31 December 2012 were as follows:

   RM

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2012 as reported
 in the directors’ report of that year: 
Final tax exempt dividend of 3.15%, on 283,327,992 ordinary shares, 
 declared on 27 June 2013 and paid on 31 July 2013  8,924,832

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2013: 
Interim tax exempt dividend of 3%, on 283,327,992 ordinary shares, 
 declared on 22 November 2013 and paid on 27 December 2013   8,499,840

   17,424,672

  
 

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report cont’d

DIVIDENDS (CONT’D)

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final tax exempt dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2013, of 4% on 
283,327,992 ordinary shares, amounting to dividend payable of RM11,333,120 (4 sen per ordinary share) will be proposed for shareholders’ 
approval. The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, 
will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS

The names of the directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this report are:

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego
Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P.
Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. Johari, J.P.
Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming, J.P.
Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub
Datuk Dr. Mohamed Fowzi Hassan Bin Mohamed Razi
Datuk Hj. Ramlee Bin Marahaban (resigned on 11 July 2013)
Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim, J.P.
Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas 
Muluk Bin Samad
Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P.
Datuk Hj. Syed Abas Bin Syed Ali (appointed on 29 August 2013)
 

ALTERNATE DIRECTOR 
 
Mohamad Nor Bin Tahir
(Alternate to Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas)

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any arrangement to which the Company was a party, 
whereby the directors might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than benefits included in the 
aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the directors or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company as 
shown in Note 10 to the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with any director or with a 
firm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the end of the financial year in shares in the Company 
during the financial year were as follows:

    Number of ordinary shares of RM1 each
Name of director  1.1.2013 Acquired Sold 31.12.2013

Direct Interest:    
Ordinary shares of the Company    
 Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas  57,503 - - 57,503
 Datuk Dr. Mohamed Fowzi Hassan Bin
    Mohamed Razi  20,000 - - 20,000
 Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @
    Lai Kheng Ming, J.P.  50,000 - 10,000 40,000
 Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub  2,500 - - 2,500

    
None of the other directors in office at the end of the financial year had any interest in shares in the Company or its related corporations during 
the financial year.

SIGNIFICANT EVENT

Details of significant event are disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

a) Before the statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the Group and of the Company were made out, the 
directors took reasonable steps:

 i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of provision for doubtful 
debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate provision had been made for 
doubtful debts; and

 ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in the accounting records in the ordinary 
course of business had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render:
 
 i) the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Group and 

of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; and

 ii) the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

c) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing 
method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

d) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statements 
of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

Directors’ Report cont’d
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONT’D)

e) At the date of this report, there does not exist:

 i) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which secures the 
liabilities of any other person; or

 ii) any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

f) In the opinion of the directors:

 i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve months after 
the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Group or of the Company to meet their obligations when they 
fall due; and

 ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and 
the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group or of the Company for the 
financial year in which this report is made.

AUDITORS

The auditors, Ernst & Young, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 21 April 2014.

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego Datuk Dr. Mohamed Fowzi Hassan Bin Mohamed Razi

Directors’ Report cont’d
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Statement by Directors 
Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act 1965

We, Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego and Datuk Dr. Mohamed Fowzi Hassan Bin Mohamed Razi, being two of the directors of Suria 
Capital Holdings Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 63 to 135 
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2013 and of their financial performance and 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and 
the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.

The information set out in Note 42 to the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, 
Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profit or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing 
Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 21 April 2014.

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego     Datuk Dr. Mohamed Fowzi Hassan Bin Mohamed Razi

Statutory Declaration 
Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act 1965

I, Ng Kiat Min, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Suria Capital Holdings Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely 
declare that the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 63 to 136 are in my opinion correct, and I make this solemn declaration 
conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the
abovenamed Ng Kiat Min
at Kota Kinabalu in the State
of Sabah on 21 April 2014       Ng Kiat Min

Before me,
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Independent Auditors’ Report
 to the members of Suria Capital Holdings Berhad (Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the financial statements of Suria Capital Holdings Berhad, which comprise statements of financial position as at 31 December 
2013 of the Group and of the Company, and statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows 
of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as 
set out on pages 63 to 135. 

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to give a true and fair view in accordance with 
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. 
The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with approved 
standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a 
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
 
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 
2013 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REqUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:

(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and its subsidiaries have 
been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(b) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the financial statements of the Company 
are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and we have 
received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.

(c) The auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject to any qualification and did not include any comment 
required to be made under Section 174(3) of the Act.
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OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

The supplementary information set out in Note 42 on page 136 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not 
part of the financial statements. The directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on 
Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive 
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. 

OTHER MATTERS 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and 
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

Ernst & Young Yong Voon Kar
AF: 0039 1769/04/16(J/PH)
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kota Kinabalu, Malaysia
21 April 2014

Independent Auditors’ Report cont’d
to the members of Suria Capital Holdings Berhad (Incorporated in Malaysia)
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Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

  Group  Company
  Note 2013 2012 2013 2012
    (Restated)  (Restated)
   RM’000  RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Revenue 4 263,330 262,928 35,033 53,814
Cost of sales  (149,622) (156,033) - (2,469)

Gross profit  113,708 106,895 35,033 51,345

Other items of income
 Interest income 5 1,687 1,039 174 242
 Other income 6 12,292 11,055 2 58

Other items of expense
 Administrative expenses  (24,303) (27,824) (9,503) (9,220)
 Finance costs 7 (11,065) (13,414) - -
 Other expenses  (10,007) (8,472) (489) -

Profit before tax 8 82,312 69,279 25,217 42,425
Income tax expense 11 (21,044) (18,973) (38) -

Profit net of tax   61,268 50,306 25,179 42,425

Other comprehensive income:     
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 
 subsequent periods
Remeasurement gain on employee defined benefit liability 30 80 13 1 1
Income tax effect 17 (21) (3) - -

   59 10 1 1

Total comprehensive income for the year  61,327 50,316 25,180 42,426

Profit net of tax attributable to: 
Owners of the Company  61,097 50,227 25,179 42,425
Non-controlling interests  171 79 - -

   61,268 50,306 25,179 42,425

Total comprehensive income attributable to: 
Owners of the Company  61,156 50,237 25,180 42,426
Non-controlling interests  171 79 - -

   61,327 50,316 25,180 42,426

Earnings per ordinary share attributable to
 owners of the Company (sen per share): 
Basic 12 21.56 17.73

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the financial statements.
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     Group    Company
     As at 1   As at 1
     January   January
  Note 2013 2012 2012 2013 2012 2012
    (Restated) (Restated)  (Restated) (Restated)
   RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 664,104 659,868 688,218 48,808 49,509 51,863
Land held for property 
 development 14 120,776 119,926 119,384 120,776 119,926 119,384
Investment properties  - - 2,443 - - 5,717
Intangible assets 15 80,898 84,537 90,165 - - -
Investments in subsidiaries 16 - - - 227,700 229,700 229,100
Deferred tax assets 17 6,951 27,386 45,999 - - -

   872,729 891,717 946,209 397,284 399,135 406,064

Current assets
Inventories 18 5,149 6,988 4,387 - - -
Trade and other receivables 19 29,173 39,251 32,981 4,157 21,065 13,952
Amount due from Sabah 
 Ports Authority  - 71 - - - -
Other current assets 20 2,329 7,486 14,493 7 9 2,613
Income tax refundable  18,973 19,004 18,816 525 393 200
Investment securities 21 130,392 133,312 159,536 48,996 42,729 42,719
Cash and bank balances 23 121,961 82,463 45,528 46,036 35,627 7,500

   307,977 288,575 275,741 99,721 99,823 66,984

Total assets  1,180,706 1,180,292 1,221,950 497,005 498,958 473,048

EqUITY AND LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Borrowings 24 10,569 16,101 14,623 - - -
Loan from Sabah Ports 
 Authority 26 22,176 21,324 48,564 - - -
Amount due to Sabah Ports 
 Authority  - - 2,841 - - -
Amount due to Sabah State 
 Government 27 5,927 6,085 12,031 - - -
Trade and other payables 28 102,332 30,462 36,540 75,438 16,057 15,585
Other current liability 29 - 3,828 42 - - -
Income tax payable  161 - - - - -

   141,165 77,800 114,641 75,438 16,057 15,585

Net current assets  166,812 210,775 161,100 24,283 83,766 51,399

Statements of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2013
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     Group    Company
     As at 1   As at 1
     January   January
  Note 2013 2012 2012 2013 2012 2012
    (Restated) (Restated)  (Restated) (Restated)
   RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 24 30,003 40,040 50,881 - - -
Loan from Sabah Ports Authority 26 124,920 147,096 168,420 - - -
Amount due to Sabah State 
 Government 27 35,560 41,487 47,413 - - -
Employee defined benefit liability 30 8,415 7,663 6,884 268 266 254
Deferred tax liabilities  17 203 433 564 - - -
Other payable 28 - 69,091 69,091 - 69,091 69,091

   199,101 305,810 343,253 268 69,357 69,345

Total liabilities  340,266 383,610 457,894 75,706 85,414 84,930

Net assets  840,440 796,682 764,056 421,299 413,544 388,118

Equity attributable to 
 owners of the Company
Share capital 31 283,328 283,328 283,328 283,328 283,328 283,328
Share premium 31 62,785 62,785 62,785 62,785 62,785 62,785
Retained earnings  492,300 448,569 415,332 75,186 67,431 42,005
Other reserve 32 (61) (61) - - - -

   838,352 794,621 761,445 421,299 413,544 388,118
Non-controlling interests  2,088 2,061 2,611 - - -

Total equity  840,440 796,682 764,056 421,299 413,544 388,118

Total equity and liabilities  1,180,706 1,180,292 1,221,950 497,005 498,958 473,048

       

Statements of Financial Position cont’d
As at 31 December 2013

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the financial statements.
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     Attributable to owners of the Company 
     Non-  Non- 
     distributable Distributable distributable
    Equity
    attributable
    to owners
    of the     Non-
   Equity,   Company, Share Share Retained Other controlling
  Note total total capital premium earnings reserve interests
   RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

Opening balance at 
 1 January 2013 
  (as previously stated)  802,456 800,395 283,328 62,785 454,343 (61) 2,061
Impact of changes in 
 accounting policy 2.2 (5,774) (5,774) - - (5,774) - -

Opening balance at 
 1 January 2013 
  (restated)  796,682 794,621 283,328 62,785 448,569 (61) 2,061
Profit net of tax  61,268 61,097 - - 61,097 - 171
Remeasurement gain on 
 employee defined 
 benefit liability 
 representing other 
 comprehensive income
 for the year, net of tax   59 59 - - 59 - -

Total comprehensive income 
 for the year  61,327 61,156 - - 61,156 - 171

Transactions with owners 
Dividends paid by a subsidiary  (144) - - - - - (144)
Dividends on ordinary shares 40 (17,425) (17,425) - - (17,425) - -

Total transactions with owners  (17,569) (17,425) - - (17,425) - (144)

Closing balance at 
 31 December 2013  840,440 838,352 283,328 62,785 492,300 (61) 2,088

Statements of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013
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     Attributable to owners of the Company 
     Non-  Non- 
     distributable Distributable distributable
    Equity
    attributable
    to owners
    of the     Non-
   Equity,   Company, Share Share Retained Other controlling
  Note total total capital premium earnings reserve interests
   RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

Opening balance at 
 1 January 2012 
  (as previously stated)  769,213 766,602 283,328 62,785 420,489 - 2,611
Impact of changes in 
 accounting policy 2.2 (5,157) (5,157) - - (5,157) - -

Opening balance at 
 1 January 2012 
  (restated)  764,056 761,445 283,328 62,785 415,332 - 2,611
Profit net of tax  50,306 50,227 - - 50,227 - 79
Remeasurement gain on 
 employee defined 
 benefit liability 
 representing other 
 comprehensive income 
 for the year, net of tax   10 10 - - 10 - -

Total comprehensive income 
 for the year  50,316 50,237 - - 50,237 - 79

Transactions with owners
Acquisition of non-
 controlling interests  (539) - - - - - (539)
Premium paid on acquisition 
 of non-controlling interests  (61) (61) - - - (61) -
Dividends paid by a subsidiary  (90) - - - - - (90)
Dividends on ordinary shares 40 (17,000) (17,000) - - (17,000) - -

Total transactions with owners  (17,690) (17,061) - - (17,000) (61) (629)

Closing balance at 
 31 December 2012  796,682 794,621 283,328 62,785 448,569 (61) 2,061
    

Statements of Changes in Equity cont’d
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013
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     Non–distributable Distributable
   Equity, Share Share Retained
  Note total capital premium earnings
   RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Company

Opening balance at 1 January 2013 
  (as previously stated)  413,810 283,328 62,785 67,697
Impact of changes in accounting policy 2.2 (266) - - (266)

Opening balance at 1 January 2013 (restated)  413,544 283,328 62,785 67,431
Profit net of tax  25,179 - - 25,179
Remeasurement of employee defined 
 benefit liability representing other 
 comprehensive incomes for the year, net of tax  1 - - 1

Total comprehensive income for the year  25,180 - - 25,180

Transactions with owners
Dividends on ordinary shares 40 (17,425) - - (17,425)

Total transactions with owners  (17,425) - - (17,425)

Closing balance at 31 December 2013  421,299 283,328 62,785 75,186

Opening balance at 1 January 2012 (as previously stated)  388,372 283,328 62,785 42,259
Impact of changes in accounting policy 2.2 (254) - - (254)

Opening balance at 1 January 2012 (restated)  388,118 283,328 62,785 42,005
Profit net of tax  42,425 - - 42,425
Remeasurement of employee defined 
 benefit liability representing other 
 comprehensive incomes for the year, net of tax  1 - - 1

Total comprehensive income for the year  42,426 - - 42,426

Transactions with owners
Dividends on ordinary shares 40 (17,000) - - (17,000)

Total transactions with owners  (17,000) - - (17,000)

Closing balance at 31 December 2012  413,544 283,328 62,785 67,431

Statements of Changes in Equity cont’d
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

  Group  Company
   2013 2012 2013 2012
    (Restated)  (Restated)
   RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Operating activities 
Profit before tax  82,312 69,279 25,217 42,425

Adjustments for: 
 Amortisation of port concession rights  3,687 3,687 - -
 Amortisation of software licenses and system development  65 1,941 - -
 Allowance for impairment loss on  
 - trade receivables  71 1,161 - -
 - other receivables  - - 1 -
 Depreciation of investment properties  - 9 - 22
 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  30,245 30,763 946 886
 Dividend income from subsidiaries  - - (27,982) (45,064)
 Employee defined benefit expense   1,527 1,508 36 36
 Employee leave entitlement   76 77 27 35
 Finance costs  11,065 13,414 - -
 Gain on disposal of equipment  (321) (460) - -
 Interest income  (2,641) (1,460) (1,128) (663)
 Inventories written down  146 53 - -
 Investment income from investment securities  (3,195) (3,711) (1,097) (1,117)
 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  - 2,721 - 157
 Loss on disposal of investment properties  - 177 - 425
 Net fair value gains on investment securities  (913) (668) (470) (300)
 Plant and equipment written off  39 14 - 11
 Unrealised exchange gain  (449) (271) - -
 Waiver of amounts due to creditors  (31) - - -

Total adjustments  39,371 48,955 (29,667) (45,572)

Operating cash flows before changes in working capital  121,683 118,234 (4,450) (3,147)

Changes in working capital: 
 Decrease/(increase) in inventories  1,693 (2,654) - -
 Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables  10,090 (7,431) 16,907 (7,113)
 Decrease in other current assets  5,157 7,007 2 2,604
 Decrease/(increase) in cash at  banks pledged and deposits with 
  maturity more than 3 months  91 (4,898) - -
 Increase/(decrease) in amount due to Sabah Ports Authority  71 (2,912) - -
 Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables  2,722 (6,155) (9,737) 437
 (Decrease)/increase in other current liability  (3,828) 3,786 - -
 Payment of employee defined benefit liability  (695) (716) (33) (23)

Total changes in working capital  15,301 (13,973) 7,139 (4,095)
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Statements of Cash Flows cont’d
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

  Group  Company
   2013 2012 2013 2012
    (Restated)  (Restated)
   RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Cash flows from/(used in) operations  136,984 104,261 2,689 (7,242)
 Interest received  349 156 - -
 Income tax paid  (1,085) (1,266) (170) (193)
 Income tax refunded  417 584 - -

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities   136,665  103,735  2,519  (7,435)

Investing activities 
Acquisition of non-controlling interests  - (600) - (600)
Increase in intangible assets  (113) - - -
Increase in land held for property development  (850) (542) (850) (542)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  825 5,987 - 1,505
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties  - 2,257 - 5,270
Proceeds from disposal of investments in subsidiary  - - 2,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of investment securities  67,800 128,900 4,800 16,900
Purchase of investment securities  (63,967) (102,008) (10,597) (16,610)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (35,020) (10,667) (245) (205)
Investment income received from investment securities  3,195 3,711 1,097 1,117
Interest received  2,292 1,304 1,128 663
Dividends received  - - 27,982 45,064

Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities  (25,838) 28,342 25,315 52,562

Financing activities 
Dividends paid  (17,425) (17,000) (17,425) (17,000)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholder  (144) (90) - -
Interest paid  (11,358) (21,910) - -
Proceeds from borrowings  - 7,278 - -
Repayment of Islamic Debt Securities  (10,000) (10,000) - -
Repayment of loan from Sabah Ports Authority  (21,324) (40,218) - -
Repayment of amount due to Sabah State Government  (5,927) (11,853) - -
Repayment of borrowings  (5,414) (6,072) - -
Repayment of obligations under finance leases  (24) (446) - -

Net cash flows used in financing activities  (71,616) (100,311) (17,425) (17,000)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  39,211 31,766 10,409 28,127
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  378 271 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January   71,015 38,978 35,627 7,500

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December (Note 23)  110,604 71,015 46,036 35,627

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

 Suria Capital Holdings Berhad (“the Company”) is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and is listed 
on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The registered office of the Company is located at 1st & 2nd Floor, Menara Jubili, No.53, Jalan 
Gaya, 88000 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia.

 The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and property development. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are 
set out in Note 16 to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities during the 
financial year.  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 2.1 Basis of preparation

 The financial statements of the Group and the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting 
Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.

 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. The 
financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RM’000) except 
when otherwise indicated.

 2.2 Changes in accounting policies

 The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows.

 On 1 January 2013, the Group and the Company adopted the following new and amended MFRS and IC Interpretations mandatory 
for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

   Effective for annual periods 
 Description beginning or after
 
 Amendments to MFRS 101: Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income 1 July 2012
 MFRS 3 Business Combinations (IFRS 3 Business Combinations issued by IASB in March 2004) 1 January 2013
 MFRS 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (IAS 27 revised by IASB in December 2003) 1 January 2013
 MFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013
 MFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013
 MFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013
 MFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013
 MFRS 119 Employee Benefits (IAS 19 as amended by IASB in June 2011) 1 January 2013
 MFRS 127 Separate Financial Statements (IAS 27 as amended by IASB in May 2011) 1 January 2013
 MFRS 128 Investment in Associate and Joint Ventures (IAS 28 as amended by IASB in May 2011) 1 January 2013
 IC Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine 1 January 2013
 Amendments to MFRS 7: Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2013
 Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle 1 January 2013
 Amendments to MFRS 1: Government Loans 1 January 2013
 Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 11 and MFRS 12: Consolidated Financial Statements, 
    Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance 1 January 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements cont’d
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)  
 
 Adoption of the above standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial performance or position of the Group 

and the Company except for those discussed below:

  MFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

 MFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under MFRS for all fair value measurements. MFRS 13 does not change when 
an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provide guidance on how to measure fair value under MFRS. MFRS 13 defines fair 
value as an exit price. MFRS 13 also requires additional disclosures. 

 Application of MFRS 13 has not materially impacted the fair value measurements of the Group. Additional disclosures where 
required, are provided in the individual notes relating to assets whose fair values were determined.

  Amendments to MFRS 101: Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

 The amendments to MFRS 101 introduce a grouping of items presented in other comprehensive income. Items that will be 
reclassified (“recycled”) to profit or loss at a future point in time (eg. net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets) have 
to be presented separately from items that will not be reclassified (eg. revaluation of land and buildings). The amendments affect 
presentation only and have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance. 

  MFRS 119 Employee Benefits (IAS 19 as amended by IASB in June 2011)

 The Group and the Company applied MFRS 119 (revised) retrospectively in the current period in accordance with the transitional 
provisions set out in the revised standard. The opening statement of financial position of the earliest comparative period presented 
(1 January 2012) and the comparative figures have been accordingly restated. 

 MFRS 119 (revised) changes, amongst other things, the accounting for defined benefit plans. All past service costs are recognised 
at the earlier of when the amendment/curtailment occurs or when the related restructuring or termination costs are recognised. As a 
result, unvested past service costs can no longer be deferred and recognised over the future vesting period. Previously, the Group and 
the Company had a balance of unrecognised service cost of RM6,814,000 (RM5,157,000 net of tax) and RM254,000 respectively as at  
1 January 2012. Upon transition to MRS 119 (revised), these balances were taken to equity (retained earnings) as at 1 January 
2012 along with the consequential tax impact. 

 MFRS 119 (revised) also requires more extensive disclosures.

 MFRS 119 (revised) has been applied retrospectively, with the permitted exception on sensitivity disclosures for the defined benefit 
obligation for comparative period (year ended 31 December 2012) which have not been provided.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (cont’d) 

 The changes in accounting policies have been applied retrospectively. The effects of adoption on the financial statements are as 
follows:

   31 31 As at 1
   December December January
   2013 2012 2012
   RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group   
   
Increase/(decrease) in:   
Statement of financial position   
Deferred tax assets   1,955 1,849 1,657
Other payables   - (40) (70)
Employee defined benefit liability   8,415 7,663 6,884
Retained earnings   (6,460) (5,774) (5,157)

    2013 2012 
    RM’000 RM’000

Statement of comprehensive income   
Benefit expense   872 822 
Income tax expense   (127) (195) 
Profit net of tax   (745) (627) 
Other comprehensive income:   
 Remeasurement gains on employee defined benefit liability  80 13 
 Income tax effect   (21) (3) 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax   59 10 
Total comprehensive income for the year   (686) (617) 

    31 31 As at 1
    December December January
    2013 2012 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Company   
   
Increase/(decrease) in:   
Statement of financial position  
Employee defined benefit liability   268 266 254
Retained earnings   (268) (266) (254)

    2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 

Statement of comprehensive income   
Benefit expense   3 13
Profit net of tax   (3) (13)
Other comprehensive income:   
 Remeasurement gain on employee defined benefit liability  1 1 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax   1 1
Total comprehensive income for the year   (2) (12)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective 

 The standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group’s and the Company’s 
financial statements are disclosed below. The Group and the Company intend to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they 
become effective. 

   Effective for annual periods 
 Description beginning or after
 
 Amendments to MFRS 132: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2014
 Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 127: Investment Entities 1 January 2014
 Amendments to MFRS 136: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 1 January 2014
 Amendments to MFRS 139: Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting 1 January 2014
 IC Interpretation 21 Levies 1 January 2014
 Amendments to MFRS 119: Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions 1 July 2014
 Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2010 – 2012 Cycle 1 July 2014
 Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2011 – 2013 Cycle 1 July 2014
 MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in November 2009) To be announced
 MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in October 2010) To be announced
 MFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Hedge Accounting and amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 7 and MFRS 139 To be announced

 The directors expect that the adoption of the above standards and interpretations will have no material impact on the financial 
statements in the period of initial application except as discussed below:

 MFRS 9 Financial Instruments

 MFRS 9 reflects the first phase of the work on the replacement of MFRS 139 and applies to classification and measurement of 
financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in MFRS 139. The Standard was initially effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2013, but Amendments to MFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of MFRS and Transition Disclosures, issued in 
March 2012, moved the mandatory effective date to 1 January 2015. Subsequently, on 14 February 2014, it was announced that 
the new effective date will be decided when the project is closer to completion. The adoption of the first phase of MFRS 9 will have 
an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but will not have an impact on classifications and 
measurements of the Group’s financial liabilities. The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with the other phases, when the 
final standard including all phases is issued. 

 
 2.4 Basis of consolidation

  The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at the reporting 
date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prepared 
for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied for like transactions and events in similar 
circumstances. 

 The Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has all the following:

(i) power over the investee (i.e existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee);
(ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and 
(iii) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns. 

Notes to the Financial Statements cont’d
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 2.4 Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

 When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, the Company considers the following in assessing 
whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power over the investee:

(i) the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders; 
(ii) potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
(iii) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and 
(iv) any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct 

the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ 
meetings.

 Subsidiaries are consolidated when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control 
of the subsidiary. All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group 
transactions are eliminated in full.

 Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that results in a deficit balance. 

 Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are 
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted 
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. The resulting difference is recognised directly in equity and 
attributed to owners of the Company. 

 When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value 
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets and 
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest, is recognised in profit or loss. The subsidiary’s cumulative gain or loss 
which has been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss or where 
applicable, transferred directly to retained earnings. The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date 
control is lost is regarded as the cost on initial recognition of the investment. 

 Business combinations

 Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate 
of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the 
acquiree. The Group elects on a transaction-by-transaction basis whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree 
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Transaction costs incurred are expensed 
and included in administrative expenses. 

 Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent 
changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognised in accordance 
with MFRS 139 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified 
as equity, it will not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. In instances where the contingent 
consideration does not fall within the scope of MFRS 139, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate MFRS.

 When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and 
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. 
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

 If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in 
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 2.4 Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

  Business combinations (cont’d)

 Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised 
for non-controlling interests over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than fair 
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss. The accounting policy for goodwill 
is set out in Note 2.9(a).

 2.5 Transactions with non-controlling interests

 Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to owners of the Company, and 
are presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement 
of financial position, separately from equity attributable to owners of the Company.

 Changes in the Company owners’ ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as 
equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to 
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling 
interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners 
of the Company.

 2.6 Foreign currencies

 a) Functional and presentation currency

 The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Ringgit 
Malaysia (RM), which is also the Company’s functional currency.

 b) Foreign currency transactions and balances

 Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries 
and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the 
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange 
ruling at the reporting date. 

 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the reporting date 
are recognised in profit or loss.

 2.7 Property, plant and equipment

 All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment 
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost includes the cost of replacing 
part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of a qualifying property, plant and equipment. The accounting policy for borrowing costs is set out in Note 2.21. The 
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

 When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group recognises such parts 
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its 
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All 
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 2.7 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

 Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

 •  Long term leasehold land: remaining lease periods
 •  Buildings: 5 to 50 years
 •  Wharves, jetties and ferry terminal: 3 to 33 years
 •  Cargo handling equipment: 1 to 26 years
 •  Motor vehicles, vessel, furniture, equipment and renovation: 1 to 10 years

 Assets under construction included in plant and equipment are not depreciated as these assets are not yet available for use. 

 The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 

 The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end, and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate. 

 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its 
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

 2.8 Service concession arrangements
 

 The Group recognises the consideration receivable as an intangible asset to the extent that it receives a right to charge users of 
the public service. Intangible assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.9.

 Capital expenditures necessary to support the Group’s operation as a whole are recognised as property and equipment, and 
accounted for in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment in Note 2.7. When the Company has contractual 
obligations that it must fulfill as a condition of its license to: a) maintain the infrastructure to a specified standard or, b) to 
restore the infrastructure when the infrastructure has deteriorated below a specified condition, it recognises and measures these 
contractual obligations in accordance with the accounting policy for provisions in Note 2.18. Repairs and maintenance and other 
expenses that are routine in nature are expensed and recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.

 The Company, Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. (subsidiary of the Company), the State Government of Sabah and Sabah Ports Authority 
have entered into the Privatisation Agreement on 23 September 2003 (“Privatisation Agreement”) to privatise the business of port 
undertakings of Sabah Ports Authority at the seven ports of Sabah for a period 30 years and can be extended for a further period 
of 30 years. The terms of the Privatisation Agreement require the subsidiary to implement a capital expenditure programme as set 
out in the Privatisation Agreement which may be modified, varied or amended from time to time by the subsidiary subject to port 
demand, economic conditions and port operations performance with prior written approval of the State Government of Sabah and 
Sabah Ports Authority, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 The terms of the Privatisation Agreement allow the subsidiary to charge and collect from the port users in relation to any services 
or facilities provided by the subsidiary in accordance with the tariffs prescribed pursuant to the Sabah Ports Authority Enactment 
1981 and the Sabah Ports (Privatisation) Enactment 1998, as amended from time to time and including all and any rules made 
there under (“Port Enactments”). The subsidiary shall apply to Sabah Ports Authority to amend, vary or introduce port dues and 
charges from time to time in accordance with Port Enactments based on the financial need of the seven ports as well as the 
financial performance of the subsidiary. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 2.9 Intangible assets

  a) Goodwill

 Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses. 

 For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated 
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 

 The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually and whenever there 
is an indication that the cash-generating unit may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the 
recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where 
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in 
the profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised for goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods. 

 Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that cash-generating unit is disposed 
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when 
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on 
the relative fair values of the operations disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained. 

  b) Other intangible assets

 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business 
combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial acquisition, intangible assets are measured at 
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

 The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

 Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over the estimated useful lives and assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation 
method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or 
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. 

 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives or not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually, or more 
frequently if the events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired either individually or at 
the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an 
indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life assessment continues to be supportable. If 
not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. 

 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. 

   i) Port concession rights

 Port concession rights represent the excess of the ascribed value of port operations paid by the Group over the 
fair values of the Group’s share of the identified movable assets and liabilities acquired from the Sabah Ports 
Authority pursuant to the Privatisation Agreement. The ascribed value of port operations inclusive of the port 
undertakings and existing movable assets is determined based on an independent valuation carried out by an 
appointed consultant. 

 The valuation was based on “as is where is” basis using the Discounted Cash Flow method of valuation and at a 
discount factor of 11.5%. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.9 Intangible assets (cont’d)

b) Other intangible assets (cont’d)

   i) Port concession rights (cont’d)

 Port concession rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. 

 Port concession rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over the port concessions period of 30 years.

 ii) Software licence and port management system development costs

 Software licence and port management system development costs are amortised using the straight-line basis over 
the estimated economic useful lives of 4 years. 

 Amortisation of the assets commences when the assets are ready in use.  

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets 

 The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication 
exists, or when an annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable 
amount. 

 An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in 
use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable 
cash flows (cash-generating units (“CGU”)). 

 Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written 
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset 
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken 
into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Impairment losses 
recognised in respect of a CGU or groups of CGUs are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit or groups 
of units on a pro-rata basis.

 The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each 
of the Group’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are 
generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future 
cash flows after the fifth year.

 Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. 

 An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses 
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exist, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. 
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s 
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased 
to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 
had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss. Impairment loss on goodwill is 
not reversed in a subsequent period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
 

2.11 Subsidiaries

 A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has all the following:

 (i) power over the investee (i.e existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee);
 (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and 
 (iii) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns. 

 In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment losses. On 
disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in profit or loss. 

2.12 Financial assets

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial 
instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

 When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value 
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.  

 Subsequent measurement

 The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

 a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading or are designated as such 
upon initial recognition. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or 
repurchasing in the near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are 
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by MFRS 139. Derivatives, including separated 
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

 The Group has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

 Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Any gains 
or losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or net losses 
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss do not include exchange differences, interest and dividend income. 
Exchange differences, interest and dividend income on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised 
separately in profit or loss as part of other losses or other income. 

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as current or non-current. Financial assets that are 
held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current whereas financial assets that are not held primarily for trading 
purposes are presented as current or non-current based on the settlement date. 

 b) Loans and receivables

 Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified 
as loans and receivables.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
 
 2.12 Financial assets (cont’d)

  Subsequent measurement (cont’d)
  
  b) Loans and receivables (cont’d)

 Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are 
derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process. 

 Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having maturity dates later than 12 months 
after the reporting date which are classified as non-current.

  c) Held-to-maturity investments

 Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold the investment to maturity.  

 Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the held-to-maturity 
investments are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process. 

 Held-to-maturity investments are classified as non-current assets, except for those having maturity within 12 
months after the reporting date which are classified as current.

  d) Available-for-sale financial assets 

 Available-for-sale financial assets include equity and debt securities. Equity investments classified as available-
for-sale are those, which are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. 
Debt securities in this category are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which 
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions. 

 After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses from 
changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, except that impairment 
losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments and interest calculated using the effective 
interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment when the 
financial asset is derecognised. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in 
profit or loss. Dividends on an available-for-sale equity instrument are recognised in profit or loss when the Group 
and the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

 Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less 
impairment loss. 

 Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets unless they are expected to be realised 
within 12 months after the reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
 
 2.12 Financial assets (cont’d)
  
  De-recognition

 A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired. On derecognition 
of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and any 
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. 

 Regular way purchase or sale of a financial assets

 All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade date i.e., the date that the 
Group and the Company commit to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial 
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace 
concerned. 

 2.13 Impairment of financial assets 

 The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is 
impaired.

 Financial assets carried at amortised cost

 For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually 
for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the 
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant 
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them 
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be 
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

 If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount 
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for 
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use 
of an allowance account. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

 When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial asset is reduced directly or if an amount was 
charged to the allowance account, the amounts charged to the allowance account are written off against the carrying value of the 
financial asset.

 To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been incurred, the Group 
considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant 
delay in payments. 

 If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the 
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit 
or loss. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits, and short-term, highly liquid investments that 
are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These also 
include bank overdrafts that form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

 2.15 Construction contracts

 The Group principally operates fixed price contracts. Contract revenue and contract costs are recognised as revenue and expenses 
respectively by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the reporting date (the percentage of completion 
method), when the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably. 

 The outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably when: (i) total contract revenue can be measured reliably; (ii) it is 
probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the entity; (iii) the costs to complete the contract and 
the stage of completion can be measured reliably; and (iv) the contract costs attributable to the contract can be clearly identified 
and measured reliably so that actual contract costs incurred can be compared with prior estimates.

 When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably (principally during early stages of a contract), contract 
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable and contract costs are recognised 
as expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

 An expected loss on the construction contract is recognised as an expense immediately when it is probable that total contract 
costs will exceed total contract revenue. 

 In applying the percentage of completion method, revenue recognised corresponds to the total contract revenue (as defined below) 
multiplied by the actual completion rate based on the proportion of total contract costs (as defined below) incurred to date to the 
estimated costs to complete.

 Contract revenue – Contract revenue corresponds to the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and any variations in 
contract work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue; and they can be 
reliably measured. 

 Contract costs – Contract costs include costs that relate directly to the specific contract and costs that are attributable to contract 
activity in general and can be allocated to the contract. 

 2.16 Land held for property development and property development costs

  (i) Land held for property development

 Land held for property development consists of land where no development activities have been carried out or where 
development activities are not expected to be completed within the normal operating cycle. Such land is classified within 
non-current assets and is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

 
 Land held for property development is reclassified as property development costs at the point when development activities 

have commenced and where it can be demonstrated that the development activities can be completed within the normal 
operating cycle. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
 
2.16 Land held for property development and property development costs (cont’d)

 (ii) Property development costs

 Property development costs comprise all costs that are directly attributable to development activities or that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis to such activities.

 When the financial outcome of a development activity can be reliably estimated, property development revenue and 
expenses are recognised in profit or loss by using the stage of completion method. The stage of completion is determined 
by the proportion that property development costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total property 
development costs. 

 Where the financial outcome of a development activity cannot be reliably estimated, property development revenue is 
recognised only to the extent of property development costs incurred that is probable will be recoverable, and property 
development costs on properties sold are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

 Any expected loss on a development project, including costs to be incurred over the defects liability period, is recognised 
as an expense immediately. 

 Property development costs not recognised as an expense are recognised as an asset, which is measured at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value. 

 The excess of revenue recognised in the profit or loss over billings to purchasers is classified as accrued billings within 
trade receivables and the excess of billings to purchasers over revenue recognised in profit or loss is classified as progress 
billings within trade payables. 

2.17 Inventories
 
 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 

location and condition comprise purchase costs and are accounted for on a first-in first-out basis.

 Where necessary, allowance is provided for damaged, obsolete and slow moving items to adjust the carrying value of inventories 
to the lower of cost and net realisable value.

 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

2.18 Provisions

 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated 
reliably. 

 Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an 
outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of 
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the 
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.19 Financial liabilities 

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial 
instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or 
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.  

 Subsequent measurement

 The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

 a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

 Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. 
This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging 
instruments in hedge relationships. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are 
designated as effective hedging instruments.

 Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Any gains 
or losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

 The Group has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

 b) Financial liabilities at amortised costs

 After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities 
are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

 De-recognition

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 2.20 Financial guarantee

 A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss 
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

 Financial guarantees are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial guarantees are recognised as income in profit or 
loss over the period of the guarantee. If it is probable that the liability will be higher than the amount initially recognised less 
amortisation, the liability is recorded at the higher amount with the difference charged to profit or loss.

 2.21 Borrowing costs 

 Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction 
or production of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset for its intended 
use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets 
are substantially completed for their intended use or sale. 

 All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and 
other costs that the Group incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

 2.22 Employee benefits 

 a) Defined contribution plans

 The Malaysian companies in the Group make contributions to the Employee Provident Fund (“EPF”) in Malaysia, a defined 
contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are recognised as an expense in the 
period in which the related service is performed.

b) Employee defined benefit liability

 The Group and the Company operate unfunded defined benefit plan for its eligible employees that provides retirement 
benefit to employees upon retirement. On the date of retirement, eligible employees are entitled to 0.5 to 1.0 month last 
drawn basic salary for each completed year of service.

 The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

 Defined benefit costs comprise the following:
 • service cost;
 • interest on the defined benefit liability; and
 • remeasurements of defined benefit liability.

 Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on curtailment and non-routine 
settlements are recognised as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognised when plan amendment or 
curtailment occurs.

 Interest on the defined benefit liability is calculated by applying the discount rate based on high quality corporate bonds to 
the defined benefit liability. Interest on the defined benefit liability is recognised as expense in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 2.22 Employee benefits (cont’d)

b) Employee defined benefit liability (cont’d)
 
 Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in the statement of financial position 

with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they 
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

c) Employee leave entitlement

 Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they accrue to the employees. The undiscounted 
liability for leave expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the reporting date is recognised for services 
rendered by employees up to the reporting date. The liability for leave expected to be settled beyond twelve months from 
the end of the reporting date is determined using the projected unit credit method. The net total of service costs, net 
interest on the liability and remeasurement of the liability are recognised in profit or loss.

2.23 Leases 

 The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception 
date: whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a 
right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

a) As lessee

 Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased 
item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value 
of the minimum lease payments. Any initial direct costs are also added to the amount capitalised. Lease payments are 
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on 
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged to profit or loss. Contingent rents, if any, are charged 
as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

 Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term, if 
there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

 Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The 
aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term 
on a straight-line basis. 

b) As lessor

 Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are classified as operating 
leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset 
and recognised over the lease term on the same bases as rental income. The accounting policy for rental income is set out 
in Note 2.24(h). Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.24 Revenue

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be 
reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received 
or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Group assesses its 
revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met 
before revenue is recognised:

a) Sales of goods

 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised net of sales taxes upon transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
the goods to the customer, usually on delivery of goods. Revenue is not recognised to the extent where there are significant 
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

b) Revenue from contracts

 Revenue from contracts is accounted for by the stage of completion method as described in Note 2.15.

c) Revenue from port operations

 Revenue from port operations are recognised on an accrual basis.

d) Revenue from services

 Revenue from services rendered is recognised net of discounts as and when the services are rendered.

e) Interest income

 Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

f) Management fees

 Management fees are recognised when services are rendered.

g) Dividend income

 Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

h) Rental income

 Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. The aggregate cost of incentives provided to 
lessees is recognised as a reduction of rental income over the lease on a straight-line basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.25 Taxes

a) Current income tax

 Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that 
are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

 Current income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognised outside 
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions 
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 
establishes provisions where appropriate.

b) Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except:

•  where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor 
taxable profit or loss; and

•  in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the 
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future. 

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and 
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except: 

• where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of 
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 

• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets 
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable 
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has 
become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.25 Taxes (cont’d)

  b) Deferred tax (cont’d)

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items 
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity and 
deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill on acquisition. 

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

c) Sales tax

 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except: 

•  Where the sales tax incurred in a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in 
which case the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item 
as applicable; and

•  Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

 The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or 
payables in the statements of financial position.

2.26 Segment reporting

 For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating segments based on their products and services which are 
independently managed by the respective segment managers responsible for the performance of the respective segments under 
their charge. The segment managers report directly to the management of the Company who regularly review the segment results 
in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess the segment performance. Additional disclosures on each of these 
segments are shown in Note 39, including the factors used to identify the reportable segments and the measurement basis of 
segment information.   

2.27 Share capital and share issuance expenses

 An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its 
liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments.

 Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incremental transaction costs. Ordinary shares 
are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared.

2.28 Contingencies

 A contingent liability is:

a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group; or
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.28 Contingencies (cont’d)

 b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

(i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; 
or 

(ii) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

 A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. 

 Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statements of financial position of the Group. 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

 The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. Uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the 
asset or liability affected in the future periods.
 
3.1 Judgement made in applying accounting policies

 There are no critical judgements made by management in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements.

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting are discussed below. 
The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing 
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances 
arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Impairment of goodwill and port concession rights

 Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and at other times when such indicators exist. This requires an estimation of the 
value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill is allocated.

 Port concession rights are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indicator that the intangible assets may be 
impaired.

 When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset 
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. 
Further details of the carrying value, the key assumptions applied in the impairment assessment of goodwill and port 
concession rights and sensitivity analysis to changes in assumptions are given in Note 15.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT’D)
 

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

b) Impairment of loans and receivables

 The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. 
To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the probability of 
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.

 Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on 
historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. The carrying amount of the Group’s loans and 
receivable at the reporting date is disclosed in Note 19. If the present value of estimated future cash flows varies by 10% 
from management’s estimates, the Group’s allowance for impairment will increase by RM179,000 (2012: RM196,000).

c) Employee defined benefit liability

 The cost of defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. The valuation involves making 
various assumptions. These include the determination of discount rate and future salary increases (taking into account 
ceiling of each salary scales). Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, 
employee defined benefit liability is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each 
reporting date. Details on employee defined benefit liability are presented in Note 30.

 In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of high quality corporate bonds with 
at least AA rating, with extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the employee defined benefit 
obligation.

 Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates.
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4. REVENUE
  Group  Company
    2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Income from port operations: 
 - At wharves   206,121 203,971 - -
 - Anchorage  14,381 14,594 - -
 - Ferry terminal   3,225 2,239 - -
Contract income  3,412 14,371 - 2,382
Dividend income from subsidiaries  - - 27,982 45,064
Equipment maintenance fee  35 6 - -
Interest income from deposits  954 421 954 421
Investment income from investments securities  1,097 1,117 1,097 1,117
Management fees  - - 4,440 4,440
Miscellaneous income  1,642 1,340 - -
Net fair value gains on financial instruments:  
 - Investment securities  470 300 470 300
Rental income  795 687 90 90
Sale of equipment  3,338 166 - -
Sale of fuel and lubricants  21,338 19,558 - -
Transportation and handling fee  6,522 4,158 - -

     263,330 262,928 35,033 53,814

5. INTEREST INCOME

  Group  Company
    2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Interest income from: 
 Deposits with financial institutions  1,338 883 - -
 Other loans and receivables  349 156 174 242

    1,687 1,039 174 242
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6. OTHER INCOME

  Group  Company
    2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Gain on disposal of equipment  321 460 - -
Hiring income  43 73 - -
Investment income from investment securities  2,098 2,594 - -
Land leasing income  3,281 2,067 - -
Net fair value gains on financial instruments: 
 - investment securities  443 368 - -
Net foreign exchange gain 
 - realised  46 17 - -
 - unrealised  449 271 - -
Rental income  1,997 2,556 - -
Reversal of allowance for impairment loss on: 
 - trade receivables  163 105 - -
Sundry income  3,420 2,544 2 58
Waiver of amounts due to creditors  31 - - -

     12,292 11,055 2 58

     

7. FINANCE COSTS

  Group  Company
    2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Interest expense on: 
 Obligations under finance leases  1 8 - -
 Revolving credit financing  11 77 - -
 Term loan and trade loan  48 274 - -
 Loan from Sabah Ports Authority  6,737 7,557 - -
 Amount due to Sabah State Government  1,659 2,311 - -
Islamic Debt Securities   2,609 3,187 - -

Total finance costs  11,065 13,414 - -
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
 
 The following items have been included in arriving at profit before tax:

  Group  Company
    2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Employee benefits expense (Note 9)  54,501 54,132 4,486 4,302
Non-executive directors’ remuneration (Note 10)  909 742 587 473
Allowance for impairment loss on: 
 - trade receivables (Note 19)  71 1,161 - -
 - other receivables (Note 19)  - - 1 -
Amortisation of port concession rights (Note 15)  3,687 3,687 - -
Amortisation of software licenses and system 
 development (Note 15)  65 1,941 - -
Auditors’ remuneration: 
 Statutory audit: 
 - current year  173 153 62 53
 - under/(over) provision in respect of previous year  3 (2) 2 -
 Other services: 
 - current year  69 65 33 29
 - under provision in respect of previous year  4 4 4 4
Depreciation of investment properties   - 9 - 22
Depreciation of property, plant  and equipment (Note 13)  30,245 30,763 946 886
Hiring of equipment and motor vehicles  1,324 1,251 401 321
Inventories written down  146 53 - -
Leasing of port land  8,567 8,764 - -
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment  - 2,721 - 157
Loss on disposals of investment properties  - 177 - 425
Plant and equipment written off  39 14 - 11
Realised gain on foreign exchange, net  (5) (14) - -
Rental of office premises  1,045 1,227 495 570
Reversal of allowance for impairment loss on other 
 receivables (Note 19)  (54) (24) (54) (24)
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

  Group  Company
    2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Salaries, wages and allowances  41,142 39,781 3,002 3,010
Contributions to defined contribution plan  6,252 5,240 530 526
Bonuses 
 - current year  6,681 9,046 728 670
 - over provision in respect of previous year  (3,142) (3,376) (40) (180)
Employee defined benefit expense  1,527 1,508 36 36
Social security contributions  523 506 27 27
Interest subsidies  241 288 7 11
Medical expenses  1,811 1,728 169 167
Employee leave entitlement  76 77 27 35

     55,111 54,798 4,486 4,302
Less: 
Employee benefits expense capitalised in 
 contract work-in-progress  (610) (666) - -

     54,501 54,132 4,486 4,302

 
 Included in employee benefits expense of the Group and of the Company are executive directors’ remuneration amounting to RM1,051,000 

(2012: RM1,059,000) and RM606,000 (2012: RM606,000) respectively as further disclosed in Note 10.

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

  Group  Company
    2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Executive directors’ remuneration (Note 9): 
 Fees   - - - -
 Other emoluments  1,051 1,059 606 606

     1,051 1,059 606 606

Non-executive directors’ remuneration (Note 8): 
 Fees   446 445 296 346
 Other emoluments  463 297 291 127

     909 742 587 473

Total directors’ remuneration (Note 33(b))  1,960 1,801 1,193 1,079
Estimated money value of benefits-in-kind  79 70 23 49

Total directors’ remuneration
 including benefits-in-kind  2,039 1,871 1,216 1,128
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D)

The details of remuneration receivable by directors of the Company during the year are as follows:

  Group  Company
    2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Executive: 
 Salaries and allowances  366 366 366 366
 Bonus  135 135 135 135
 Defined contribution plan  105 105 105 105
 Estimated money value of benefits-in-kind  23 15 23 15

    629 621 629 621

Non-Executive: 
 Fees   356 346 296 346
 Other emoluments  303 153 291 127
 Estimated money value of benefits-in-kind  - 34 - 34

    659 533 587 507

    1,288 1,154 1,216 1,128

  
 The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the financial year fell within the following bands is analysed 

below:

     Number of Directors
      2013 2012

Executive directors:    
RM600,001 - RM650,000    1 1
    
Non-executive directors:    
Below RM50,000    7 7
RM50,001   - RM100,000    3 3
RM100,001 - RM150,000    - 1
RM200,001 - RM250,000    1 -
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Major components of income tax expense

The major components of income tax expense for the financial years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are:

  Group  Company
    2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Statement of comprehensive income 
Current income tax: 
 - Malaysian income tax  847 491 - -
 - Under provision in respect of previous year  13 3 38 -

     860 494 38 -

Deferred income tax (Note18): 
 - Origination and reversal of temporary differences  21,753 18,678 - -
 - Relating to change in tax rate  (1,561) - - -
 - Over provision in respect of previous year  (8) (199) - -

     20,184 18,479 - -

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss  21,044 18,973 38 -

      
 A subsidiary of the Company, Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. had obtained approval from the Minister of Finance for this subsidiary’s port operations 

to be regarded as an approved service project under Schedule 7B of the Income Tax Act, 1967, whereby this subsidiary is entitled to claim 
investment allowance tax incentive at the rate of 100% on capital expenditure incurred for the period of five years from 1 September 2004 
to 31 August 2009.

 As at 31 December 2013, the total investment allowance claimed by this subsidiary arising from this approval was approximately 
RM689,195,000 and utilised as follows:
   
       RM’000

Total investment allowance claimed for years of
 assessment 2004 to 2009     689,195

Less: Utilised for:   
 - previous years     (412,111)
 - current year     (83,191)

        (495,302)

Unabsorbed investment allowance carried forward for
 future years     193,893
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)
 

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

 The reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the corporate tax rate for the years ended  
31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

  Group Company
    2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Accounting profit before tax  82,312 69,279 25,217 42,425

Tax at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%)  20,578 17,320 6,304 10,606
Adjustments: 
 - Income not subject to taxation  (967) (1,238) (7,260) (11,575)
 - Non-deductible expenses  2,670 2,547 346 483
 - Effect of change in tax rate on deferred tax   (1,561) - - -
 - Deferred tax assets not recognised   632 841 610 486
 - Benefits from previously unrecognised tax losses 
   and unabsorbed allowances  (313) (301) - -
 - Under provision of income tax in respect of 
   previous year  13 3 38 -
 - Over provision of deferred income tax in 
   respect of previous year  (8) (199) - -

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss  21,044 18,973 38 -

 Domestic income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%) of the estimated assessable profit for the 
year. The domestic statutory tax rate will be reduced to 24% from the current year’s rate of 25% effective year of assessment 2016. The 
computation of deferred tax as at 31 December 2013 has reflected the change.

 Tax savings during the financial year arising from:
 
  Group Company

    2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Utilisation of current year tax losses  304 226 304 226
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses  243 294 - -
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit net of tax, attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year. 

 The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares.  

 The following tables reflect the profit and share data used in the computation of basic earnings per share for the years ended 31 December:
 
             Group
      2013 2012

      RM’000 RM’000

 Profit net of tax attributable to owners of the Company 
 used in the computation of basic earnings per share    61,097 50,227

      
      Number of  Number of 
      shares shares

      ‘000 ‘000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic 
 earnings per share computation    283,328 283,328

Basic earnings per ordinary share (sen)    21.56 17.73

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EqUIPMENT  

     Motor Port
     vehicles, development
     vessel, and ancillary
   Wharves,  furniture, facilities,
 Long term  jetties and Cargo equipment and other
 leasehold  ferry handling and construction-
Group land Buildings terminal equipment renovation in-progress Total
 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000  RM’000

Cost:       
At 1 January 
 2012 54,231 43,320 400,635 237,720 38,345 75,195 849,446
Additions - - 80 380 2,380 7,835 10,675
Disposals - (5,637) - (8,982) (1,430) - (16,049)
Write off - - - - (105) - (105)
Reclassifications - 10 672 - 703 (1,385) -

At 31 December 
 2012 and 
 1 January 
 2013 54,231 37,693 401,387 229,118 39,893 81,645 843,967
Additions 306 16 2,401 6,007 1,343 24,951 35,024
Disposals - - - - (1,107) - (1,107)
Write off - - - - (107) - (107)
Reclassifications - 697 4,338 214 (3,000) (2,249) -

At 31 December 
 2013 54,537 38,406 408,126 235,339 37,022 104,347 877,777
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EqUIPMENT (CONT’D)
  

     Motor Port
     vehicles, development
     vessel, and ancillary
   Wharves,  furniture, facilities,
 Long term  jetties and Cargo equipment and other
 leasehold  ferry handling and construction-
Group land Buildings terminal equipment renovation in-progress Total
 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000  RM’000

Accumulated 
 depreciation 
 and 
 impairment 
 loss:       
At 1 January 
 2012 1,275 7,015 72,235 51,443 28,360 900 161,228
Depreciation 
 charge 
 for the year 
 (Note 8) 567 1,459 15,392 10,497 2,848 - 30,763
Disposals - (757) - (5,666) (1,378) - (7,801)
Write off - - - - (91) - (91)

At 31 December 
 2012 and 
 1 January 
 2013 1,842 7,717 87,627 56,274 29,739 900 184,099
Depreciation 
 charge 
 for the year 
 (Note 8) 530 1,435 15,521 10,549 2,210 - 30,245
Disposals - - - - (603) - (603)
Write off - - - - (68) - (68)
Reclassifications - - 505 - (505) - -

At 31 December 
 2013 2,372 9,152 103,653 66,823 30,773 900 213,673

Net carrying 
 amount:       
At 31 December 
 2012 52,389 29,976 313,760 172,844 10,154 80,745 659,868

At 31 December 
 2013 52,165 29,254 304,473 168,516 6,249 103,447 664,104
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EqUIPMENT (CONT’D) 

 Long term   Furniture
 leasehold   Office and office Motor
Company land Buildings equipment renovation vehicles Total
 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 

Cost:       
At 1 January 2012  50,017 1,870 1,571 1,297 87 54,842
Additions  - - 188 17 - 205
Disposals  - (1,870) (14) (61) - (1,945)
Write off  - - (72) (1) - (73)

At 31 December 2012 
 and 1 January 2013  50,017 - 1,673 1,252 87 53,029
Additions  - - 245 - - 245

At 31 December 2013  50,017 - 1,918 1,252 87 53,274

Accumulated 
 Depreciation:     
At 1 January 2012  1,029 245 1,214 466 25 2,979
Depreciation charge 
 for the year (Note 8)  506 7 126 232 15 886
Disposals  - (252) (14) (17) - (283)
Write off  - - (61) (1) - (62)

At 31 December 2012 
 and 1 January 2013  1,535 - 1,265 680 40 3,520
Depreciation charge 
 for the year (Note 8)  506 - 193 232 15 946

At 31 December 2013  2,041 - 1,458 912 55 4,466

Net carrying amount:     
At 31 December 2012  48,482 - 408 572 47 49,509

At 31 December 2013  47,976 - 460 340 32 48,808

Assets held under finance leases

 During the financial year, the Group acquired office equipment with an aggregate cost of RM4,000 (2012: RM8,000) by means of finance 
lease. The cash outflow on acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounted to RM35,020,000 (2012: RM10,667,000). 

 The carrying amounts of office equipment and motor vehicles of the Group held under finance leases at the reporting date were RM9,000 
(2012: RM9,000) and nil (2012: RM22,000) respectively.

 Leased assets are pledged as security for the related finance lease liabilities (Note 24).
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EqUIPMENT (CONT’D)

Assets pledged as security

 In addition to assets held under finance leases, the net carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment of the Group mortgaged to 
secure the Group’s bank loans (Note 24) are as follows:

   Group
      2013 2012

      RM’000 RM’000

Shares, at cost   
Long term leasehold land    - 2,414
Buildings    - 191
Vessel      - 484

      - 3,089

   
14. LAND HELD FOR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 

     Long term  Property
     leasehold development
     land costs Total
     RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group and Company 
Cost: 
2013 
At 1 January 2013   114,981 4,945 119,926
Additions   - 850 850

At 31 December 2013   114,981 5,795 120,776

2012 
At 1 January 2012    114,981 4,403 119,384
Additions   - 542 542

At 31 December 2012   114,981 4,945 119,926

 The relevant authority has issued the offer letter to alienate the land to the Company for a land premium payable of RM142,100,000 and 
the said land is for the purpose of mixed commercial/tourism-related development. A portion of the said land that will be retained for its 
own use or for future investment is classified under property, plant and equipment. The amount of land premium outstanding as at year 
end is disclosed in Note 28. 

 On 21 May 2013, the Company entered into a Joint Venture Agreement in respect of the Jesselton Waterfront Project with SBC Corporation 
Berhad for the development of the land held for property development.
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
    
    Goodwill on   Software
    acquisition Port licences and
     of port  concession system
    operations rights  development Total

    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group
 Cost: 
 At 1 January 2012  4,486 110,615 7,389 122,490

Additions  - - - -

 At 31 December 2012   4,486 110,615 7,389 122,490
Additions  - - 113 113

At 31 December 2013  4,486 110,615 7,502 122,603

 Accumulated amortisation: 
 At 1 January 2012  - 27,038 5,287 32,325

Amortisation (Note 8)  - 3,687 1,941 5,628

 At 31 December 2012 and 
   1 January 2013  - 30,725 7,228 37,953

Amortisation (Note 8)  - 3,687 65 3,752

At 31 December 2013   - 34,412 7,293 41,705

 Net carrying amount: 
At 31 December 2012  4,486 79,890 161 84,537

At 31 December 2013  4,486 76,203 209 80,898

    
 Impairment testing of goodwill on acquisition of port operations and port concession rights

 Goodwill on acquisition of port operations and port concession rights are related to the acquisition of port operations pursuant to the 
Privatisation Agreement.

 Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations

 The recoverable amount of the port operations under the Privatisation Agreement is determined based on value-in-use calculations using 
the cash flow projections approved by the Board. The key assumptions used for cash flow projections are:

       
     Average rate of port dues 

       and charges
       2014 - 2034

At wharves   
 - Liquid cargo (RM/MT)     8.7
 - Dry cargo (RM/MT)     12.1
 - Container (RM/TEU)     280.3

At anchorage (RM/MT)     1.7
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT’D)

 Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations (cont’d)
       

     Average growth rate 
       2014 - 2034
       %

At wharves   
 - Liquid cargo     1.3 – 1.5
 - Dry cargo     1.0 – 1.8
 - Container     5.1 – 6.0

At anchorage     3.6 – 4.1

 The following describes the key assumptions upon which the Board has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing 
of goodwill and port concession rights:

 i) Rate of port dues and charges of major types of cargo

  The port dues and charges are in accordance to the current tariff rates pursuant to the “Sabah Ports Authority (Scales of Dues & 
Charges) Regulations 1977” and subsequent amendments thereto and the estimated revision in 2015 on the tariff rates pursuant 
to the Privatisation Agreement as follows:

       2015 - 2034

  Port dues (RM/Gross Registered Tonnage)     0.15
  Wharfage (RM/MT)     3.00
  Operations at anchor (RM/MT)     1.50
  Cargo handling (RM/MT)     4.00 - 10.00

ii)  Growth rate by cargo and container volume

  The average growth rates used are consistent with the projected long-term average growth rate for the port industry and the 
projected growth rate of the palm oil industry in Sabah.

iii)  Discount rate

  The discount rates used are post-tax and reflect specific risk relating to the port industry.

iv)  The Privatisation Agreement dated 23 September 2003 entered between the subsidiary (Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd.), the Company, 
the Sabah State Government and Sabah Ports Authority shall continue to be applicable throughout the projection years.

v)  Staff cost, repairs and maintenance and other overheads are generally projected to increase by 4% to 5%.

vi) The capital expenditure is based on projected capital expenditure programme.
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT’D)
 
 Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

 With regard to the assessment of value-in-use of the port operations, the Board believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the 
above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the port operations to materially exceed their recoverable amounts, save as 
discussed below:

i) Growth rate assumption

  The Board recognises that the growth of the industries in Sabah, in particular the palm oil industry, can have a significant impact 
on growth rate assumptions.

ii)  Capital expenditure programme

  The Board recognises that any delay in the implementation of the projected capital expenditure programme may affect the value-
in-use of the port operations.

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
 
       

 Company
      2013 2012
      RM’000 RM’000

Shares, at cost   
Unquoted ordinary shares    113,700 115,700
Irredeemable preference shares    90,000 90,000
Redeemable preference shares     24,300 24,300

      228,000 230,000
Impairment loss    (300) (300)

      227,700 229,700
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D) 

 Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

     Proportion (%) of 
 Country of      ownership interest
 incorporation/      Held by non-
 principal place    Held by the controlling
Name of business Principal Activities   Group* interests*
   2013 2012 2013 2012

Held by the  Company: 
 
Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Provision and maintenance 
     of port services and 
     facilities, and the regulation 
      and control of the 
     management of ports 100 100 - -

Suria Bumiria Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Property developer and 
     ferry terminal operator 100 100 - -

SCHB Engineering Malaysia Construction contractor, 
 Services Sdn. Bhd.    provision of project 
     management and technical
      support services 100 100 - -

S.P. Satria Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Distribution of port cargo 
     handling equipment and 
     related spare parts, and 
     provision of equipment 
      maintenance services 70 70 30 30

S.P. Satria Logistics Malaysia Provision of bunkering and
 Sdn. Bhd.     related services  - 100 - -

Tricubes Suria Sdn. Bhd.^ Malaysia Ceased operation in year 
     2009 60 60 40 40

Held through 
  Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd.:

S.P. Satria Logistics Malaysia Provision of bunkering and
 Sdn. Bhd.     related services 100 - - -

^ Under winding-up by the order of the Court on the petition of the Company.
*  Equals to the proportion of voting rights held.

The non-controlling interests in respect of the subsidiaries of the Group are not material to the Group.

During the financial year, the Company disposed of its 100% equity interest in S.P. Satria Logistics Sdn. Bhd. to its subsidiary, Sabah Ports 
Sdn. Bhd., for a total cash consideration of RM2,000,000. 
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17. DEFERRED TAX (CONT’D)

Unrecognised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances

 At the reporting date, the Group and the Company have tax losses of approximately RM10,267,000 (2012: RM8,310,000) and RM7,101,000 
(2012: RM4,934,000) respectively and unabsorbed capital allowances of approximately RM3,580,000 (2012: RM3,292,000) and 
RM2,737,000 (2012: RM2,470,000) respectively that are available for offset against future taxable profit of the companies in which the 
losses arose, for which no deferred tax assets are recognised due to uncertainty of their recoverability. The availability of unused tax losses 
and unabsorbed capital allowances for offsetting against future taxable profit of the respective companies are subject to no substantial 
changes in shareholdings of those companies under the Income Tax Act, 1967 and guidelines issued by the tax authority.

Tax consequences of proposed dividends

 There are no income tax consequences (2012: nil) attached to the dividends to the shareholders proposed by the Company but not 
recognised as a liability in the financial statements (Note 40).

18. INVENTORIES
 

        Group
      2013 2012
      RM’000 RM’000

Cost   
Fuel and lubricants    544  3,730
Spare parts    4,223  3,205

       4,767  6,935
Net realisable value  
Fuel and lubricants    382  53

       5,149  6,988

Inventories recognised as an expense in profit or loss    33,976  31,464

   

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

  Group  Company
   2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Current 
Trade receivables 
Third parties  23,824 31,126 - 9,022
Amounts due from subsidiaries  - - 1,751 2,156

    23,824 31,126 1,751 11,178
Less: Allowance for impairment 
  Third parties  (1,611) (1,725) - -
  Amount due from subsidiary  - - (753) (753)

Trade receivables, net  22,213 29,401 998 10,425
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

  Group  Company
   2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Other receivables 
Amounts due from subsidiaries  - - 3,344 7,654
Refundable deposits  4,526 4,872 205 180
Sundry receivables  2,611 5,209 949 4,198

    7,137 10,081 4,498 12,032
Less: Allowance for impairment 
  Third parties  (177) (231) (177) (231)
  Amount due from subsidiary  - - (1,162) (1,161)

Other receivables, net  6,960 9,850 3,159 10,640

    29,173 39,251 4,157 21,065

Total trade and other receivables  29,173 39,251 4,157 21,065

Add: Amount due from Sabah Ports  Authority  - 71 - -
Add: Cash and bank balances (Note 23)  121,961 82,463 46,036 35,627

Total loans and receivables  151,134 121,785 50,193 56,692

(a) Trade receivables

  Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 to 90 days’ (2012: 30 to 90 days) terms. They are recognised 
at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition. 

  Trade receivables of the Group amounting to RM8,823,000 (2012: RM9,478,000) are secured by bank guarantees made in favour 
of the Group.

 Ageing analysis of trade receivables

  The ageing analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables are as follows: 

  Group  Company
   2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

  Neither past due nor impaired   13,292 20,061 63 8,217
  1 to 30 days past due not impaired  2,239 843 63 63
  31 to 60 days past due not impaired  537 328 63 63
  61 to 90 days past due not impaired   685 3,560 35 63
  More than 91 days past due not impaired  5,460 4,609 774 2,019
    8,921 9,340 935 2,208

    22,213 29,401 998 10,425
  Impaired  1,611 1,725 753 753

    23,824 31,126 1,751 11,178

Notes to the Financial Statements cont’d
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013



ANNUAL REPORT 2013   | 111

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

(a) Trade receivables (cont’d)

 Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired 
  Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good payment records with the Group and 

the Company. 

  None of the Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated during the 
financial year.

 Receivables that are past due but not impaired
  The Group has trade receivables amounting to RM8,921,000 (2012: RM9,340,000) that are past due at the reporting date but not 

impaired. 

 Receivables that are impaired
  The Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables that are impaired at the reporting date and the movement of the allowance 

accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:

      Individually impaired
      2013 2012
      RM’000 RM’000

  Group  
  Trade receivables – nominal amounts    1,611 1,725
  Less: Allowances for impairment    (1,611) (1,725)

      - -

  Company  
  Trade receivables – nominal amounts    753 753
  Less: Allowances for impairment    (753) (753)

      - -

  Movement in allowance accounts:

       Group Company
    2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

  At 1 January  1,725 684 753 753
  Charge for the year (Note 8)  71 1,161 - -
  Written off  (22) (15) - -
  Reversal of impairment loss (Note 6)  (163) (105) - -

  At 31 December  1,611 1,725 753 753

  Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the reporting date relate to debtors that have in significant 
financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. 
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

 (b) Related party balances

 Amounts due from related parties are non-interest bearing except for amounts due from certain subsidiaries which bear interest 
ranging from 3.5% to 7.10% (2012: from 4.95% to 7.10%) per annum. These amounts are unsecured and repayable upon demand. 

 Other receivables that are impaired

 At the reporting date, the Group and the Company have provided an allowance of RM177,000 (2012: RM231,000) and RM1,339,000 (2012: 
RM1,392,000) respectively for impairment of other receivables.

 Movement in allowance accounts:          
 Group Company

      2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 At 1 January:    231 291 1,392 1,416
 Charge for the year (Note 8)  - - 1 -
 Written off    - (36) - -
 Reversal of impairment loss (Note 8)  (54) (24) (54) (24)

 At 31 December  177 231 1,339 1,392

20. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 Group Company
      2013 2012 2013 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 
 Prepaid operating expenses  648 2,004 7 9
 Non-refundable deposits  20 640 - -
 Prepaid capital expenditure  502 - - -
 Amount due from customers for contract (Note 22)  1,077 3,042 - -

Accrued billings in respect of completed contracts  82 1,800 - -

    2,329 7,486 7 9

21. INVESTMENT SECURITIES
       2013 2012
     Market  Market
    Carrying value of quoted Carrying value of quoted
    amount investments amount investments
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group 
Held for trading investments 
- Unit trust funds (quoted in Malaysia)  130,392 130,392 133,312 133,312

Company 
Held for trading investments 
- Unit trust funds (quoted in Malaysia)  48,996 48,996 42,729 42,729
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22. AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK-IN-PROGRESS

  Group Company
     2013 2012 2013 2012
     RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Cost
 Construction contract costs incurred to date  5,080 27,444 - -
 Attributable profits  505 2,980 - -

     5,585 30,424 - -
 Less: Progress billings  (4,508) (31,210) - -

     1,077 (786) - -

 Presented as:
 Amount due from customers for contract (Note 20)  1,077 3,042 - -
 Amount due to customers for contract (Note 29)  - (3,828) - -

     1,077 (786) - -

 Retention sums on construction
  contract included in trade receivables  2 862 - -

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

  Group Company
     2013 2012 2013 2012
     RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Cash at banks and on hand  35,040 28,424 18,891 18,304
 Cash at banks pledged as securities for Islamic Debts 
  Securities  6,154 6,429 - -
 Short term deposits with:
 - licensed banks  45,534 25,324 27,145 17,323
 - other financial institutions  30,030 17,267 - -
 Deposits with maturity more than 3 months  5,203 5,019 - -

 Total cash and bank balances  121,961 82,463 46,036 35,627

 Short term deposits are made for varying periods of between 1 day and 3 months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the 
Group and the Company, and earn interests at the respective short term deposit rates. The weighted average effective interest rates as at 
31 December 2013 for the Group and the Company were 3.3% (2012: 3.3%) and 3.2% (2012: 3.3%) respectively.

 Deposits with other financial institution with maturity more than 3 months of the Group are held under lien to secure bank guarantees 
which includes guarantees made in favour of the Sabah Ports Authority against lease rental of port land payable to Sabah Ports Authority 
and the due maintenance of Sabah Ports’ properties and facilities.
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23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CONT’D)

 For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following at the reporting date:

  Group Company
     2013 2012 2013 2012
     RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Cash on hand and at banks  35,040 28,424 18,891 18,304
 Short term deposits with:
 - licensed banks  45,534 25,324 27,145 17,323
 - other financial institutions  30,030 17,267 - -

 Total cash and bank balances  110,604 71,015 46,036 35,627

24. BORROWINGS 

  Group Company
    Maturity 2013 2012 2013 2012
     RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Current
 Secured:
 Islamic Debt Securities (Note 25) 2014 10,565 10,700 - -
 Term loan  - 922 - -
 Trade loan  - 3,448 - -
 Revolving credit financing  - 1,008 - -
 Obligations under finance leases (Note 34(d)) 2014 4 23 - -

     10,569 16,101 - -

 Non-current
 Secured:
 Islamic Debt Securities (Note 25) 2017 30,000 40,000 - -
 Term loan  - 36 - -
 Obligations under finance leases (Note 34(d)) 2015 3 4 - -

     30,003 40,040 - -

 Total borrowings  40,572 56,141 - -

 Total borrowings  40,572 56,141 - -
 Add: Loan from Sabah Ports Authority (Note 26)  147,096 168,420 - -
 Add: Amount due to Sabah State Government (Note 27)  41,487 47,572 - -

 Total loans and borrowings  229,155 272,133 - -
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24. BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

 The remaining maturities of the loans and borrowings as at 31 December 2013 are as follows:

   Group
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 On demand or within one year    38,672 43,509
 More than 1 year and less than 2 years    38,993 38,142
 More than 2 years and less than 5 years    112,655 119,777
 5 years or more    38,835 70,705

       229,155 272,133

 Obligations under finance leases
 These obligations are secured by a charge over the leased assets (Note 13). The average discount rate implicit in the leases is 5.1% per 

annum (2012: 8.3% per annum).

 Term loan
 Term loan was denominated in RM, bore interest at 5.75% per annum. It was secured by the first legal charge over leasehold land and 

buildings of a subsidiary of the Company and a fixed charge on the vessel of a subsidiary of the Company (Note 13). This term loan was 
fully settled during the financial year.

 Trade loan
 Trade loan was denominated in RM, bore interest as bank’s cost of fund + 1.00% per annum. This trade loan was fully settled during the 

financial year.

 Revolving credit financing
 This financing facility was denominated in RM, bore interest at bank’s base financing rate + 1.15% per annum. 

25. ISLAMIC DEBT SECURITIES 

   Group
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Secured:
 BAIDS

 Current    10,565 10,700
 Non-current    30,000 40,000

 Total    40,565 50,700
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25. ISLAMIC DEBT SECURITIES (CONT’D)

 a) RM80 million Bai’ Bithaman Ajil Islamic Debt Securities (“BAIDS”) 

   Group
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Nominal value of BAIDS facility    40,000 50,000
 Accrued finance costs    565 700

       40,565 50,700

  On 2 April 2007, a subsidiary of the Company, Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. issued BAIDS of RM80,000,000.

  The BAIDS comprise tranches as follows:

      Coupon
      Rates Tenure RM

 Tranche 1   5.15% 3 years 10,000,000
 Tranche 2   5.25% 4 years 10,000,000
 Tranche 3   5.35% 5 years 10,000,000
 Tranche 4   5.45% 6 years 10,000,000
 Tranche 5   5.55% 7 years 10,000,000
 Tranche 6   5.65% 8 years 10,000,000
 Tranche 7   5.75% 9 years 10,000,000
 Tranche 8   5.85% 10 years 10,000,000

        80,000,000

 b) RM70 million Murabahah Underwritten Notes Issuance Facility/Islamic Medium Term Notes Facility (“MUNIF/IMTN”)

  The subsidiary of the Company, Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd., has also obtained RM70 million MUNIF Notes/IMTN facilities. The MUNIF/
IMTN facilities will expire 7 years from the date of first issue.

 The BAIDS and MUNIF/IMTN share security on a pari passu basis over:

 i) assignment and charge of the Designated Accounts and monies standing to the credit of the accounts, including permitted 
investments; and 

 ii) an undertaking from the Company.
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26. LOAN FROM SABAH PORTS AUTHORITY 

   Group
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Cumulative:
 Amounts drawndown    193,000 193,000
 Accrued interest    66,338 59,601
 Repayment    (112,242) (84,181)

       147,096 168,420

 Current    22,176 21,324
 Non-current    124,920 147,096

       147,096 168,420

 On 5 February 2005, a subsidiary of the Company, Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd., entered into a loan agreement with Sabah Ports Authority, to 
secure a loan facility of RM193 million from Sabah Ports Authority. This loan to Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. was made in pursuant to the Loan 
Agreement entered between the Government of Malaysia and Sabah Ports Authority dated 31 December 2004, wherein, the Government 
of Malaysia has agreed to make available a sum of RM193 million to Sabah Ports Authority to be on-lend to Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. for the 
purpose of part financing the purchase of cargo handling equipment and construction of the Sapangar Bay Container Terminal.

 The principal terms of the loan are as follows:

 Repayment: Over a period of ten years commencing from the sixth year after the date of the first drawdown.

 Interest: Shall bear interest at a rate of 4% per annum, and interest for the first five years after the date of the first drawdown shall 
be capitalised.

 There was no drawdown (2012: nil) during the financial year.

27. AMOUNT DUE TO SABAH STATE GOVERNMENT

   Group
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Current    5,927 6,085
 Non-current    35,560 41,487

       41,487 47,572

 This represents reimbursements payable to Sabah Ports Authority in respect of payments of capital expenditure made by Sabah Ports 
Authority prior to the takeover date pursuant to the terms of the Privatisation Agreement.

 On 24 January 2006, the repayment of this amount due to Sabah Ports Authority was restructured in the following manner:

 i) immediate repayment of RM20 million, which has been settled in 2006;
 ii) the balance of the RM59 million is repayable over ten years commencing from the sixth year after the loan has been restructured; and
 iii) interest bearing at 4% per annum and is payable annually.

 Subsequently, the Sabah State Government has approved the novation of this amount from Sabah Ports Authority to the Sabah State 
Government. The agreement to formalise the novation and restructured terms is pending finalisation and execution by parties involved.
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

 Group Company
      As at 1   As at 1
      January   January
    2013 2012 2012 2013 2012 2012
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Current
 Trade payables
 Third parties 13,802 10,740 11,683 - - -
 Amount due to subsidiary - - - - 8,454 8,313

    13,802 10,740 11,683 - 8,454 8,313

 Other payables
 Amount due to subsidiary - - - 2,403 4,735 4,690
 Accrued operating expenses 8,698 11,198 11,727 1,401 1,479 1,220
 Deposits received 4,297 2,157 2,175 2,000 - -
 Amounts due to contractors 3,253 2,104 3,803 - - -
 Retention monies of contractors 1,462 2,008 3,619 - - -
 Sundry payables 1,729 2,255 3,533 543 1,389 1,362
 Land premium payable 69,091 - - 69,091 - -

    88,530 19,722 24,857 75,438 7,603 7,272

    102,332 30,462 36,540 75,438 16,057 15,585

 Non-current
 Other payable
 Land premium payable - 69,091 69,091 - 69,091 69,091

    - 69,091 69,091 - 69,091 69,091

 Total trade and other payables 102,332 99,553 105,631 75,438 85,148 84,676
 Add: Amount due to 
  Sabah Ports Authority - - 2,841 - - -
 Add: Loans and borrowings 
  (Note 24) 229,155 272,133 341,932 - - -

 Total financial liabilities carried 
  at amortised cost  331,487 371,686 450,404 75,438 85,148 84,676

 a) Trade and other payables

  These amounts are non-interest bearing. Trade payables are normally settled on 30-days (2012: 30-days) terms.

 b) Amounts due to subsidiaries

  These amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable upon demand.

 c) Other payables

  These amounts are non-interest bearing. Other payables are normally settled on an average term of one month (2012: average 
term of one month).
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29. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITY

  Group Company
     2013 2012 2013 2012
     RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Amount due to customers for contract (Note 22)  - 3,828 - -

30. EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFIT LIABILITY

 The Group and the Company operate unfunded defined benefit plan for its eligible employees that provides retirement benefit to employees 
upon retirement. On the date of retirement, eligible employees are entitled to 0.5 to 1.0 month last drawn basic salary for each completed 
year of service.

 The following tables summarise the components of benefit expense recognised in profit or loss and the amount recognised in the statement 
of financial position for the plan.

 Benefit liability

 Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

  Group Company
     2013 2012 2013 2012
     RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 At 1 January  7,663 6,884 266 254

 Included in profit or loss:
 Current service cost  1,083 1,097 21 22
 Loss on settlements  16 29 - -
 Interest cost  428 382 15 14

     1,527 1,508 36 36

 Included in other comprehensive income:
 Remeasurement gains:
  Arising from changes in financial assumptions  - - - -
  Arising from experience adjustments  (80) (13) (1) (1)

     (80) (13) (1) (1)

 Benefits paid  (695) (716) (33) (23)

 At 31 December  8,415 7,663 268 266

 Benefit expense recognised in profit or loss is included in the following line items:

  Group Company
     2013 2012 2013 2012
     RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Cost of sales  1,341 1,296 - -
 Administrative expenses  186 212 36 36

     1,527 1,508 36 36
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30. EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFIT LIABILITY (CONT’D)

 The cost of defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. The valuation involves making various assumptions.

 The principal assumptions used in determining employee defined benefit liability are shown below:

  Group Company
     2013 2012 2013 2012

 Discount rate  5.6% 5.6% 5.6% 5.6%
 Future salary increases (subject to ceiling of each
  salary scales)  3.0% - 5.0% 3.0% - 5.0% 4.0% 4.0%

 The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each significant assumption on the employee 
defined benefit liability as of the reporting date, assuming if all other assumptions were held constant:

    Increase/(decrease) Group Company
     RM’000 RM’000

 2013
 Discount rates +100 basis point (869) (36)
    -100 basis point 1,015 42
 Future salary increase +1% 26 -
    -1% (47) -

 The average duration of the employee defined benefit liability of the Group and the Company at the reporting date is 16.8 years (2012: 17.3 
years) and 16.6 years (2012: 16.2 years) respectively.

31. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

 Group and Company
  Number of ordinary
  shares of RM1 each Amount
     2013 2012 2013 2012
     ’000 ’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Share capital

 Authorised
 At 1 January and 31 December  800,000 800,000 800,000 800,000

 Issued and fully paid
 At 1 January and 31 December  283,328 283,328 283,328 283,328
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31. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D)

   Group and Company
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Share premium

 At 1 January and 31 December    62,785 62,785

 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote 
per share without restrictions and rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

32. OTHER RESERVE

       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Group

 At 1 January    (61) -
 Transactions with owners:
 Premium paid on acquisition of non-controlling interests    - (61)

 At 31 December    (61) (61)

33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

 a) Rendering and receiving services

  In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following significant transactions 
between the Company and related parties took place at terms agreed between the parties during the financial year:

   Company
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Subsidiaries:
 - Dividend income    27,982 45,064
 - Interest income    174 242
 - Management fees income    4,440 4,440
 - Rental income    90 90
 - Sub-contract fee expense    - 1,539
 - Disposal of 2,000,000 ordinary shares in S.P. Satria Logistics Sdn. Bhd.  2,000 -
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33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D)

 b) Compensation of key management personnel

 The remuneration of directors and other member of key management during the financial year was as follows:

  Group Company
     2013 2012 2013 2012
     RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Short-term employee benefits  3,367 3,054 1,433 1,325
 Defined contribution plan  381 313 156 148

     3,748 3,367 1,589 1,473

  Included in the total remuneration of key management personnel are:

  Group Company
     2013 2012 2013 2012
     RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Directors’ remuneration (Note 10)  1,960 1,801 1,193 1,079

34. COMMITMENTS

 a) Capital commitments

  Group Company
     2013 2012 2013 2012
     RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Capital expenditure

 Approved and contracted for:
 Bulk fertilizer storage facilities for Sandakan  1,825 2,921 - -
 Sapangar Bay bunkering line  1,859 124 - -
 Purchase of other property, plant and equipment  1,208 420 - 20

     4,892 3,465 - 20

 Approved but not contracted for:
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment  372,886 379,164 332 446
 Improvement to port infrastructure facilities  261,193 277,619 - -

     634,079 656,783 332 446

     638,971 660,248 332 466
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34. COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

 b) Operating lease commitments - as lessee

  The Group has entered into non-cancellable operating lease agreement with Sabah Ports Authority for the use of land and buildings. 
The lease has a tenure of 30 years with renewal option included in the contract.

  The future minimum rental payable under non-cancellable operating lease at the reporting date are as follows:

   Group
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Future minimum rental payments:
 Not later than 1 year    5,000 3,000
 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years    20,000 20,000
 Later than 5 years    80,000 85,000

       105,000 108,000

 Future variable rental payments:
 Not later than 1 year    10,948 10,419
 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years    49,551 47,198
 Later than 5 years    316,238 329,539

       376,737 387,156

       481,737 495,156

  The future variable rental payments are estimated based on growth rate assumption as discussed in Note 15. Based on the 
Privatisation Agreement, the amount payable by the Group for the lease of land used for port operations is calculated on the basis of:

  a) RM1 million per annum for each of the first concession year to the fifth concession year;

  b) for the sixth concession year to the tenth concession year:
   i) RM3 million per annum; and
   ii) RM0.75 per metric tonne of cargo handled in excess of the annual threshold throughput of 10 million metric 

tonnes; and

  c) for the eleventh and subsequently concession year until the expiry date:
   i) RM5 million per annum; and
   ii) RM0.75 per metric tonne of cargo handled in excess of the annual threshold throughput of 10 million metric 

tonnes.

  The lease payments recognised in profit or loss during the financial year are disclosed in Note 8.

 c) Operating lease commitments - as lessor

  The Group has entered into non-cancellable operating lease agreements on its land and office building. These leases have 
remaining lease terms of between 1 and 21 years.
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34. COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

 c) Operating lease commitments - as lessor (cont’d)

  Future minimum rental receivable under operating leases as at the reporting date are as follows:

   Group
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Future minimum rental payments receivable:
 Not later than 1 year    2,178 2,200
 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years    6,020 6,854
 Later than 5 years    12,697 14,041

       20,895 23,095

  The rental income recognised in profit or loss during the financial year is disclosed in Note 6.

 d) Finance lease commitments

  The Group has finance leases for certain items of plant and equipment (Note 13).

  Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as 
follows:

   Group
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Minimum lease payments:
 Not later than 1 year    5 24
 Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years    2 3
 Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years    - 1

 Total minimum lease payments    7 28
 Less: Amount representing finance charges    - (1)

 Present value of minimum lease payments    7 27

 Present value of payments:
 Not later than 1 year    4 23
 Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years    3 3
 Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years    - 1

 Present value of minimum lease payments    7 27
 Less: Amount due within 1 year (Note 24)    (4) (23)

 Amount due after 1 year (Note 24)    3 4
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

 Legal Claim

 During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, a nominated sub-contractor of a subsidiary’s main contractor, Zublin International (M) 
Sdn. Bhd., commenced an action against the subsidiary (Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd.), Sabah Ports Authority and the contractor in respect of 
alleged improper deduction of a sum of RM11,807,269. The Federal Court Malaysia, Putrajaya dismissed the case with costs in September 
2013.

 Arbitration

 Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, received a Notice of Arbitration on 25 November 2011 from the lawyer 
acting for Zublin International (M) Sdn. Bhd., claiming for a sum of RM31,645,537 in respect of the construction of Phase 1A, Sapangar Bay 
Container Port. The claimant has subsequently increased the total amount claimed to RM32,822,366. The Arbitration’s hearing date has 
yet to be fixed by the Arbitration Tribunal. The Group has been advised by its legal counsel that it has a good chance in succeeding in the 
proceedings based on the fact that the claimant was not a party to the contract and would not be entitled to rely on the arbitration clause 
to commence the arbitration proceeding. Accordingly, no provision for any liability has been made in these financial statements.

 Guarantee

 The Company has provided the following guarantee at the reporting date:

 Unsecured:

 It has guaranteed the performance of the scope of work allocated to and performed by its subsidiary, SCHB Engineering Services Sdn. 
Bhd., with regard to a contract which has been awarded to a consortium comprising third parties and the said subsidiary. No liability is 
expected to arise (2012: nil).

36. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

 A. Fair value hierarchy

  The Group categories fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that is dependent on the valuation inputs used as follows:

 - Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the 
measurement date,

 - Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly; and

 - Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

  Fair value measurements that use inputs of different hierarchy levels are categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair 
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
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36. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

 B. Assets measured at fair value

  The following table shows an analysis of the class of asset measured at fair value at the reporting date:

  Fair value measurements at the reporting date using
     Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
     RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Recurring fair value measurements

 Asset – financial assets
 Group
 Investment securities (Note 21)
 -  2013  130,392 - - 130,392
 -  2012  133,312 - - 133,312

 Company
 Investment securities (Note 21)
 -  2013  48,996 - - 48,996
 -  2012  42,729 - - 42,729

 C. Assets and liabilities not carried at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed

  The following table shows an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities not measured at fair value at the reporting date but for 
which fair value is disclosed:

 Fair value measurements at the reporting period using
        Carrying
    Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Amount
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Group
 At 31 December 2013
 Liabilities (non-current):
 Borrowings
 - Islamic Debt Securities - 29,785 - 29,785 30,000
 - Obligations under finance leases - 3 - 3 3
 Loan from Sabah Ports Authority - 118,315 - 118,315 124,920
 Amount due to Sabah State Government - 32,200 - 32,200 35,560

 At 31 December 2012
 Liabilities (non-current):
 Borrowings
 - Islamic Debt Securities - 39,715 - 39,715 40,000
 - Term loans - 52 - 52 36
 - Obligations under finance leases - 4 - 4 4
 Loan from Sabah Ports Authority - 138,446 - 138,446 147,096
 Amount due to Sabah State Government - 37,270 - 37,270 41,487

Notes to the Financial Statements cont’d
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013



ANNUAL REPORT 2013   | 127

36. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

 C. Assets and liabilities not carried at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed (cont’d)

  Determination of fair value

  Borrowings, loan from Sabah Ports Authority and amount due to Sabah State Government

  The fair value disclosed in the table above are estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debts 
on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

 D. Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are not 
reasonable approximation of fair value

  2013 2012
     Carrying  Carrying
    Note amount  Fair value  amount Fair value
     RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Group
 Financial liabilities (non-current):
 Borrowings
 - Islamic Debt Securities 24 30,000 29,785 40,000 39,715
 - Term loans 24 - - 36 52
 - Obligations under finance leases 24 3 3 4 4
 Loan from Sabah Ports Authority 26 124,920 118,315 147,096 138,446
 Amount due to Sabah State Government 27 35,560 32,200 41,487 37,270
 Other payables 28 - - 69,091 *

 Company
 Other payables 28 - - 69,091 *

  *  Fair value information has not been disclosed for this financial instrument carried at cost because fair value cannot be measured 
reliably.

 E. Financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are reasonable 
approximation of fair value

  The following are classes of financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are reasonable 
approximation of fair value:

 Note
Trade and other receivables (current) 19
Cash and bank balances 23
Borrowings (current) 24
Loan from Sabah Ports Authority (current) 26
Amount due from/(to) Sabah Ports Authority (current) -
Amount due to Sabah State Government (current) 27
Trade and other payables (current) 28

  The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of fair values due to the short-term 
maturities of these instruments.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

 The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their operations and the use of financial instruments. The key 
financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.

 The Board Risk Management Committee reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management of these risks, which are 
executed by the management committee. The audit committee provides independent oversight to the effectiveness of the risk management 
process.

 It is, and has been throughout the current and previous financial year, the Group’s policy that no derivatives for speculative purposes shall 
be undertaken.

 The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to the above-mentioned financial risks and the 
objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.

 There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

 a) Credit risk

  Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty default on its obligations. 
The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables. For other financial 
assets (including investment securities, and cash and bank balances), the Group and the Company minimise credit risk by dealing 
exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

  The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. 
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade 
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis 
with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

  Exposure to credit risk
  At the reporting date, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of 

each class of financial assets recognised in the statements of financial position.

  Credit risk concentration profile
  The Group does not have any significant exposure to individual customer or counter party nor does it have any major concentration 

of credit risk related to any financial assets.

  Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
  Information regarding trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is disclosed in Note 19. Cash, deposits 

with licensed banks and other financial institutions, and investment securities that are neither past due nor impaired are placed 
with or entered into with reputable financial institutions or companies with high credit ratings and no history of default.

  Financial assets that are either past due or impaired
  Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is disclosed in Note 19.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D)

 b) Liquidity risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage 
of funds. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial 
assets and liabilities. The Group’s and the Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility 
through the use of stand-by credit facilities. The Group’s and the Company’s liquidity risk management policy is to maintain 
sufficient liquid financial assets and stand-by credit facilities.

  At the reporting date, approximately 17% (2012: 16%) of the Group’s loans and borrowings (Note 24) will mature in less than one 
year based on the carrying amount reflected in the financial statements.

  Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

  The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and liabilities at the reporting 
date based on contractual undiscounted amounts:

     On 
     demand
     or within Two to Over five
     one year five years years Total
     RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Group
 2013
 Financial assets:
 Trade and other receivables  28,744 240 366 29,350
 Investment securities  130,392 - - 130,392
 Cash and bank balances  121,961 - - 121,961

 Total undiscounted financial assets  281,097 240 366 281,703

 Financial liabilities:
 Trade and other payables  102,332 - - 102,332
 Loans and borrowings  47,417 171,876 40,151 259,444

 Total undiscounted financial liabilities  149,749 171,876 40,151 361,776

 Total net undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities)  131,348 (171,636) (39,785) (80,073)

 2012
 Financial assets:
 Trade and other receivables  38,997 240 476 39,713
 Investment securities  133,312 - - 133,312
 Amount due from Sabah Ports Authority  71 - - 71
 Cash and bank balances  82,463 - - 82,463

 Total undiscounted financial assets  254,843 240 476 255,559

 Financial liabilities:
 Trade and other payables  30,462 69,091 - 99,553
 Loans and borrowings  54,104 184,865 74,612 313,581

 Total undiscounted financial liabilities  84,566 253,956 74,612 413,134

 Total net undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities)  170,277 (253,716) (74,136) (157,575)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D)

 b) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

     On 
     demand 
     or within  Two to Over five
     one year five years years Total
     RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 Company
 2013
 Financial assets:
 Trade and other receivables  3,728 240 366 4,334
 Investment securities  48,996 - - 48,996
 Cash and bank balances  46,036 - - 46,036

 Total undiscounted financial assets  98,760 240 366 99,366

 Financial liabilities:
 Trade and other payables  75,438 - - 75,438

 Total undiscounted financial liabilities  75,438 - - 75,438

 Total net undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities)  23,322 240 366 23,928

 2012
 Financial assets:
 Trade and other receivables  20,811 240 476 21,527
 Investment securities  42,729 - - 42,729
 Cash and bank balances  35,627 - - 35,627

 Total undiscounted financial assets  99,167 240 476 99,883

 Financial liabilities:
 Trade and other payables  16,057 69,091 - 85,148

 Total undiscounted financial liabilities  16,057 69,091 - 85,148

 Total net undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities)  83,110 (68,851) 476 14,735

 c) Interest rate risk

  Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and the Company’s financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

  The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from their loans and borrowings.

  The Group’s policy is to manage interest cost using mainly fixed rate debts. At the reporting date, all (2012: 98%) of the Group’s 
borrowings are at fixed rates of interest.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D)

 d) Foreign currency risk

  The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the 
functional currency of the Group entities, primarily RM. The foreign currencies in which these transactions are denominated are 
mainly US Dollars (“USD”), Euro (“EUR”) and Singapore Dollar (“SGD”).

  Approximately 6% (2012: nil) and 4% (2012: 4%) of the Group’s receivable and payable balances at the reporting date are 
denominated in foreign currencies.

  The Group also holds cash denominated in foreign currencies for working capital purposes. At the reporting date, such foreign 
currency balances (in USD) amounted to RM3,634,000 (2012: RM3,206,000) for the Group.

  Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk
  The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax to a reasonably possible change in the USD, EUR 

and SGD exchange rates against the functional currency of the Group entities, with all other variables held constant.

   Group
     Change in Increase/(decrease) in
     currency rate profit before tax
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 USD/RM   +5% 143 160
 EUR/RM   +5% (14) (12)
 SGD/RM   +5% (48) (37)

  An equivalent decrease in each of the currencies shown above would have resulted in an equivalent, but opposite, impact.

38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

 The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in 
order to support its business and maximise shareholder’s value.

 The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust 
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the 
objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

 The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group’s policy is to keep the 
gearing ratio between 20% and 50%. The Group includes within net debt, loans and borrowings. Capital includes equity attributable to the 
owners of the Company.

   Group
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Loans and borrowings    229,155 272,133

 Net debt (Note 24)    229,155 272,133

 Equity attributable to the owners of the Company    838,352 794,621

 Total capital    838,352 794,621

 Capital and net debt    1,067,507 1,066,754

 Gearing ratio    21% 26%
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39. SEGMENT INFORMATION

 For management purpose, the Group is organised into business units based on its products and services, and has five reportable operating 
segments as follow:

 i. Investment holding - investments in deposits and investment securities for interest, dividend and investment income.

 ii. Property development and ferry terminal operations - the development of residential and commercial properties, and operating of 
ferry terminal.

 iii. Port operations - provision and maintenance of port services and facilities, the regulation and control of the management of ports, 
distributor of port cargo handling equipment and related spare parts, and provision of equipment maintenance services.

 iv. Logistics and bunkering - provision of bunkering and related services.

 v. Contract and engineering - construction contractor, provision of project management and technical support services.

 Except as indicated above, no operating segments has been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

 Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation 
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss which, in certain respects as explained 
in the table below, is measured differently from operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.

 Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.
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39. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

 The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets, liabilities and other information by business segment:
 
     Property
     development  Logistics    Per
     and ferry  and Contract Adjustments  consolidated
    Investment terminal Port bunkering and and  financial
    holding operations operations services engineering eliminations Note statements
    RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000   RM’000

 31 December 2013

 Revenue:
 External customers 2,521 5,174 224,256 27,967 3,412 -  263,330
 Inter-segment 32,512 - - 5,081 834 (38,427) A -

 Total revenue 35,033 5,174 224,256 33,048 4,246 (38,427)  263,330

 Results:
 Interest income 174 15 1,652 - 20 (174) A 1,687
 Depreciation and 
  amortisation 946 642 32,159 229 21 - B 33,997
 Other non-cash expenses 64 22 1,595 179 - (1) C 1,859
 Segment profit/(loss) 25,217 1,485 84,318 (672) (55) (27,981) C 82,312

 Assets:
 Additions to non-current 
  assets 245 3,359 38,449 50 23 (6,139) D 35,987
 Segment assets 376,229 138,375 877,989 10,940 14,013 (236,840) E 1,180,706

 Segment liabilities 25,159 51,168 261,654 10,022 1,316 (9,053) F 340,266

 31 December 2012

 Revenue:
 External customers 1,838 3,987 218,863 23,867 14,373 -  262,928
 Inter-segment 49,594 - - 5,024 407 (55,025) A -

 Total revenue 51,432 3,987 218,863 28,891 14,780 (55,025)  262,928

 Results:
 Interest income 242 11 1,010 - 18 (242) A 1,039
 Depreciation and 
  amortisation 908 641 34,168 653 30 - B 36,400
 Other non-cash expenses 82 1 1,535 57 1,157 -  2,832
 Segment profit/(loss) 42,512 693 74,877 (1,191) (2,548) (45,064) C 69,279

 Assets:
 Additions to non-current 
  assets 205 670 10,283 44 15 - D 11,217
 Segment assets 370,010 136,366 879,153 15,133 22,645 (243,015) E 1,180,292

 Segment liabilities 28,669 48,726 298,434 13,690 9,354 (15,263) F 383,610
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39. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

 Note Nature of adjustments and eliminations to arrive at amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
  
 A Inter-segment revenues and interest income are eliminated on consolidation.
  
 B Profit from inter-segment sales are eliminated on consolidation and reversed in subsequent years upon realisation.
  
 C The following items are deducted from segment profit to arrive at profit before tax presented in the consolidated statement of 

comprehensive income:
    
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Dividend income from subsidiaries    (27,982) (45,064)
 Allowance for impairment loss on other receivable    1 -
 Reversal of profit from inter-segment sales    - -

       (27,981) (45,064)

  
 D Additions to non-current assets consist of:
    
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Property, plant and equipment    35,024 10,675
 Land held for property development    850 542
 Intangible assets    113 -

       35,987 11,217

  
 E The following item is deducted from segment assets to arrive at total assets reported in the consolidated statement of financial 

position:

       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Inter-segment assets    (236,840) (243,015)

  
 F The following item is deducted from segment liabilities to arrive at total liabilities reported in the consolidated statement of financial 

position:
    
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Inter-segment liabilities    (9,053) (15,263)
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40. DIVIDENDS
 
   Group and Company
       2013 2012
       RM’000 RM’000

 Recognised during the financial year:  
  
 Dividends on ordinary shares:  
 - Final tax exempt dividend for year 2012: 3.15 sen (2011: 3.00 sen) per share   8,925 8,500
 - Interim tax exempt dividend for year 2013: 3.00 sen (2012: 3.00 sen) per share   8,500 8,500

       17,425 17,000

  
 At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final tax exempt dividend in respect of financial year ended 31 December 2013, of 4% on 

283,327,992 ordinary shares, amounting to dividend payable of RM11,333,120 (4 sen per ordinary share) will be proposed for shareholders’ 
approval. The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the 
shareholders, will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2014.

41. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR ISSUE 

 The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors 
on 21 April 2014. 
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42. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION – BREAKDOWN OF RETAINED EARNINGS INTO REALISED AND UNREALISED 

 The breakdown of the retained earnings of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2013 into realised and unrealised profits is 
presented in accordance with the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad dated 25 March 2010 and prepared in accordance 
with Guidance on Special Matter No.1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

       Group Company
       RM’000 RM’000

 Total retained earnings of the Company and its subsidiaries  
 - Realised    490,283 74,428
 - Unrealised    1,028 758

       491,311 75,186
 Less: Consolidation adjustments    989 -

 Retained earnings as per financial statements    492,300 75,186
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Location Postal Address Description
Current 

Use
Tenure

Remaining 
Lease Period 
(Expiry Date)

Age of 
Property

Land Area/ 
Built-up Area

Date of 
Acquisition

Net Book 
Value 

(RM’000)

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD

1 Kota Kinabalu Port area 
under Land Application 
No. PT 20-04010032

1st and 2nd Floor, 
Menara Jubili, 
No. 53 Jalan Gaya, 
88000 Kota Kinabalu, 
Sabah

Future 
Property 
Development

Container 
yard and 
godown

99 95 years 
(31.12.2108)

4 years 7 acres 01.01.2010 47,703

2 Lot A24, Country Lease 
065323266, Mount 
Kinabalu Golf Course 
Complex, Kundasang

1st and 2nd Floor, 
Menara Jubili, 
No. 53 Jalan Gaya, 
88000 Kota Kinabalu, 
Sabah

Vacant 
Residential 
Lot

Idle 99 80 years 
(31.12.2093)

20 years 1 acre 18.05.2006 273

SURIA BUMIRIA SDN. BHD.

1 Kota Kinabalu Ferry 
Terminal known as 
Jesselton Point

4th Floor, Wisma Perkasa 
Jalan Gaya 
88821 Kota Kinabalu, 
Sabah

K.K. Ferry 
Terminal 
Building

Ferry 
Passengers 
Terminal

30 21 Years 
(31.08.2034)

45 years Land Area: 
3.4 acres 
Built-up Area: 
43,164 sq. ft.

01.09.2004 9,148

2 Kota Kinabalu Port 4th Floor, Wisma Perkasa 
Jalan Gaya 
88821 Kota Kinabalu, 
Sabah

Renovation Cruise 
Passengers 
Terminal

- - - Built-up Area: 
17,879 sq. ft.

31.12.2013 2,329*

SABAH PORTS SDN. BHD.

1 Lahad Datu Port  
Jalan Kastam Baru  
Lahad Datu

P. O. Box No. 143 
91007 Lahad Datu, 
Sabah

Wharves & 
Approaches

Vessel 30 21 Years 
(31.08.2034)

17 Years 
(01.08.1997)

37 acres 01.09.2004

1,438*

2 Lahad Datu Port  
Jalan Kastam Baru  
Lahad Datu

P. O. Box No. 143 
91007 Lahad Datu, 
Sabah

Office 
Building

Office 30 21 Years 
(31.08.2034)

7 Years 1,172*

3 Lahad Datu Port  
Jalan Kastam Baru  
Lahad Datu

P. O. Box No. 143 
91007 Lahad Datu, 
Sabah

Oil Storage 
Tank

Gas oil 99 57 years 
(31.12.2070)

42 years

0.9 acres 01.12.2013

3,439

4 Lahad Datu Port  
Jalan Kastam Baru  
Lahad Datu

P. O. Box No. 143 
91007 Lahad Datu, 
Sabah

Wharves & 
Approaches

Storage 
Depot

99 57 years 
(31.12.2070)

42 years 2,411

5 Sandakan Oil Jetty at 
Karamunting

Wisma Pelabuhan 
Jalan Pelabuhan, 
Karamunting Baru 
P. O. Box No. 1368 
90715 Sandakan, Sabah

Oil Jetty Bulk oil and 
Palm oil

30 21 Years 
(31.08.2034)

7 Years 16.8 acres 01.09.2004  29,063* 

6 Sandakan Oil Jetty at  
Sg. Mowtas

Wisma Pelabuhan 
Jalan Pelabuhan, 
Karamunting Baru  
P. O. Box No. 1368 
90715 Sandakan, Sabah

Oil Jetty Palm oil 30 21 Years 
(31.08.2034)

10 Years 350 acres 01.09.2004  14,146*

7 Wisma Pelabuhan  
Jalan Pelabuhan 
Karamunting Baru 
Sandakan

Wisma Pelabuhan 
Jalan Pelabuhan, 
Karamunting Baru 
P. O. Box No. 1368 
90715 Sandakan, Sabah

Wharves & 
Approaches

Container 30 21 Years 
(31.08.2034)

10 Years 

445 acres 01.09.2004

 6,244* 

8 Wisma Pelabuhan  
Jalan Pelabuhan, 
Karamunting Baru, 
Sandakan

Wisma Pelabuhan 
Jalan Pelabuhan, 
Karamunting Baru 
P. O. Box No. 1368 
90715 Sandakan, Sabah

Sandakan 
Ferry 
Terminal 
Building

Ferry 
Passengers

30 21 Years 
(31.08.2034)

45 Years  174* 
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Location Postal Address Description
Current 

Use
Tenure

Remaining 
Lease Period 
(Expiry Date)

Age of 
Property

Land Area/ 
Built-up Area

Date of 
Acquisition

Net Book 
Value 

(RM’000)

SABAH PORTS SDN. BHD. (cont’d)

9 Kunak Oil Jetty Jalan Ke Pangkalan, 
Kg. Pangkalan 91207 
Kunak, Sabah

Oil Jetty Palm oil 30 21 Years 
(31.08.2034)

 7 Years

 100 acres 01.09.2004

 27,586* 

10 Kunak Oil Jetty Jalan Ke Pangkalan, 
Kg. Pangkalan 91207 
Kunak, Sabah

Office 
Building

Office 30 21 Years 
(31.08.2034)

 7 Years  2,348* 

11 Wisma Pelabuhan  
Jalan Dunlop, Tawau

P. O. Box 335 
91107 Tawau, Sabah

Wharves & 
Approaches

Storage of 
Cargo

30 21 Years 
(31.08.2034)

8 Years 
(31/12/2005)

70 acres 01.09.2004  985* 

12  Kota Kinabalu Port Wisma Pelabuhan, 
Jalan Tun Fuad Tanjung 
Lipat, Locked Bag 75 
88992 Kota Kinabalu, 
Sabah

Wharves & 
Approaches

Storage of 
Cargo

30 21 Years 
(31.08.2034) 

7 Years 290 acres 01.09.2004  780* 

13 Sapangar Bay Oil 
Terminal, Jln Sapangar, 
Sapangar Bay 

Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. 
P.O.Box 57 Pejabat Pos 
Indah Permai 
88450 Kota Kinabalu, 
Sabah

Oil Jetty Bulk Oil 30 21 years 
(31.08.2034)

7 Years 340 acres 01.09.2004  732* 

14 Headquarters and 
Sapangar Bay Container 
Port's Operation Building 
Jln Sapangar,  
Sapangar Bay

Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. 
P. O. Box 203  
Pejabat Pos Mini 
Indah Permai 88450 
Kota Kinabalu, Sabah

Office 
Building

Office and 
Operation 
Building

30 21 Years 
(31.08.2034)

 7 Years

1,530 acres 01.09.2004

 15,097* 

15 Sapangar Bay Container 
Port Jln Sapangar, 
Sapangar Bay

Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. 
P. O. Box 203 
Pejabat Pos Mini 
Indah Permai 88450 
Kota Kinabalu, Sabah

Container 
Port

Vessel and 
Container

30 21 Years 
(31.08.2034)

 7 Years  219,046* 

16 Town Lease 017530415 
at Kg Banjaran, 
Kota Kinabalu

Headquarters & 
Operation Building 
Sapangar Bay Container 
Port, Sapangar Bay, 
Kota Kinabalu, Sabah 

Vacant Land Idle 68 60 Years 
(31.12.2073)

10 Years 0.98 acre 01.09.2004  867

17 Lot AA7, Country Lease 
065323408, Mount 
Kinabalu Golf Course 
Complex, Kundasang

Headquarters & 
Operation Building 
Sapangar Bay Container 
Port, Sapangar Bay, 
Kota Kinabalu, Sabah 

Vacant 
Residential 
Lot

Idle 90 82 Years 
(31.12.2095)

10 Years 4.996 acres 01.09.2004  911

Total :  385,892 

(*) These are land areas gazetted by the State Government of Sabah to Sabah Ports Authority which have been leased to Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. 
for a period of 30 years under the Privatisation Agreement between the State Government of Sabah, Sabah Ports Authority, Suria Capital Holdings 
Berhad and Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd..

The Net Book Value of these assets as at 31.12.2013 are costs of new structures and upgrading as well as renovation to the existing structures 
that have been capitalised subsequent to 1 September 2004.
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Shareholders’ Information
As at 29 April 2014

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL : 800,000,000
ISSUED AND FULLY PAID-UP : 283,327,992
CLASS OF SHARES : Ordinary shares of One Ringgit Malaysia each
NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS : 16,613

DIRECTORS SHAREHOLDINGS

No. Name of Directors Holdings %

1. Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas 57,503 0.020
2 Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming, J.P. 0  0.000
3. Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. Johari, J.P. 0  0.000
4. Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdan Diego 0  0.000
5. Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali 0 0.000
6. Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P. 0 0.000
7. Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P. 0 0.000
8. Muluk Bin Samad 0 0.000
9. Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
 Pledged Securities Account For Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming (8002947) 20,000  0.007
10. Mohamad Nor Bin Tahir 0 0.000
11. Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi 20,000  0.007
12. Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub 2,500  0.000
13. Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim, J.P. 0 0.000

 SUBTOTAL 100,003  0.035

INFORMATION ON SUBSTANTIAL HOLDERS’ HOLDINGS

No. Name of Directors Holdings %

1. Warisan Harta Sabah Sdn. Bhd. 130,827,504  46.175
2 Lembaga Tabung Haji 26,085,100  9.206

 SUBTOTAL 156,912,604  55.381

ANALYSIS BY SIZE OF HOLDINGS (MALAYSIA & FOREIGN - COMBINE)

Size Of Holdings No. Of Holders  %  No. Of Shares  %

1 - 99  59  0.355  2,183  0.000
100 - 1,000  10,047  60.476  6,705,129  2.366
1,001 - 10,000  5,550  33.407  19,449,061  6.864
10,001 - 100,000  827  4.978  23,899,615  8.435
100,001 - 14,166,398 (*)  128  0.770  76,359,400  26.950
14,166,399 And Above (**)  2  0.012  156,912,604  55.381

TOTAL 16,613  100.000  283,327,992  100.000

Remark * - less than 5% of issued shares     
 **  - 5% and above of issued shares
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LIST OF TOP 30 HOLDERS AS AT 29 APRIL 2014
(WITHOUT AGGREGATING SECURITIES FROM DIFFERENT SECURITIES ACCOUNTS BELONGING TO THE SAME REGISTERED HOLDER)

  Nationality / Country
No. Name of Incorporation Holdings %

1. Warisan Harta Sabah Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 130,827,504 46.175
2. Lembaga Tabung Haji Malaysian / Malaysia 26,085,100 9.206
3. Yayasan Sabah Malaysian / Malaysia 10,571,000 3.731
4. DB (Malaysia) Nominee (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad Malaysian / Malaysia 9,544,400 3.368
 Icapital.Biz Berhad 
5. Chief Minister, State Of Sabah Malaysian / Malaysia 4,800,000 1.694
6. Amanahraya Trustees Berhad Malaysian / Malaysia 3,297,700 1.163
 Public Islamic Opportunities Fund
7. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 2,785,000 0.982
 Pledged Securities Account For Siaw Teck Siong 
8. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 2,100,000 0.741
 HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd For RHB-OSK Dana Kidsave
9. HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 2,055,000  0.725
 Exempt An For JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association (Norges Bk) 
10. Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 1,593,000  0.562
 Pledged Securities Account For Cheam Heng Ming (E-Ktn/Rau)
11. Cheam Heng Ming Malaysian / Malaysia 1,536,400  0.542
12. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 1,200,000  0.423
 Malaysian Trustees Berhad For Amb Smallcap Trust Fund (240165)
13. Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 1,186,500  0.418
 Kumpulan Wang Persaraan (Diperbadankan) (Kenanga)
14. HDM Nominees (Asing) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 1,180,000  0.416
 DBS Vickers Secs (S) Pte Ltd For Lim Meng Seng
15. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 1,138,100  0.401
 HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd For MAAKL Progress Fund (4082)
16. UOBKay Hian Nominees (Asing) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 1,059,700  0.374
 Exempt An For UOB Kay Hian Pte Ltd ( A/C Clients )
17. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 1,000,000  0.352
 HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd For RHB-OSK Small Cap Opportunity Unit Trust (3548)
18. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 968,000  0.341
 HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd For RHB-OSK Growth And Income Focus Trust (4892)
19. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 830,000  0.292
 HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd For Pertubuhan Keselamatan Sosial 
 (UOB AMM6939-406)
20. Lee Hau Hian Malaysian / Malaysia 820,000  0.289
21. TA Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 815,000  0.287
 Pledged Securities Account For Liew Yam Fee
22. CIMB Group Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 810,600  0.286
 CIMB Commerce Trustee Berhad - Kenanga Growth Fund
23. UOBM Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 750,000  0.264
 UOB Asset Management (Malaysia) Berhad For 
 Uni.Asia Life Assurance Berhad (Par Fund)

Shareholders’ Information cont’d
As at 29 April 2014
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Shareholders’ Information cont’d
As at 29 April 2014

LIST OF TOP 30 HOLDERS AS AT  29 APRIL 2014 (CONT’D)

  Nationality / Country
No. Name of Incorporation Holdings %

24. Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 736,700 0.260
 CBNY For Dimensional Emerging Markets Value Fund
25. Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 715,500  0.252
 CBNY For DFA Emerging Markets Small Cap Series
26. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 713,000  0.251
 Capital Dynamics Asset Management Sdn. Bhd. For KESM
 Industries Berhad (CDAM30-990472)
27. Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 708,000  0.249
 Pledged Securities Account For Siaw Teck Siong (E-PDG)
28. UOBM Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 700,000  0.247
 UOB Asset Management (Malaysia) Berhad For Uni Aggressive Fund
29. Malaysia Nominees (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad Malaysian / Malaysia 600,000  0.211
 Malaysian Trustees Berhad For Kaf Vision Fund (00-10033-000)
30. HLB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian / Malaysia 551,100  0.194
 Pledged Securities Account For Koay Ean Chim

SUMMARY

Total No. Of Holders : 30
Total Holdings  : 211,677,304
Total Percentage (%) : 74.711
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Thirty First (31st) Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
of the Company will be held at Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd.’s Training Centre, 1st Floor, 
Headquarters & Operation Building, Sapangar Bay Container Port, Sapangar Bay, Kota 
Kinabalu, Sabah, on Tuesday, 24 June 2014 at 10.00 am for the following purposes:

AGENDA

As Ordinary Business

1. To receive the Audited Financial Statement for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 and the 
Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To re-elect the following Directors who retire by rotation pursuant to Article 89 of the Company’s Articles 
of Association.

(1) Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas

(2)  Muluk Bin Samad

 Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim who was appointed as Director of the Company on 3 May 2010 
will retire in accordance with Article 89 of the Company’s Articles of Association and will not seek  
re-election. Hence, he will retain office until the close of the 31st AGM of the Company.

3. To re-elect the following Director who retires pursuant to Article 93 of the Company’s Articles of 
Association.

 Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali

4. To approve the final tax exempt dividend of 4% (4 sen per ordinary share), in respect of the financial 
year ended 31 December 2013.

5. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees amounting to RM296,048.00 for the financial year ending  
31 December 2013.

6. To approve an increase in Directors’ fees.

7. To re-appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company and authorise the Directors to 
determine their remuneration.

Resolution 1

 Resolution 2

Resolution 3

Resolution 4

Resolution 5

Resolution 6

Resolution 7
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Notice 0f Annual General Meeting cont’d

As Special Business

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the followings as ordinary resolution:

8. Authority to the Directors to allot and issue shares:

 “THAT, pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, the Directors be and are hereby 
empowered to allot and issue shares in the Company, at any time, at such issue price, until the conclusion 
of the next annual general meeting and upon such terms and conditions and for such purpose as the 
Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares does 
not exceed ten per centum (10%) of the issued capital of the Company at the time of issue AND THAT 
the Directors be and are and also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing of and quotation 
for the additional shares so issued, subject to the Act, the Articles of Association of the Company and 
approval from the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and other relevant bodies where such approval is 
necessary.” 

9. To transact any other business for which due notice shall have been given in accordance with the 
Companies Act, 1965.

 NOTICE OF BOOK CLOSURE AND DIVIDEND ENTITLEMENT

 NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN subject to the shareholders’ approval for the payment of the 
final tax exempt dividend of 4% (4 sen per ordinary share) in respect of the financial year ended  
31 December 2013, the dividend will be paid to the shareholders on 25 July 2014.

 The entitlement date shall be fixed on 7 July 2014 and a Depositor shall qualify for entitlement only in 
respect of:-

(a) Shares transferred into the Depositor’s Securities Account before 4.00 p.m. on 7 July 2014 in 
respect of transfers.

(b) Shares bought on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according 
to the Rules of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

By Order Of the Board.

SURYANI BINTI MOHD. SAIDI (LS. 0005574)
Company Secretary

Dated on this 2 June 2014.
Kota Kinabalu, Sabah

Resolution 8
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Explanatory Notes: 

(i) Proposed increase in Directors’ fees. 

 It is proposed that the fee payable to the non-Executive Directors be increased from RM30,000.00 to RM60,000.00 per annum. If approved, 
the revised Directors’ fees will be implemented with effect from the year 2014 onwards.

(ii) Authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965.

 Resolution 8, if passed, would, subject to the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, enable the Directors 
to issue up to a maximum of ten per centum (10%) of the total issued and paid up share capital of the Company for such purpose as the 
Directors considers would be in the best interest of the Company. This authority unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire 
at the next AGM. As the date of this Notice, no new shares in the Company were issued pursuant to the authority granted to the Directors 
at the last AGM held on 27 June 2013.

 The Company is seeking the approval from the shareholders on the above mandate for the purpose of possible fund raising exercise(s) 
including but not limited to the further placement of fund future investments, acquisitions and/or to meet working capital requirements.

Notes:

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this Meeting is entitled to appoint up to two proxies to attend and vote instead of him/her. A proxy 

may but not need to a member of the Company.

2. Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless the member specifies the proportion of his/her shareholdings to be 

represented by each proxy.  

3. In the case of a corporate body, the proxy appointed must be in accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association, and the instrument 

appointing a proxy shall be given under the company’s seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.  

4. Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorized nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories Act 1991) which holds 

ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies 

which the exempt authorized nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

5. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 1st & 2nd, Menara Jubili, No. 53, Jalan Gaya, 88000 Kota 

Kinabalu at least forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. 

Notice of Annual General Meeting cont’d
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Statement Accompanying Notice of Annual General Meeting
(Pursuant to Paragraph 8.27 (2) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad)

(1) Directors’ retiring by rotation pursuant to Article 89 of the Company’s Article of Association and are eligible for re-election are:

1. Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim, J.P.
2. Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas
3. Muluk Bin Samad

 Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim, J.P. who was appointed as Director of the Company on 3 May 2010 will retire in accordance 
with Article 89 of the Company’s Articles of Association and will not seek re-election. Hence, he will retain office until the close of the  
31st AGM of the Company.

(2) Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali will be retiring pursuant to Article 93 of the Company’s Article of Association and is eligible for re-election.

Further details of the Directors seeking re-election are provided in the Directors’s Profile on page 16 until 21 of the Annual Report.
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I/We  NRIC No./Co.No.:
                                                             (FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS) 

of 
(FULL ADDRESS)

being a Member of SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD, hereby appoint 
                                 (FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)

 NRIC No.:                                                                  

of 
(ADDRESS)

or failing him,  NRIC No.:         
                                                         (FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)

of 
(ADDRESS)

As my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Thirty First (31st) Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Sabah Ports Sdn. 
Bhd.’s Training Centre, 1st Floor, Headquarters & Operation Building, Sapangar Bay Container Port, Sapangar Bay, Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, on Tuesday,  
24 June 2014 at 10.00 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof in respect of my/our holding of 
shares in the manner as indicated below:

No. Resolution For Against
1. AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 together 
with the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To re-elect the following Directors pursuant to Article 89 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas
Muluk Bin Samad

3. To re-elect Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali, as Director pursuant to Article 93 of the Company’s Articles 
of Association.

4. To approve the final tax exempt dividend of 4% (4 sen per ordinary share), in respect of the financial year 
ended 31 December 2013.                                                                                           

5. To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees amounting to RM296,048.00 for the financial year ended   
31 December 2013.                                                                                                           

6. To approve the increase of Directors’ Fees.
7. To re-appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to 

determine their remuneration.                                                                                   
8. To authorise the Directors to Allot and Issue Shares under Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965

(Please indicate with a cross [X] in the spaces provided whether you wish your votes to be cast for or against the Resolutions. In the absence of 
specific directions, your proxy will vote or abstain as he thinks fit.)

Dated this …………………………………….  day of ……………………………….., 2014  
Signature/Common Seal of Member(s)

Notes:
1.  A member of the company entitled to attend and vote at this Meeting is entitled to appoint up to two (2) proxies to attend and vote instead of him/her. A proxy may but need 

not be a member of the Company.
2.  Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless the member specifies the proportion of his/her shareholdings to be represented by each 

proxy.
3.  In the case of a corporate body, the proxy appointed must be in accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association, and the instrument appointing a proxy shall 

be given under the Company’s Common Seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.
4.  Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industries (Central Depositories) Act 1991 which holds ordinary shares in 

the Company for multiple beneficial owners in the securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee 
may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

5.  The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 1st & 2nd Floor Menara Jubili, 53 Jalan Gaya, 88000 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah 
at least forty-eight (48) hours before the time set for holding the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. 

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD 
(CO. NO. 96895-W) (Incorporated in Malaysia)

PROXY FORM
NO. OF SHARES HELD
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Group Corporate Directory

Registered Office:
1st & 2nd Floor, Menara Jubili, 53, Jalan Gaya, 88000 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia
Tel: +6 088-257 788 (4 lines)     Fax: +6 088-260 355, 231 032     Email: info@suriaplc.com.my
Website: www.suriagroup.com.my

Subsidiary Companies:

Our Ports:

SABAH PORTS SDN. BHD. (583073-H)  

SPSB Headquarters & Operation Building 
Sapangar Bay Container Port
Jalan Sapangar, Sapangar Bay
Pejabat Pos Mini, Indah Permai, P.O.Box 203
88450 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia 
Tel : +6 088-483 390-399 (10 lines)
Fax : +6 088-489 912-914
Email : sabports@spsb.com.my
Website : www.suriagroup.com.my/spsb

S.P. SATRIA LOGISTICS SDN. BHD. (722286-V)

(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd.)

4th Floor (Level 5) Wisma SEDCO
Lorong Wawasan, Off Coastal Highway
88300 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia
Tel : +6 088-231 026, 253 026, 250 026
Fax : +6 088-223 288
Email : enquiry@spslogistics.com.my
Website : www.spslogistics.com.my
 

SAPANGAR BAY CONTAINER PORT
Senior Manager
Jalan Sapangar, Sapangar Bay
Pejabat Pos Mini, Indah Permai, P. O. Box 203
88450 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia 
Tel : +6 088-489 904
Fax : +6 088-489 925
Email : fnlai@spsb.com.my

KOTA KINABALU PORT
Port Manager
Wisma Pelabuhan, Jalan Tun Fuad
Tanjung Lipat, Locked Bag 75
88992 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia 
Tel : +6 088-538 500
Fax : +6 088-254 089
Email : suhaili.k@spsb.com.my

SAPANGAR BAY OIL TERMINAL
Port Manager
Pejabat Pos Mini Indah Permai, P. O. Box 57
88450 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia
Tel : +6 088-411 069
Fax     : +6 088-411 130
Email  : victor@spsb.com.my

SURIA BUMIRIA SDN. BHD. (633477-V)

4th Floor, Wisma Perkasa, Jalan Gaya
88821 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia
Tel : +6 088-235 787 (4 lines)
Fax : +6 088-231 050
Email : nurlina@bumiria.com.my
Website : www.suriagroup.com.my/suriabumiria

SCHB ENGINEERING SERVICES SDN. BHD. 
(645642-W)

Suite 9-11, 11th Floor, Menara Jubili
53, Jalan Gaya 
88000 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia
Tel : +6 088-235 143, 236 143, 238 143
Fax : +6 088-317 109
Email : schbeng@suriaplc.com.my
Website : www.suriagroup.com.my/schbengineering

S.P. SATRIA SDN. BHD. (622494-V)

Suite 6-8, 11th Floor, Menara Jubili
53, Jalan Gaya
88000 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia
Tel : +6 088-316 696
Fax : +6 088-231 086
Email : allesandra@spsatria.com.my
Website : www.suriagroup.com.my/spsatria

SANDAKAN PORT
Senior Manager
Wisma Pelabuhan, Jalan Karamunting
P. O. Box 1368
90715 Sandakan, Sabah, Malaysia
Tel : +6 089-612 411
Fax     : +6 089-612 975
Email  : raiman.ali@spsb.com.my

TAWAU PORT
Port Manager
Wisma Pelabuhan, Jalan Dunlop
P. O. Box 335
91007 Tawau, Sabah, Malaysia 
Tel : +6 089-773 700
Fax     : +6 089-761 808
Email  : subardjoe@spsb.com.my

LAHAD DATU PORT / KUNAK PORT
Port Manager
Jalan Kastam Baru
P. O. Box 60143
91111 Lahad Datu, Sabah, Malaysia
Tel : +6 089-889 722
Fax     : +6 089-882 749
Email  : clarence@spsb.com.my

KUDAT PORT 
Officer-In-Charge 
P. O. Box 228
89058 Kudat, Sabah, Malaysia  
Tel : +6 088-611 261
Fax     : +6 088-621 320
Email : andyliew@spsb.com.my
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